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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property
Investment Trust plc is to maximise
shareholders” total returns by investing

in the shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses
internationally and also in investment
property located in the UK.

INTRODUCTION

TR Property Investment Trust plc (the "Company” or the
“Trust™) was formed in 1905 and has been a dedicated
property investor since 1982, The Company is an
Investment Trust and its shares are premium listed on the
London Stock Exchange.

BENCHMARK

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling.

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company seeks to achieve its objeclive by investing in
shares and secusities of property companies and property
related businesses on an international basis, although,
with a Pan-European benchmark, the majority of the
investments will be located in that geographical area. The
Cempany also invests in investment property located in
the UK only.

Further details of the Investment Policies, the Asset
Allocation Guidelines and pelicies regarding the use of
gearing are set out in the Strategic Repart on page 25 and
the entire portfolio is shown on page 18.

INVESTMENT MANAGER

BMO Investment Business Limited acts as the Company’s
alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM”) with
portfolio management delegated to Thames River Capital
LLP {"the Portfolic Manager” or “the Manager™) marcus
Phayre-Mudge has managed the portfolio since 1 April
2011 and been part of the Fund Management team since
1997,
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INDEPENDENT BOARD

The Directors are all Independent of the Manager and
meel reguiarly to consider investment strateqgy, to manior
adherence to the stated objective and investment policies
and to review performance. Details of how the Board
aperates and fulfils 1its responsibilities are set out in the
Repert of the Directors on page 41,

PERFORMANCE

The Financial Highlights for the current year are set out
opposite and Histarical Performance can be found on
page 3. Key Performance tndicators are set out in the
Strateqic Report on pages 26 and 27

RETAIL INVESTORS ADVISED BY IFAS

The Company currently conducts its affairs so that its
shares can be recommended by Independent Financial
Advisers (“IFAS”) in the UK to ordinary retail investors in
accordance with the Financial Conduct Autharity ("FCA")
rules in relation to non-mainstream investment products
and intends to continue to do so. The shares are excluded
from the FCA's restrictions, which apply to non-mainstream
investment products, because they are shares in an
authonsed investment trust.

FURTHER INFORMATION

General shareholder information and details ol how to
invest i TR Property Investment Trust ple, including an
investment through an ISA or saving scheme, can be
found on pages 111 and 112, Thus information can also be
found on the Trust's website www trproperty.com

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 1
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Financial Highlights and Performance

Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
’ 2021 2020 Change
Balance Sheet
Net asset value per share 417.97p 358.71p *16.7%
Shareholders’ funds (£'000) 1,326,433 1,136,453 +15.7%
Shares in issue at the end of the year (m) 374 74 +0.0%
Net debts o 165% 76%
Share Price
Share price 392.50p 317.50p +23.6%
Market capitalisation £1,246m £1,008m +23.6%
Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March
20 2020 Chaly_g
Revenue
Revenue eafnings per share _ T2.35p 4.62p “16.2%
Dividends?
Interim dividend per share 5.20p 5.20p +0.0%
Final dividend per share 9.00p 8.80p +2.3%
Total dividend per share _1420p 14.00p +1.4%
Performance: Assets and Benchmark
Net Asset Value tolal returmnds +20.7% 11.5%
Benchmark total return® +15.9% “14.0%
Share price total return*s . *2183% -16.8%
Ongoing Charges™
Including performance fee +1.40% +0.80%
Excluding performance fee +0.65% +0.61%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs +0.63% +0.59%

1. Netdebt is the tolal value of loan notes, loans {including notionzl exposure to CFDs and Total Return Swap) less cash as a proportion of net asset value.

2. Dividends per share are the dividends in respect of the tinancial year ended 31 March 2021. An interim dividend of 5.20p was paid in January 202t A final dividend of
9.00p {2020: 8.80p) will be paid on 4 August 2021 1a shareholders on the register on 18 june 2021,

The shares will be quoted ex-dividend on 17 fune 2021

3. The NAY Tetal Return for the year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed

10 be reinvested on the ex-dividend date as this is the protocol used by the Company’s berchmark and other indices.

4. The Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company tiorn the relevant ex-dividend date.

5. Ongoing Charges are calcufated in accordance with the AIC methodology. The Bngoing Charges ratios provided in the Company’s Key Information Document are
calculated in line with the PRIIPS regulation which is ditterent 1o the AIC methodology.

6. Considered to be an Alternative Performance Measure as defined on page 98.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Historical Performance
For the years ended 31 March

20 2012 2013 2004 2015 2006 2017 2078 2019 2020 m

Performance for the year:

Total Return (%)

NAVY 15.4 -8.5 215 224 283 8.2 8.0 15.5 9% 15 20.7
Benchmark™ 15.2 -8.9 17.8 149 233 5.4 6.5 10.2 5.6 -14.0 159
Share Pricet 126 -9.5 25.8 77 295 “1.6 9.1 255 6.2 -16.8 283
shareholders’ funds {£'m)

Total 670 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,18 1,256 1,328 1136 1,326
Ordinary shares 531 470 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1328 1,136 1,326
Sigma shares® 139 118 . - - - - - - - -
Ordinary shares

Net revenue {pence per share)

Earnings 6.94 707 674 8.09 8.89 8.36 11.38 13.22 14.58 14.62 12.25
Dividends® 6.00 6.60 700 745 110 8.35 10.50 12.20 13.50 1400 1420

NAV per share (pence) 20710 18360 21525 25494 3812 33556 35242 39564 4854 3581 41797

share price (pence) 17716 15450 18630 24750 31050 29750 31450 38250 3%400 31750 392.50
Indices of growth

Share price® 100 87 105 140 175 168 178 216 2 179 222
Net Asset Value® 100 89 104 123 154 162 170 ™ 202 173 202
Dividend Net® 100 10 n7 124 128 139 175 203 225 2313 237
RPY 100 104 107 1o m 112 116 120 123 126 128
Benchmark® 100 87 99 105 126 130 134 144 147 123 140

Figures have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

{A) The NAV Tatal Return for each year is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are
deemed 1o be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this Is the protocol used by the Company's benchmark and other indices. This is considered to be an Allernative
Performance Measure as defined on page 8.

(8) Benchmark Index: composite index comprising the FISE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR index ujr to March 2013, and thereafter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped ndex. Source: Thames River Capital.

{C) The Share Price Total Return is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company fram the relevant ex-dividend date.
(D) The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012.

(E) Dividends per share in the year to which their declaration relates and not the year they were paid.

(F) share prices only. These do not reflect dividends paid.

(G} Capital only values, These do not reflect dividends paid.

{H) Price only value of the indices set out in (B) above.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 3
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Chairman’s Statement

David Watson
Chairman

Whiist underlying earnings were initially
impacted by the pandemic, the message
from the vast majarity of our invested
companies, which largely excludes
owners of retail property, has been a
considered and strong resumption in
dividends.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

INTRODUCTION

The start of this reporting penod was very <lose to the
recent COVID-1% influenced nadir of global equity markets
in tarch 2020. Since then equity markets have been
determinedly focused on the future rather than reflecting
on the more immediate economic data and human
tragedy of the pandemic. As a result, I able to report
healthy returns for the year with a net asset value ("NAV")
total return of 20.7%, well ahead of the benchmark total
return of 15 9%. The share price tofal return was even
stronger at 28.3% as the discount narrowead over the year.

Stock markets have taken greal comfort from the huge
amount of central bank stimulus and state aid for both
corporates and individuals. Singe November 2020, this
sense of support has been augmented by optimism
following the announcements and subsequent roflout of a
range of vaccine programmes.

The cnsis has forced a dramatic change in Lhe way we work,
consume and relax Over the last year our managernent team
has pondered not only the pace of these changes across a
wide range of property sectors but also ther sustainability
once the world reverts to “the new normal”

Over the last quarter of the financial year under review
and inte the start of the new one, we have seen very
dramatic share price movements as investors rotated
fram companies offering the salety of secure Income
towards those offering greater nisk, particularly where the
companies were trading at large discounts to ther assel
value Your manager’s report will examine in more detail
how the portfolio steucture has evolved through these
thematic rotations.



REVENUE RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Earnings for the year were 12.25p per share, 16% lower
than the prier year earnings of 14.62p.

The headline earnings per share figure is shghtly deceptive,
earnings before tax were 24% lower than the previous year,
but a significant tax refund and some further prior periad
withholding lax recoveries reduced Lhe revenue tax charge
from an effective rate of 11.3% in 2020 ta just 1.9% lor the
financial year to March 20271 Further details of this are set
out In the Manager’s Report.

The Roard has anncunced a final dividend of 9.00p per
share, bringing the full year dividend to 14.20p per share
{2020.14.00p) an overall increase of 1.4% on the prior year
dividend. The Beard 15 conscious of the income aspirations
of some of our Investor base and, although this dividend
is not fully covered, the Company has significant revenue
reserves available. As long as the Board has a reasanable
expeclation ol income returning to previous fevels in the
medium term, the Board 15 happy to maintain a modest
level of dividend progression,

REVENUE OUTLOOK

within our portfolio, the manager anticipates income

for the yoar to March 2022 to be split into three broadly
equal parts with one third suffering a reduction and in
some ¢ases significant cuts of even suspensicns, a third
with income returning to pre-pandemic levels, and the
batance oftfering some level of increase. We do not expect
total income levels to return to pre-COVID-19 levels within
the current financial year although we do expect an
improvement relative to 2020/21.

After allowing far the proposed dividend, revenue reserves
will still amount to 12 18p per share giving plenty of
capacity for the board to supplement the dividend again

in 2021/22, providing a return to pre-Covid levels can
reasonably be anticipated in the medium term.

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

200 [ Berchmark Total Retum [} TR Property Share Price Total Return 5 TR Property Net Asset Vaiue Total Return

Mar-10 Mar-11 Mar-12 Mar-13 Mar-14 Mat-15

Mar-16 Mar-17 Mar-18 Mar-19 Mar-20 Mar-21
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Chairman’s statement continued

NET DEBT AND CURRENCIES

Gearing ot the end of the yeor stoad 21 16 54, having
started the year ot 7672, Geanng tluctuated considerably
thraughout the yeas, renging between around 762, znd
T7.8% 5 market sentiment ebbed and flowed. This
demonstrates the bepefit of the texibiity of our borrowing
stiucture, with a base leval supported by our fixed
fonger-term debl end the majonty achieved through the
revolving aredd faglives and exposure thiough contiocts
for difference ("CFDs™)

Stetling reeched @ low against the burg n September
2020 divven by fears of @ nu deal Brexit ond rememed
ielatively weak antil january 2021 As the naw year eryedd
and despite 1ssues with bureeudecy for goods flowing
betweer the UK and Furops, Browt issues toak 2 back
seabif Inyestors’ minds s they tocused on the roule to
nosmalisetion acrass the UK and Furope os the vacane
programmes rollad out. The UK s deerty shevd of the
curya 1 this respect end sterling strengthenesd stez diy
torcids ot year end i Faarch 2077

Our pohey 15 o Mmaintain @ hedged currency kxpoa
ling ath the benchmak. Sterling iopiesant romc}
of the benchmerk, therefore strengthenimng Stﬁfh N Is 3
haedwind 1o the NAY

Income 1w unhedged and cround 66 '+ of our Income

15 receryad i cutrences other then Sterhing, therefore
stronger Steching reduces our mcoine, Shghtly mare mcome
s recer,ed in the tirst helf of the yeer then the second so
er e conent Jear more was receved e peiod when
Sterlng mes wecker,

DISCOUNT AND SHARE REPURCHASES
The prios year end sell only 1o mecks ster the matkar
la s follosnng the 2apauncoment of the qlobe] COYID-12

Y
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0 share buy-backs were made i the penod, although
Ehe discount wos wade at venous pomts dusing the year
thary of cur underlying stocks were alsu treding on wade
discounts and our mereger focused our capitel on those
OppoIuNites

THE BOARD

i am greteful to my Board coikaguaﬂs and {o the tecm
IR for thew suppart end comnutment this year, We

hu&‘ met i person whenever the L_f‘-rv and common
sense allawed aid “wirtyally " whe fhough
small, {believe the Board has an o <o“Hem ha Iam and
spread of skills and experence apprognate for the Trists
ahjectives With twu relatively new members, and a
chenge in Chai, | have been keen to allovs us ail time
to settle nto our roles. Fven so, 1 am wonscious of the
terme of our SID, Sinon fAcimson whose independence,
skills and commtment ere exemplary. He bnngs @ nrigue
cantnbutizn wath his continental property investment
sapertise thet s tnghly watied by us all erd that sl be
herd to replac 5 enjoy and beneht fom

T ARCCSSS

. Fguelly we olwe
the ntieduction of a fresh and caquinng mind so we il
i‘.f’l[ the protess of lowking for s replacement ksle) ths
feat 1o 2o an oiderly d((“bmof]

ENVIRONMENTAL, SQCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
FACTORS ('ESG’)
This year we hoyve added mors information on our
uswwhlc Myestmeant appracch For many wecis we
hove memtained 2 strong posdion m terns of voting
pacgement suppoited by oy significert stakes ima
rumber ot pooperty companies Our size in this specizhst
soof thie gt ;mrker has helpad ersare that aul
wlRs 2T e, Th\s 2igage nEt hes besn augirented
b, the strength ot Bir0s Corpor:
broeder ange

up zad Faight
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AWARDS

The Trust was the winner in the Specialist Equities
category of the Citywire Investment Trust Awards. This is
particularly pleasing as we were in competition with Trusts
specialising in a broad range of equities and alternatives.

e

!

. CITYWIRE
WINNER

HNVERTMENT TRUST 2020

™ PROPENTY

OUuTLOOK

The pandernic has hed 2 drametc impeet on the veorld
and on ell aspects of reol estete In seme instances s
was an acceleration of trends thet were well underqay
such es the structural shift to ommchannel retading. For
athers, such es ncreased remate warking 1t hes been ¢
very fest gestetion periad of en embryomc trend Anpert
hotel cecupeney and business trevel will ikely suffer e
long-term neqgative stuft as companes embrace aot anly
a new genetation of communication tocls but also the
enyironmentel cradentials. The man common feature
aeross these examples 15 the ditficulty in predicting the
scale and permanency of this evolution What wall be ‘the
new normal for these assel clessas 1s tne challenge for
our managemnent teom as we look torwaid to the post
pardemic world, Whet we cen be sure about s that the
eronomic heckdiop 1s a world watl hugely eleveted lovels
of government debt ongoing centel bank ¢ govermmental
stimulus packages and higher levels of domestic sevings.

140434 DILIIVHLS

All ot & trne when fixed income yvigkls are ot histoncally
lowe lovels and much long duration savereign debt offers
nagative yicids to redemption.

Real estate offers a substentiel margin aver fixed income
with the oppartunity to reflect any economic recovery
through tental growth. As a real asset it also has some
mfletion proohing credentials. However, as the fast fiftecn
rmonths has teminded us, sentiment can often overnde
fundamenteds i iquid equity markets and our managers
will continue to focus on the assessment of earnings
sustainability and medium term growth potential

David Watson
Chairman

3 June 2017

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 7
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Manager’s Report

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

Capital is clearly seeking real assets.
There has been several recent instances
of private equity acquiring listed
properties companies. This will continue
if public companies are undervalued.
Such market dynamics provides us with
a strong valuation underpin.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

PERFORMANCE

The Net Asset value total return for the year to 31 March
2021 was 20.7%, ahead of the benchmark total retuen of
15.9%. At the interim stage, | reparted that Continental
European preperty companies had significantly
outperformed their UK counterparts (returns of 11.3% v
21%) The second half saw the complete reverse. The UK's
performance in the second half was so strong that the

12 month performance of 19.1% (in GBP) oulperformed
Continental Furope at 18 7% (in EUR).

The initial impact of the pandemic on European real estate
equities saw the benchmark fall 36% from the pre-Covid
peak of 19th February to the trough on 18 March 2020. Our
financial year therefore started dase to these depressed
levels and the steady recovery since then is reflected in
the healthy fiqures for the year under review. However it
15 worth noting that collectively the sector remains nearly
15% below the pre-Covid peak.

This extraordinary year has clearly been like ne ather and

the gulf 1n performance of the different real estate sectars
{and their respective listed companies) requires the same

adjective. The year can be neatly divided into pre and post
the vaccine annauncement,

From March lo October investors focused on owning
sustainable, pandemic prool income such as residential,
supermarkets and healthcare alongside logistics,
warehousing and industnial where the underlying tenants’
businesses had remained open and In many cases

were thriving Consumer facing sectors such as retail,
restaurants, hotel and leisure were shunnad. We divide our
universe of pan European real estate companies it 26
bespoke groups and over the 7 menths from the trough on
18th March 2020 our logistics / industnal group returned
+54% , German residential +60%, healthcare +36% whiist
UK retall fell 45% and European retail returned Just 1%
London retail also suffered falling 26% as tourism levels
{both domestic and international) collapsed.

However, from November onwards we saw 3 complele
volte face as investors focused on the possitility of

a normahising economic outlook post the vaccine
breakthrough. In cur wortd that meant buying back into
the consumer facing sectars. Stocks exposed to these



sectors had been standing at large discounts given the
markel’s expectation of further asset value declines and
they enjoyed significant price recovery. Stocks such as
Hammerson and Shaftesbury, who had both carried out
emergency capital raises (mare on this later), enjoyed
100% ang 85% price appreciation from their respective
(pre-vaccine announcement) capital raise prices.

The Trusl was defensively positioned as we entered the
pandemic with overweights to European PRS {private
rented sector} particularly in Germany, supermarkets

{UK and Nordics), healthcare {mainly UK} and logistics /
industrial acress both the UK and Europe These exposures
drove much of the relative outperformance from March lo
November.

Londan exposed stocks suffered particularly as office
workers have not returned (we estimate office utihsation
rates at c25% versus a Continental average of over 50%})
and this combined with the collapse in tourism (bath
domestic and international) has temporaiily hollowed out
our global aity. Our UK office expasure was concentrated
in decentralised offices through CLS and McKay whilst

we avoided London retail focused names such as Capco
and Shaftesbury as well as those businesses with short
occupalional leases such as Workspace.

As the ‘relief / reopeming / reflation” trade gathered
mormentum, | closed our underweight exposure 10
European shopping centres, bought back into some Central
London retail and renewed cur exposure (o office markelts
particularly those cities with the shorter commute times.
Essentially | was still shying away from the largest two
conurbations {Londen and Paris) whilst adding to smaller
ones such as Madrid and Dublin and maintaining exposure
to decentralised office sectors in the UK, Sweden and
Germany.

The pandemic has turned much on its head” and in our
comer ol the equity market it was the performance of
Swiss property companies which was much weaker than
history would have predicted. Tradittionally & safe haven,
these stacks did nct initially recover from the March lows
with investors focused on the problematic retail exposure
of the largest listed companies. We continue ta be
underweight the group.

1HOd3Y D1131vHIS B

Another positive surprise has been in seli-storage which
reported very steady numbers through the waorst of the
year Whilst our stock selection in the UK was correcl
(Safestore total return +27% versus Big Yellow +14%), the
runaway success was Shurguard, the Continental player
returning +48%, which we didn’t awn. In our defence, the
stock enjoyed strong demand from index trackers as it
entered various benchmarks midyear,

Most of 2020 was an understandably subdued

period for M&A corparate activity with one particular
exception, Norwegian offices. Entra (where we were &
top 20 shareholder) was the subject of a bidding war
between two Swedish listed players, Casteilum and
Samhallsbyggnadsbolaget (also known as SBB). Whilst
neither successfully gained cantrol, the share price total
return was 57%, our maost successful investment in the
period.

The portlolio has some gearing. This was reduced in
February and March 2020 but has subseguently returned
to pre-pandemic levels, Why have gearing in voiatile
times? The Trust continues lo take advantage of its

closed ended structure and holds a number of dhiquid
small cap stocks These well-run companies (even when
exposed 1o oulperforming subsectors) often suffer from
limited investor attention, being deemed too small. As a
conseguence, in rising markets they often underperform
their larger brethren (in market parlance their ‘beta’ is less
than one). Adding some gearing helps compensate for
these lower beta names Our experience is that over time
the underlying property fundamentals will be recognised
and, it nol, then the market will take them private or
merge them together. Our physical property exposure also
sits outside our benchmark and additional gearing ensures
that we are not underexposed to equities versus our
benchmark given that a propertion of capital Is invested in
physical property

OFFICES

0Of all the segments of the commeraial real estate
landscape, the future demand for offices remains the
hardest to forezast. The two undeniable consequeaces of
the pandemic, for this asset class, has been the realisation
that employees of corporates of all sizes ¢can work
remotely (for long penods) if required and secondly that

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 9
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Manager’s Report ccrirued

the next generation of "best In class office accommodation
will be utilised very differently with tenants having new
prioriies. Built into these demands will be the overarching
need for energy efficiency, carbon neutrality and
systainability through the life cycle of the building.

The take up figures for the last year {across the 15 major
cities we monitor) offers little comparative value given the
inability for businesses to physically relocate in many of
these markets from March 2020. Taking London as a case
in point, Savills reported that West End take up fell from
44m sqg {110 2019 to 1.7m in 2020, Office wtilisation rates
through 2020 and into 2021 have vanied hugely A broad
rule of thumb was that the larger the city (and lhe longer
the average commute time) the lower the office utilisation
rate. Generally the smaller cilies also had higher levels of
commuting by private transport or where workers were
using overground pubhc transport. Scandinavian and Swiss
cities have seen almost normalised utilisation rates whilst
Londen and Fans remain sub 30% Loaking forward, what
1s important to us is the amount of new space which was
scheduled to complete (construction was halted for very
short periods 1n most markets) and whether there are
signs of demand as we move into the posl vaccine perod

Leoking across Europe as a whole, the combined effect of
reduced leasing activity and construction completions led
to 100bps Increase in vacancy 1o an average of 6.9% (BNP
data). This single statistic clearly hides a wide range of
fevels. Unsurprisingly, Londen and Pans have experienced
the greatest increases from 5% to nearly 8% but Dublin
collects the wooden sooon with vacancy increasing to
over 9%, This is a good example af a small market where
a (temporary) demand strike meets a number of large
completions and refurbishments. However the fistonically
low levels of vacancy in many aties pnor to the pandemic
have insulated most markets, with modest downward
maovements in prime rents recorded across the German
Big &, Milan, Madnd, Oslo, Amsterdam and Stockholm,

The delivery of new office buildings has also been
deterred, particularly for tall buildings. The New London
Architecture’s Anaual Tall Buldings Survey recorded

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

a 27% decline in planning applications for buildings

over 20 storeys in 2020 when compared with 2075, We
were surprised thet the fall wasn't larger but 73% of all
applications were in the latter parl of the year and hints at
developer confidence regarding demand for new build.

Investment demand has remained very resilient almost
reqardless of short-term weakness 1n occupational
markets. The weight of capital seeking real assets is

a theme which will recur through this report. The rise

in the lang end of the curve as the reflation theme
galhers momentum is proving very damaging for fixed
income structures High quality offices - offering large lot
sizes - with secure income delivering 3.5-4% net yield

is attractive versus negative yielding sovereign bonds.
Further up the risk curve, opportunistic capital also remains
very active and listed development specialists such as
Great Portland Estates and Derwent London have found
hard to deploy capital amidst fierce competition

The 2021 CBRE EMEA investor Intentions Survey highlights
Londan as still the most attractive city for investment

in Furope with an estimaled €40-45bn of global equity
looking to be deployed into the market acioss ail types
of buildings. This is the highest figure since the survey
starting tracking demand 1n 2012, Whilst transaction
volumes slowed last year, the first two months of 2027
(tracitionally a quiet time) have seen volumes reach
£875m greater than the same pesiod 1n 2019 Part of the
London attraction is that yields didn’t compress dunng
the Brexit uncertainty making the city look much cheaper
than other big European cities Post the EU-UK Trade and
Cooperation Agreement we expect this gap to narrow

RETAIL

The MmsCl/ IPD data for the 12 months to March 2021 saw
all retail property capitat values fall 12.8% with a senous
acceleration in the dechine of shopping centre values
which fell 25 5% over the last 12 months In the interims,

| commented that we felt Lhe valuation commumty were
behind the imes due to therr requirement to fock at deal
evidence fssentially, in fast moving markets the published
figures will already be out of dale. Stock markets knaw



this and retail landlords across the glebe have been
trading al very large discounts to their (no longer valid)
last published figures

The waes of retail are well understcod. The pandemic
has accelerated trends which were well eslablished.
Reopening of economies witl see footfall return to
shopping centres but the levels of sustainable rents
remain the subject of market forces. In the UK the loss

of a huge number of well known brands either through
bankruptcy or retreat has resulted in average vacancy
levels in shopping centres reaching over 15% (MSCl data).

This means the negotiation boot remains firmly on the
tenants’ foot and we predict & further 15% falls in rental
values The one area where there are clear signs of price
stabilisation is in retail warefousing. Open air with plenty
of free parking, this type of relail asset sits well in an
omni-channe! environment where relailer margins are
maximised through click and collect. Affordability is the
eternal watchword and whilst there are some parks with
very high rents (often fashion retailer led) the majonty wiil
see modest declines in rerial values. Qccupancy cost ratios
are also not burdened by escalating service charges.

Across Furope, the picture is more nuanced Yaluers are
even more conservative than their UK counterparts and
capitalisation rates are yet to move materially. In some
countries, retaillers have been given huge amounts of
government support and as a result rental delinguency

is generally lower than in the UK. In addition, many
shopping centres are ancnored by hypermarkets (which
have remained open) and not department stores (a UK/
US concept no longer fit for purpose beyond a handful

of tourist destinations such as Selfnidges and Galenes
Lafayette). There have been lower levels of retailer
bankruptcy across Continental Europe and we put

this down Lo two factors: less overrenting and the UK
insalvency legislabon On lhis latter paint, a huge number
of UK retailers have taken advantage of the CVA {company
voluntary administratior) to force landlords (generally a
large creditor) to accept corporate reconstructions which
unduly damage their interests. A recent High Court ruling
involving the averly indebted retailer New Lock, reinforced
this tenant friendly legislation,

Investors remain very circumspect towards this asset class.
Income nsecurity has resulted in investors requinng much
higher initial yields. CBRE estimate that UK prime shopping
centre yields have maoved from 4.5% to 7% in the last

5 years with poorer secondary schemes in the high teens
or literally unsaleable. Retail warehcusing has bucked the
depressing trend at least from an nvestor perspective,
lnvestors are increasingly confident that they are able

o measure tenanl affordability and this 1s the key to
determining pricing. In the last couple of months we have
seen compebtive bidding for a number of retall warehouse
schemes, something not seen since 2018,

DISTRIBUTION AND INDUSTRIAL

UK industrial and logistics take up hit a record 59.7m sq ft

In 2020. whilst the pandermic suppressed demand in many
other parts of the property market, it clearly stmulated
logistics and business activity which utilised industrial
property. Amazon again accounted for a sizeable (20%)
portion of the activity and 1t was this XL segment (250,000 +
sq ft) which was the major beneficiary of the surging online
demand. The online share of relall sales rose from 19.2% in
2019 to 279% 1 2020 hitting a new high of 36.3% in January
2021 as we returned to lockdown. This will scale back as we
reopen but the boost to online scale and efliciency 1s here to
stay. Supoly has responded but has been more than matched
by this demand. As a consequence, supply has fallen to
73.4m sq ft, down 6% on the year, and this lightening has
occurred In every size bracket.

Rental growth continues to march on but there has been
a broadening of growth rates across the regions. Greater
Londen and the East Midlands recorded growth of over
7% whilst average rates across the country at 3.9% Such
strong rental growth, the secure iIncome and the pesitive
outlook has driven both domestic and international buyers
to pay record prices for this sector whether it 1s last mile
urban units, XL big boxes or terraces of well located
industrial units. Prime yields are 3.5 1o 4% and even short
income is nat deterring investors as evidenced by the sale
of our Brstol distribution unit at 4.5% nitial yield with

3.5 years unexpired.

The same picture of rude health 1s evident across
Continental Curgpe. According to BNP take up increased
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14% across Lhe & iargest European economies and vacancy
rates dropped to 5.5%, their lowest and ali against a
backdrop of a sharp centraction in GDP. Again it was a
surge in e-commerce and home delivery which drove
demand. Prime yields across Europe tightened 25bps in
2020, matching the UK with no signs of decompression
even as the long end of the curve rises. Investment
demand 1s truly glebal with US and Asian institutional
capital compeling with more domestic long term capital
all determined to participale in this structural shifl.

RESIDENTIAL

As expecled the sector has remained highly resilient
duning the pandemic. The majonty of our investments are
in German and Swedish housing where rents are subject
to state control The remaining exposure 1s Finland and the
UK where rents are open-market. The former offer greater
security with rents tied to indexation whilst the latter
offers mare appoartunity ta capture market growtiy but
with the commensurate nsk If vacancy nses and market
rents fall. Dunng the crisis, the secunty of Income and very
high cccupancy levels resulted in the sector retaining its
popularity German housing has expenenced price f1ses in
virtually all its sub-markets.

As explained earlier, Berlin remained the outhier

as the State of Berlin imposed a 5 year rent freeze
(Mietendeckel). The subsequent Constitutional Court ruling,
which confirmed that rent contrals are determined at the
Federal, not State level, came just after the year end in
mid-April. We are pleased with this outcome and the share
prices of hath Deutsche Wohnen (4 4% of nel assets) and
Phoenix Spree (2.5% of net assets) responded positively.
New construction of apartments in Berlin had ali but dried
up as developers awalted the outcome of the appeai
Berlin remains the cheapest capital ¢y in Western Europe
in which to rent an apartment (if you can find one). The
desire of a left-wing Tocal authority 10 keep it that way
regardless of the side effect of shutting aut new rmigrants
through the consequential collapse n the supply of new
homes has been swtably rebuffed

ALTERNATIVES

This group encompasses sectors that have thrived
{supermarkets, healthcare, self-storage) In the crisis and
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those which have not (student accommodation, hotefs).
Share price performance was an amplified reflection of
not only the underlying property performance but afso
the dramatic shift in investor sentiment Self storage
share prices have traditionally performed poorly in
slowing economic conditions as the income 15 considered
short term and volat/le. However the pandemic has
focused nvestors” minds on the emerging strength of
this sector where a small group of operators {mostly
listed companies) have the linancial muscle to dominate
the price companson websites. Another emerging trend
has been the mcreasing business usage of a product
tradittonally seen as the domain of private customers.
Businesses have seen the merits of immediate, hassle free
access to short or longer term storage. The supply chain
disruption during the pandermic heightened the need for
space as the mantra became 3 little more just in case and
a little less just in ime” Our self storage group returned
+46% from the fow point (18th March 2020) to the end
of Ocleber. However, from November 2020 to the end of
tarch 2021 they have collectively returned just +4.1%.

A classic example ol a switch in sentiment as investors
rotated away from the ‘Covid relative winners” group into
the value names which had underperformed and looked
very cheap on historic metrics

In another alternatives” sub-sector we expenenced the
complete reverse. Student accommadation businesses
sufferad a collapse n income and Unite {our only
exposure) led the field in refunding rents which was the
correct PR strategy but depleted their tap line. The well
documented difficulies for students through the last
two academic years and the compiete mability for many
overseas students to enroll physically impacted investar
sentiment with the sub-sector failing 46% between 19th
February and 18th March 2020 and then staging a weak
recovery of Just +17% from then to the end of Oclober.
whilst this performance compares poorly with self storage,
since the beginning of November the sub-sector has
rallied 30% as the hikelihood of the reopening of tertiary
education impraved,

Supermarkets have continued to attract investor
attention. Our exposure 1s through Supermarket Income
REIT (UK) and Cibus {Sweden and Finfand). Supermarket



Income REIT raised a total of £490m in three separate
transactions through the year and now has a market

cap cf aver £900m. Cibus alsc raised capital {SEK

400m) 1n two tranches to make turther acquisitions The
larger supermarket operators have been able to attract
customers through their onlinge network which the hard
discounlers (Lidl, Aldi) are not able to offer. Volumes

and margins will normalise post the pandemic but these
operators have had the oppertunity to prove the resilience
of their omni-channel mode! which utilises last mile
distnbution from their netwaerk of stores. It is one of the
few parts of the retail landscape where physical stores are
truly integral to the online journey

DEBT AND EQUITY MARKETS

Property companies remained busy on debt refinanaings
throughout the pandemic and the huge amcunt of central
bank support and government stimulus ensured a healthy,
liguid market where pricing did not weaken. According ta
EPRA, €15.2bn was raised in 2019 at an average coupon of
1.8% and 2020 saw €15.6bn at a cost of 16%. These figures
are not directly cornparable as the mix of debt cffenings in
each period was different but they are a clear indicator as to
the health and price stability in the debt markets. German
residential compantes were again busy with Vonovia raising
€2.5bn in four transactions borrowing 10-year money at 1%.
Later in October, Gecina, Eurcpe’s largest office REIT raised
£€200m 1n 2 2034 term bond at 0.86%.

Early in the cnisis, we saw a number of strong businesses
trading al premiums raise equity capital for opportunistic
expansicn. This was in sectors with clear underlying
demand, namely healthcare (Assura, Aedifica, Bnimary
Heakth Properties), self-storage {BIg Yellow), logistics/
industnal (LondonMetric, Segra, YGP ), supermarkets
(Supermarket Income REIT, Cibus) and German residential
(Vonovia, ADO Properties, LEG). The Autumn saw
opportunistic raises in Sweden and Norway (Balder,
Klovern and Norweqgian Preperties) a regicn which had
experienced low levels of lockdown restrnictions. More
recently in February and March this year we saw renewed
activily in the UK, as the vacane rollout improved
sentiment, with raises from Target Healthcare, LXI, Tritax
Eurobox and Supermarket Income REIT again. Continental
Eurapean raises in 2021 have so far been confined lo
healthcare (Cofinimma) and student accommedation {Xior)
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Post the summer we saw the beginning of an expected
surge of more defensive raises as companies finally
came under cashllow and valuation pressure In the end
it was just a handful of retail focused names who had
been mismanaging their balance sheets long before

the pandemic. Hammerson's £600m raise effectively
recapitalised the balance sheet with a 24 for 1 rights issue
accompanied by the {previously announced) departure of
the CEQ completing the overdue C-suite shuffle of Char,
CEQ and CFO. in late October, Shallesbury announced a
£300m placing and open offer. Looking back their timing
was spectacularly unfortunate as the announcement of the
first vaccines came less than a fortnight later,

These game changing announcements immediately
altered expectations and there 1s nowhere better to
illustrate the peint than the corporate saga at Unibail-
Rodamco-Westfield (URW) URW had announced a €Shn
‘Reset’ pian comprising €3.5bn capital raise, dividend
cancellation and a planned €4bn of disposals. A group

of activist shareholders lead by Leon Bressler {the CEO

of Unibail from 1992 to 2006) launched a campaign to
oppose these AGM proposals and launch an alternative
strategy which did not include a deeply discounted capital
ra:se. They proposed the sale of the US (ex westheld)
portfolic and a return to their roots as an owner of

prime Eurcpean shapping centres. Their timing was
fortunate, with the 10th November AGM coming just
after the vaccing announcement and the improvement in
investor sentiment even for deeply indebted businesses
Essentially convinging investors that they didn't need

to put ‘good money after bad’ and that the self help
strateqy would succeed. They were successful in therr
campaign and shareholders voted against the ‘Reset’
plan_ This led to the departure of the Chairman, CEO

and CFO and the promotion of exisling semor managers
to the Board The share price, which had troughed at
€35 per share, subsequently doubled amudst the closing
of shorl positions. This corporate tale neatly encapsulates
the dramatic change in invester sentiment (and pricing
of previously unloved businesses) which we saw from
November anwards

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - PROPERTY SHARES

Tutnover (purchases and sales divided by two} totalled
£468m equating to 36% of the average net assets over
the penod. This was broadly n line with last year’s
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cojuvalent ﬁgu re {320 ) awhich itself wes weell aheod of
the vear to taarch 2009 (2090, 1 hes therefore been two
yeals of e‘levatuj potiohc retetion due to market voletility
The repid reductivn in leverage 10 Febriery 2nd terch
2020 was tollowed by a swatt reiivestment in the poitfolio
which accurred in apnl and #iay os shaie prices recovered
fram then thaich foves and this reinvestment was boosted
by our perticipation an the mejonty of the large number of
offensive cepital rases os descnbed earlier,

Whilst & number of sought efter businesses were stending

ot premiums Lo asset value end therefore were able
1o raise copral cccretvely, the Covid wordd meant that
anather sineller coost of campanies required emergend

{defensive) capricl raises After HEIMMersans rase in
september came Shefrasbury's £300m raise o 4000 per
shiare, ¢ 207 discouni to the undisturbad share price

and 530 below where 1t had stasted 2020, Wo dqu".‘T
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trache peipetuelly at a discaunt to s asset wolue, The et

price therctore looked 2 fap ane

The precedent has been set and other smzll deeply
discounted companies should look to merge and genelate
impraved aperational metnes tor thea shareholder s,

1he (mpurale aclswity erouad Entra in Norwey {covored
eaflier) was an noportent contrbutor to performance gven
aur m%dmg (2.5% of net ossets)

The interestin fisted vezl estote continues 1o strengtion
as we move o the Spring #ath ¢ range of existing
companses taking the opporiunity o sese cepital whilst
their sheres trade 2t premisms to e asset value. This
wis Lapped 10 aarch by the first major 1P0 for over 3
vears, CIP a Centrof furopean lngh s Lv'fw’d:xciope‘l
ratsed €10 ath the founder dilutivg horn 1007
oymersiup o &340, The company h 15 O merket cap of
£€5.60n

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY - DIRECT PROPERTY
PORTFOLIO

The physicel property porticha setnned 287 wth 2
copitel retum ot -7 and anoocome retumn of 34
the 12 months to ffaich 2021 I what wes o difficalt yee
for real estate, the portfolio rermenied resihent wathy ront
collection i excess of 207 tar all four quartars aad i
anl himmited concassions giver to two reta-h t2nants
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transformation of this Baysweter asset whete we haye
added 18,000 sq ft of new jetall space (hnnging exating
brands kke Graham & Green and 1 Rebel to the area) o3
well as doubling the Weitrose footprnt from 20,000 to
A0.000 sq fr.

At wandswarth, tollowing the successful granting of
planning in Nowmher 2019, we heve continued to work
with Wendswarth Borough Counal and the Greater Landon
Authonty to dehver the complex and detaled 5106
agreement. As enticipeted this will teke bme. Meanwhile,
we contimue to let eny of umits on the estate which coma
vacent on short erm leases The demand forindustral
space has cantinued o giow aver the past 12 manths

and central London 15 no exception New 1ents across the
estate are i the high £205 per sq ftand post tl 10 yeer end
we have let the only vacency W Sweaty Betty, the highly
successiul UK lesure end festion retailer,

REVENUE AND REVENUE OUTLOOK

Revenue carnings fod the current year of 12.25p were 16
lower than the poor wear

Eernings were enhenced by ¢ tox refund and some further
prior pencd withholding tax recovenes which reduced the
revenue tex cherge rate o only 1.9%. The mast significant
contnbution by far wes o tax refund and interest thereon
resutting from the final setilement of our fong mnng

Ht QLD daim with HMRC. The tax refund and interest
amounted o £1/m, and that, together with the {_mm-,

1o relecse some associated provisions meant an overell
contnbutien of 0.71p to the revenue account.

Long stending mvestors may ecclh that this clam wa

first mentioned inour reports for [|IG vear ended .mm

2010 following ¢ change in UK tex law that ell overseas

dividdend recepts were non-texabile in the UK from 1oty

2009 There were venous challenges wnmag through

the Fuiopean courts et this treatment of overseds

dividends should be apphcd to earher poriods These

have ultimately had some degree of success and lest

vear HARC ennounced that they would settle on the open

computations. We |'r;>aclled agreement wath HARC an o

wan open cormputations Just befare the fmanaal year end
end the tex repayment has been eceived,

140434 H131VHLS

In cddition to the tax refund receved we were chle to
reinstate losses which had been utilised for the relovant
perods These wall now be avealieble going forward,
although use waill be subject to current restrctions.

Our underlying mcome over the yeel fell by around 249
same companes cancellod dividends peyable easly in
the financicl year meaction to the COVID-19 pandemic,
or reduced distnibutions and thes was documented in the
Intenm Report. The second half saw a similer level of
ncome reduction gs that seen n the fiest half In addition,
i the final guarter of the vear some of our overseas
income wes impatted by sterling strength.

The longestarm outlook s stull not clear The UK has rolled
out o successtul vacanation programme and 2t the time
of witing the easing of restnctions 15 progressitng lang
the gavernmend roedmap timeteble This has enebled us
to be o httle more conhident about our UK earnings with
all companies (excluding some smell cap retail focused
Busimesses} iecommencing dridends far Fy22

There have been cleor real estate wanners and losers end the
portdolo remains well pasinaned towends those sectors which
have meintzined robust earmings through the pendermic. Qur
exposure to index-inked ncome remans high and we will
see dradend ncreases here alongside thuse names exposed
to buoyant condiions such s industnel and fogistics. Other
areas will remain under pressure.

On balance we expect the mcome from our partfolio to
increase over the current finanaal yeet as hoth the UK and
Continentel Furope expelience stiong post vacane recovengs.
However, 1t should be noted thet stronger stering would
reduce the come from our overseas holdings and 2oy
reductions 1n geenng woukl alsa lead to lower income.

GEARING AND DEBT

The Chawman has alieady commented on gearig levels
and alse hughlighted the benefits of aur flexible borrorang
structure.

This Hexsbility hes bean crucial in sugh a volatile year Oul
goanng osallated 1 a 0% range @5 we responded to
the dramatc changes i market sentiment through the
vedr Over the penod e utihsed both onrtevoling foen
faciities ond our CFD copabibty in ordes to achigve this.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMEINT TRUST 15
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we increased the capacity on our ICBC loan facikity during
the year and the remaining loans were fenewed at
existing levels, We did see small increases on margins
on some renewals. We also looked at the potential to
take out new cor extend our lenger-term debt. Our Euro
denaminated loan note 15 due for repayment in 2026 anc
the Sterling note in 2031, however the flexibility of the
short- term facilities is valuable in more volatite markets
and has certainly worked well for us in the current year.

We continue to explore new options in all markets.

OUTLOOK

As aconomies emerge from the gnp of the pandemic,
investors have focused on assessing whether the damage
{or growth) was temporary, fonger lasting or permanent.
Real estate investors are no exception and the range

of premiums / discounts 1o net asset values of Iisted
companies highlights the breadth of expectations acress
the property spectrum. The difficulty 1s that there 15 no
precedent for the profile of recovery in tenant demand
across so much of this asset class Clearly existing
structural shufts have been accelerated and new ones have
emerged which may prove maore permarnent than the
markets currently expect. All of this uncertainty leads us fo
facus on income sustainability and those markels where -
If demand does return — supply is constrained.

Whilst tenant demand is hard to gauge we do benefit
from a benign financing environment. Debt markets are as
accommedating as they have ever been, even if the long
end of the curve 1s rising. We see no reason for margins (o
widen 1n the near term. Infiationary pressures are buitding
and fixed income asset values reflect these expectations
Property offers income which 1s tied either directly
(index-inked) or indirectly (rental growth) tc economic
expansion. Qur intention 1s to remain focused on areas
whare that income 15 both sustainable and where it offers
growth,

In the near term, we aim to mamtain the exposure o the
private rented residential sector {particularly in Germany
and Sweden) as the market continues to undervalue not
only ihe quality of those earmings but also the steady
growth profile. There 1s risk - 1n Germany - that a left
wing coaltion government would amend the current

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

federal law resulting in local cities geting more control
over rents However the rent freeze n Berlin (over the
last 18 months) resulted in a reduction i the number of
available apartments as well as a slowing (n the pace of
new apartment delivery. We trust that common sense
will prevail over political dogma. Elsewhere, undervalued
income streams are evident 1n supermarkets and n

parts of the healthcare market. Alongstde index-linked
sustamnabilty we will also maintain exposure to the
greatest growth opportunities The structural shifts in
retail behaviour are still ongeing. Evolution In the speed
of delivery and post pandemic supply chain dynamics

wilk drive growth across the logistics landscape from ‘big
box" to Jast mile” We will continue to own the developers
where we see increases in the value of landbanks as well
as qrowing development margins Investor demand for the
end product shows no sign of abating

Office markets will remain volatile Businesses will spend
time working out their requirements in a post pandemic
world. Interaction and collaboration wiil drive office usage.
Tasks that can be fullilled without physical interaction will
be timetabled for remote working. A new balance will
develop with one sure fire certainty, the premium being
attached to best in class newly built space with complete
environmental credentials. Developers will respond to
this demand and we expect an acceleration in buildings
being identified for refurbishment earlier than previously
envisaged. Obsolescence of the existing office stock will
accelerate.

Post the year end 1n early May, St Modwen Properties
announced that an offer of 542p per share from
Blackstone, 3 24% premium to the last published NAV
had the support of the board. This company has a large
strategic landbank, a high qualty logistics portfelio and
a growing housebuilding unit and whilst 1 was trading
close 1o its asset value, private equity clearly feels it 1s
undervalued. This is a reminder, as stated in a number of
previous reports, that the depth of both equity and debt
avallability underpins hsted company valuations

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Fund Manager

3 June 201




Portfolio

Distribution of Investments @
as at 31 March 2
2021 2021 2020 2020 =
£000 % £000 % o
UK Securities 2
- quoted 395,644 2.3 352,188 30.4 e
UK Investrrent Properties 83,071 59 94,510 81
UK Total 478,715 34.2 446,698 385
Continental Europe Securities
- quoted mE01 65.8 708,597 611
investments held at fair value 1,400,516 100.0 1,155,295 96
- CFD (creditor)/debtos (141) - 8,698 0.7
- TRS creditor? - - {3.808) (0.3)
Total Investraent Positions 1,400,375 100.0 1,160,185 100.0
Investment Exposure -
as at 31 March
20N 201 2020 2020
£000 % £000 B
UK Securities
- guoted 395,644 25.6 352,188 289
- CFD exposure’ 45,441 29 32,257 26
-TRS exposure' - - 6,598 0.5
UK investment Properties 83,071 55 94,510 78
UK Total 524,156 34.0 485,553 398
Continental Europe Securities 94.5%
- quoted 921,801 595 708,557 582
- CFD exposure’ 100,560 6.5 24,47 20 I Equities
Total investment exposure’ 1,546,517 100.0 1,218,621 100.0 B UK Property
Portfolio Summary -
as at 31 March N
2020 2019 2018 2017
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Total investments £1,401 £1,155m £1,29Mm £1,316m £1,145m o
Net assets £1,326 £1,136m £1,328m £1,256m £1,118m o
UK gquoted property shares 28% % 3% 31% 29% o
Overseas quoted property shares 66% 61% 59% 62% 63%
Direct property (externally valued) 6% 8% 8% % 8%

Net Currency Exposures

as at 31 March
2021 2011 2020 2020
Company Benchmark RG] R S
% % % %
GBP 2719 28.3 270 268
EUR 51.2 509 530 531
CHF 6.7 6.6 79 79
SEK 129 129 10 n3
NOK 1.3 1.3 11 09
1 Net un:ealised (loss)/gain on CFD contracts held as balance sheet (creditor)/debtor.
2 Net unrealised loss on total return swap (TRS} contract held as balance sheet creditor.
3 Gross value of CFD positions.
4 Gross value of TRS position.
5 Total investments illustrating market exposure including the gross value of CFD and TRS pasitions. TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 17



investment Portfolio by Country

as at 31 March 2021
Market Market
value value
% %
Austria
CA Immabilien 9,092 0.6 Sweden
9,092 06 Kungsieden 36,061 25
T T wihiborgs 23,390 17
Belgium Cibus 18,201 13
Warehousing and Distribution de Pauw 24,1 18 Fabege 17,594 1.2
Aedifica 16,502 1.2 Casteffum 16,805 12
Cofinimmo 13,677 10 Fastighets Balder 16,216 12
VGP 8,070 0.6 Nyfosa 12,008 09
Xior 5,926 0.4 Catena 8,933 06
Care Property 4,811 03 Samhails 3,737 0.3
Montea 2,329 0.2 Pandox _ 2,6% 0.2
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 1,923 0 __ 155,635 ni
wereidhave a7 -
78,286 56 Switzerland
psp 4,999 30
Finland 41999 30
Kojamo 17,500 1.2
Citycon 2170 0.2 United Kingdom
19,670 14 SEGRD 60,357 43
o Derwent London 33,584 24
France Safestore Holdings 32,193 23
Argan 53,987 39 Landsec 31,327 2.2
Gecina 24,036 17 Stenprop 30,477 2.2
Covivio 13,457 10 Phoenix 25,213 18
Klépierre 10,364 0.7 Unite Group 25143 18
Altarea 1,351 01 Sirius 22,241 1.6
103,195 74 Pirton 21,330 15
C1S Hoidings 20,077 14
Germany Londonmetric Property 19,903 14
Yonovia 145,982 10.4 McKay Securities 18,104 13
LEG 63,904 46 Secure Income REIT 15,551 11
Deutsche Wohnen 54,499 39 Supermarket Income REIT 9,614 07
Aroundtown 39308 28 Tritax Eurobox 7634 0.5
VIB Vermoegen 37,980 27 PRS REIF 6,189 0.4
TAG Immaobilien 33,294 24 AssUra 5,194 0.4
Alstria 8,81 0.6 Target kealthcare 4,418 03
Deutsche Euroshop . 5283 0.4 Primary Health Properties 3,848 03
_ 389,059 278 Atrato Capital 1,468 01
Capital & Regional 1,062 01
ireland Capital & Counties m 01
Hibemia REIT 20,998 15 a 395,644 283
rish Residential Properties 2,990 0.2 i —
23,988 17 Direct Property 83,0 59
Netherlands CFD Pasitions {(141) 0.0
Furocommercial Properties 25,077 18 {included in current liabilities) o -
Unibail-Rodamco-westfield 14,499 10
NS| 4,099 0.3 Total Investment Positions 1,400,375 100.0
i I Companies shown by country of listing.
Norway
Entra 16,199 12
16,199 12
Spain
Arima Real estate 21,102 15
Merlin ___ 13901 14
41,003 29
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments

VONOVIA

1. VONOVIA (GERMANY)

31 March
2020

SEGRO

2. SEGRO (UK)

31 March Ef B
2021 2020

LEG

3. LEG (GERMANY)

31 March
2020

shareholding value  £146.0m (£144.4m)  Shareholding value £67.8m (£387m)  Shareholding value  £63.9m  (£75.3m)
% of investment % of investment % of investment

portioliot 9.4%  (11.8%) Holiot 44%  (3.2%) foliot 4%  (6.2%)
% of equity owned 0.5% (0.7%) % of equity owned 0.6%  (05%) % of equity owned 0.9% (1.2%)
Share price €55.70 (€44.868)  Share price 938.0p (764.0p)  Share price €122 (€102.7)
Yonovia is a German listed residential Segro has become the largest UK REIT by LEG is a German residential company
company and the largest real estate market cap, and is the [argest operator focused on the economically strong

company in Continental Europe by market
capitalization.

At the end of 2020, the company owned

a portfolio of EUR56.8bn split between
Germany (84%), Sweden (11%) and
Austria (5%}. Vonovia has developed a
large in-house craftsman organization
which allows the company to run a
strategy focusing o modernizing its
portfolio. The company is involved in the
whole value chain of the residential sector
via its rental business (81% of group
EBITDA), Hs value-add branch (energy

and multimedia related services, 8%),

its third-party development business

(6%) and its recurring sales program
(5%). Finally, the residential sector Is
subject to strict requlations in Germany

in particular. Vonovia’s management has
been particularly pro-active with public
authorities, complying with regulations
and assuming a social role which should
allow them 1o benefit from critical political
goodwill in the future. in 2020, Vonovia
delivered again strong results in absolute
and relative terms. The company delivered
a +17% total accounting return {computed
as the growth in NAV + dividend paid over
the year) against +14% on average for the
main listed residential peers. The like for
like rental growth at +3.1% was resilient
and one of the highest in the residential
sector despite the impact of the Berlin
rental freeze which implied a negative
rental adjustment in November 2020. The
total shareholder return since listing in
July 20713 has been +314%.

of logistics and industrial property listed
in the UK, with a total portfolio of £13bn
{split 53% in the UK, 47% in Continental
Europe, with 66% urban warehouses,
32% big boxes and 2% other uses). In
the UK, the group is mainly exposed to
Greater tendon industrial and fogistics.
Rental growth in these markets has
been extremely strong as there remains
an acute supply-demand imbalance,
fuelled by tenants’ requirements to

deal with the growth in e-commetce.

In Europe, Germarry and France are the
group’s largest markets with italy third;
these markets have a lowey, but still
positive, rental growth outlook (and are
geographically less space-constrained)
but continue to see yield compression
as investors have paid keener yields for
access to strong income. The logistics
sector has proved particularly resilient
during the COVID crisis, with high

rent cotlection. Segro has extensive
development exposure that it manages
to largely pre-let and develop at yields
significantly in excess of investment
values (¢.6-7% yield on cost vs. an EPRA
net initial yield of 3.8% at FY20). we
expect this to drive both earnings and
NAV growth, as well as high shareholder
total returns. The five-year total
shareholder return has been 177%.

regicn of North Rhine-Westphalia. It is
one of the [argest real estate companies
in Germany with mere than 144,000 units
under management and a combined
value of €14.6bn. In addition to the
strong focus on NRW, the company

is exploring opportunities on B and C
locations in adjacent states with the view
to leverage their market access as well
as their existing platform still within strict
and conservative financiat ceiteria. The
company has a distinct advantage to be
less exposed to regulatory risk than peers
with a Berlin exposure and to benefit
from a relatively high share of state
subsidised tenants (25% of the total).
The very low average rent per sqm at
EURS.96 as well as the relatively low value
per sqm of EUR,1503 make the company
particularly well suited to weather any
patential macro-econamic shock. In
addition, the company has shown over
the years a conservative management

on the liabilities side which continued to
be the case in 2020 with a LTV of 37.6%
{maximum target set at 43% for 2021),

an average debt maturity of 7.4 years (8.1
years in 2019) and a net debt to adjusted
E£BITDA of 11.8x. Ia 2020, LEG delivered

a strong total accounting returmn of 20%
ahead of the sector average at 14%. The
five-year total shareholder retum has
been +106%.

Notes.

> The percertage ot investment porttolio posilions set out abeve include exposures through CFD for bath the individual positions and the porticho
>The tnvestment Portfalio by Country pasitions set out on page 18 are the physical holdings only included in the investments held at fair value In the Balance Sheet The
profit or loss positions on the CFD contracts (1.e not the investment exposure) are also shown on page 18 and are included 1n the Balance Sheet as debtors or creditors

in the Current assets
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments (crinvec

[C wee
B WOHNEN

4, DEUTSCHE WOHNEN

IMARGAN

5. ARGAN (FRANCE)

31 March
2020

gecina

6. GECINA (FRANCE)

31 March
2020

(G ERMANY)
31 March
2020
shareholding value  £54.5m  (£36.4m)
% of investment
portfaliot 3.5% (3.0%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%)
shate price €39.78 (€34.71)

Shareholding value £54.0m (£46.8m)
% of investrment

portfaliot 35%  (3.8%)
% of equity owned 3.5%  (3.5%)
share price €80.4  (€£676)

Shareholding value  £53.9m  {£47.5m)
% of investment

foliof 3.5% (3.9%)
% of equity owned 0.7% 0.6%)
Share price €174 (€1207)

Deutsche Wohnen is Germany’s second
largest residential company with the bulk
of its exposure to Greater Bedin (76%

of the total portfolio Fv). The company
owns a high-quatity portfolio consisting of
more than 155,000 units with a combined
value of €26bn. In addition to the rental
business, the company is present in the
Nursing and Assisted Living business
which around represented 12% of the
Group EBITDA in 2020 (target o get to
15% in the medium-term).The company
benefits from its development exposure
with a total investment cost of EUR5.9bn
{27% of GAV) split between build-to-hold
(EUR4.3bn, 62% of the pipeline) and build-
to-sell (EUR2.6bn, 38% of the pipeline).
in a context of the implementation of

the rental freeze in Berdin, the company
showed 2 resilient financial performance
in 2020 with a total accounting return of
14% in line with German residential peers.
The Greater Berlin portfolio was valued
at EUR2,853 per sqm on average which
leaves significant upside potential in the
future. As expected, post FY20 resylts we
had the positive unequivocal decision
from the court that the rental freeze

was anti-constitutional and therefore
cancelled. The five-year total shareholder
return has been +62%.

Notes

Argan is a French company, created in
2000 by Jean-Claude Le Lan, which has
been listed since 2007. The objective

of the company has been to build 2
portfolio of premium logistic assets which
guarantee a stable and high occupancy
rate at around 100%. The company is
vertically integrated and has full control
of the entire valye chain by identifying
future needs of prospective and current
tenants and developing assets on their
behalf. Therefgre, Argan is able to capture
the developer margin while having little
ta no risk on the letting side. in 2020,

the portfolio value amounted to EUR3bn
(100% exposed to France, 27% exposed to
Greater Paris region, 16% to the North of
France and 13% around Lyon).

The company delivered solid 2020 results
with an EPRA NRV per share up 19%

YoY and a DPS up 11%. The funding of

the company is based on a conservative
mix of 90% amertizable mortgage loans
with an average maturity of 8 years

and 10% of bonds. The relatively low
dividend payout at befow 50% alfows the
company to retain cash and reinvest in
new development projects while repaying
debts. The management of the company
has been assumed by its founder Jean-
Claude Le Lan who owns alongside family
members 40% of the share capital which
is a strong guarantee of alignment. The
five-year total shareholder return has
been +307%

Gecina is the largest office landlord in
Europe with a portfolio of more than
€14bn focused almost exclusively on

the Paris region (97% of the total office
value) and with a high share in Paris cty
{(60% of the total office value). it owns
also a portfolio of €3.6bn of residential
assets {of which EUR367m in student
housing) predominantly located in

the Paris region. Finally, the company
owns a portfolio of exclusive high

street retail assets for a value of €1.6bn
located in Paris city. The management is
capitalizing on a development pipeline
of more than €3.5bn (17% of GAY) to be
delivered in the next five years. This is a
continuation of the fotal return strategy
which has been implemented by the
company over the last couple of years:
in essence, redeveloping assets where
the management sees value creation
potential and disposing mature assets
to crystalize capital gains. Since the end
of 2014, the company has delivered 30
projects and generated EUR1.1bn of value
creation (EURIS per share). In 2020, the
company showed resiiience with 99% rent
collection, stable portfolio valuation and
Like for like rental growth of +2.3%. The
tinancial position of the company is very
solid with an 1TV at 35.6% and an average
debt maturity of 71 years,

The five-year sharehalder total retumn has
been +21.6%.

> The percenlage of Investment portfo.o positons set aut zbove incuce exposures through CFD for botk the individual positiars ard the portfoio
>The investment Portfolio by Counlry positiors set out ar page 18 are the physica’ hoicings only nciuded in the nvestrents held at tair value ir the Balance Sheet The
profit or loss pasitions on the CFD contracts ( e rat the nvesimert exposure) are also shewn on page 18 and are induded in the Bg ance Sheet as debtors or creditors

I the Current assets
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7. KLEPIERRE (FRANCE)

8. SAFESTORE (UK)

31 March EEELE]
2021 2020

PISIP

Swiss Property

9. PSP (SWITZERLAND)

31 march
2020

3t March
2020

Shareholding value £51.3m (Nil)
% of iavestment

portolio? 3.3% {0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0%)
Share price €19.89  (€17.57)

Shareholding value £44.0m  (£275m)
% of investment

portfoliot 2.8%  (2.3%)
% of equity owned 2.6%  {19%)
Share price 796p  (641p)

Shareholding value  £42.0m (Em)
% of investment

oliot 2.7% (2.3%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (0.6%)
Share price €115.20 (€120.70)

Klepierre is a European shopping

center operator, managing around 140
centers with a total portfolio valuation
of FUR22bn. The main exposures are

in France/Belgium (39% of total), italy
{18%), Scandinavia (17%) and Iberia
{10%). The company, like the rest of
shopping center owners, was impacted
by the COVID cisis in 2020 and therefore
reported an EPS down 27% YoY and an
EPRA NTA per share down 15% YoY. On

a relative basis, the company benefits
from its focus on Continental Europe
where shopping centers are anchored
by food retailers contrary to UK or US
centers anchored by department stores
which have been undergoing significant
challenges {partly driven by online
competition). The financial pesition of
the company is also more solid than its
direct peers with an t7V of 41.4% and

a net debt to EBITDA ratio of 10.8x. The
board benefits from the experience of
David Simon (Chairman of the Supervisory
Board), Chairman and CEO of Siman
Property Group which owns a 21%
stake in Kleppiere. The five-year total
shareholder return has been -34%.

Satestore is the UK's largest self-storage
operator, owning ¢.125 UK stores,
weighted towards London and the South
East {¢.60%). ln addition the company has
a large footprint in the Paris market and
has recently been expanding into new
European cities (through both §V structures
and outright ownership) taking footholds
in Holland, Spain and Belgium. Safestore
has a best in class operating platform
which, along with peer Big Yellow, allows
it to dominate the UK storage market,
particularly in terms of online search,

The company has driven consistent
eamings growth both organically {through
lke-for-like eccupancy and rate growth,
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions, a trend we expect to
continue over the medium term; the seif-
storage market has proved remarkably
resilient during the COVID-19 pandemic.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 172%.

Notes:

PSP Swiss Property is one of Switzeriand’s
leading real estate companies owning
properties velued at around CHF8.6bn.
These are mainly office and business
premises in prime locations in
Switzerland’s key economic centers.
Zurich represents 51% of the company’s
exposure (Genava at 14%). Vatancy rate
has consistently trended downwaid from
a level at 8.5% in 2018 to an historic

low of 3.0% at FY20. The company
reported solid results in 2020 with EPS
{excl revaluation) stable and NAV per
share growing by 3%. The company will
benefit from a development pipeline
adding EUR34m of rents (11% of current)
in the next three years. The pipeline is
mostly exposed to Zurich (85% of total
investment) and has a current pre-let
ratio of 77%. The financial profite of the
company is very conservative with an LTV
of 35%, average cost of debt of 0.47% and
a loan maturity of 5.5 years. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 48%.

> The percentage of investment portfolio positions set cut above include exposures through CFD for both the iIndividual positiens and the pertiolio
=The Investment Portfolio by Country positions set out on page 18 are the physical heidings only ncluded in the investments held at fair value in the Balance Sheet The
protit ar less positions an the CFD cantracts (1 e. not the mvesiment expesure) are also shown on page 18 and are included in the Balance Sheet as debtars or crediters

in the Cunent gssets
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Twelve Largest Equity Investments ccriinLed

@AROUN DTOWN**

10. AROUNDTOWN (GERMANY)

VlB Vermogen AG

11. VIB VERMOEGEN (GERMANY)

31 March JEELET[A)]
2021 2020

DERWENT
LONDON

12. DERWENT LONDON (UK)

31 march
2020

ﬂi&! 31 March

2020
Shareholding vaiue  £39.3m  (E20.3m)
mri:f“me"‘ 25%  (L7%)
% of equity owned 0.5% {0.3%)
Share prite €6.07  (€4.55)

Shareholding value £38.0m (£22.9m)
% of investment

toliot 2.5%  {19%)
% of equity owned 5.5%  (41%)
Share price €29.25 (€22.80)

Shareholding value £37.6m {Nil)
% of investment

portfaliot 2.4% (0%)
% of equity owned 1.0% (o%)
Share price 3228p (3270p)

Aroundtown is a diversified German-
based property company that owns a
EUR24.5bn portfolio. It has a diversified
commercial portfolio with exposure to
Office (60% of the commerdial portfolio),
Hotels {28%), Retail (9%) and Logistics
(3%). The majority of its expasure is

in Germany and the Netherlands {86%
together). The company is also exposed
to German Residential (14% of total GAV)
through its 39% holding in Grand City. The
portfolio has grown significantly since
Argundtown was listed in 2015, through a
series of deals, in particular, the takeover
completed in early 2020 of listed German
peer TLG iImmobilien. Mr Yakir Gabay
(advisory board deputy thairman) who
founded the company, still owns a 10%
stake in the company via its vehicle Avisco
Group {down from 27% pre TLG deal). In
2020, the cornpany closed EUR2.3bn of
disposals at a +3% margin to book value.
This year, the company will continue to
streamiine the portfolio with a disposal
pipeline of EURS00m while buying

back shares for 2 maximum amount of
EURS00m. The five-year total shareholder
return has been 58%.

VIB is a German company developing,
buying and holding commercial
properties, primarily in the high-growth
regions of Southern Germany. The
company pussues 3 develop or buy

and hold strategy aiming at growing

its eaming base while maintaining a

solid finandial structure, The real estate
portfolio (EUR1.4bn) incledes logistics and
light industrial properties (76% of total
rents), garden centers and DIY stares
(11%), grocery and discounters {7.5%). The
company benefits from a higher yielding
portfolio than peers at 6.8% implying

a superior EPS yield and more potential
for yield compression and therefore NAV
grawth in a mid to long-term horizon. The
vacancy rate has averaged 1.26% over the
last five years. Between 2016 and 2020,
FFO per share increased by 41%, NAV per
share increased by 42% and DPS increased
by 36%. In 2020, the company maintained
a solid rmomentum with EPS growing by
+3% and NAY per share growing by 9%.
The five-year total shareholder return has
been 93%.

Derwent London is  London Office

owner and developer, with @ £5.4bn
portfolio covering ¢.5.5m sq ft, focused
primarily in the West End and "tech beit”
(0id Street, Clerkenwell etc) areas of
London. 2020 has been a difficult year

for office landlords following the impact
of COVID-19, which both brought the
transaction market and occupier market
to a halt, and left ongoing uncertainty
aver future office use as the necessity and
popularity of working from home grew.
We believe the role of the office remains
important however, and think that
Derwent London is the best placed London
Office landlord to weather the COVID-19
storm given a) its very defensive balance
sheet (LTV 18%), b) the ongoing spread
between prime office yields in London
and other European cities {c.100bp), which
we believe will support valuations even
2s ERVs soften and c) the company’s high
quality development capabilities which
continue to create value as schemes like
Soha Place, The Featherstone Building and
19-35 Baker Street complete. The five-year
total shareholder return has been 18%.

Notes.

> The percentage of Investment pertfolio positions set out above Include expesures through CFO for both the individugl pesitiens and the portfolio
>The Investmert Portfolia by Courtry pesitians set out on page 18 are the physical holdings only n¢luded .n the investrents held at faic value ir the Baiance Sheet The
pratit or 1655 positions on the CFD contracts { e. rot the investrment exposure) are also shown on page 18 anc are induded in the Balance Sheet as deblars or ¢reditors

in the Current assels
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Investment Properties
as at 31 March 2021

spread of Direct Portfolio by Capital Value (%)

as at 31 March 2021

‘a@ £nd oTLondon
Inner London®
South West
@_. =t

*Inner London defined as inside the Nerth and South Cireular.

Lease Lengths within the Direct Property Portfolio

as at 31 March 2021

Retail  Industrial
42.9% -
1.6% 31.2%
- ) 9.2%
T 4as% 404w

as at 31 March

Gross rental income

0to 5 years
51010 years

10 to 15 years
15 to 20 years
20+ years

Year 1

24%
7% Years 2-5
53% Years 5+
0%
6%

VALUE IN EXCESS OF £10 MILLION

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London SW18

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge
Road, London W2

40.4%

Contracted Rent

Residential
and
Ground Rents QOther Total

14.5% 0.6% 58.0%
32.3%
9.2%

0.6% 100.0%

£3,000,000
£10,000,000
£19,000,000

VALUE LESS THAN £10 MILLION

0 Centre, Gloucester Business
Park, Gloucester GL3

e

Sedor Mixed Use Sector Industrial Sector . Industrial
Tenure Freehoid Tenure Freehold Tenure Freehold
Size (sq i) 64,000 Size (sq ft} 36,000 size (sq ft) 63,000
Principal  Waitrose Ltd, Graham & Green, Principal  Kougar Tool Hire Ltd Principal  Infusion GB
tenants Happy Larnb Hot Pot, tenants Page Lacquer tenants

1Rebel, Specsavers Lockdown Baker

The property compsises a large mixed-
use block in Bayswater, constructed
in the mid-1970s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres on the north
east corner of the junction of Bishops
Bridge Road and Porchester Road,
close to Bayswater tube station and
the Whiteleys Shopping Centre. The
commercial element was extended
and refurbished in 2015 with a new
20 year lease being agreed with
Waitrose.

Site of just over an acre, 50

metres from Wandsworth Town
railway station in an area that is
predominantly residential. The estate
comprises 16 small industrial units
generally let to a mix of small to
medium-sized private companies.
Planning permission granted in
Decernber 2019 for a mixed-use
employment led redevelopment.

The 10 Centre comprises six industrial
units occupied by two tenants and sits
on a 4.5-acre site. Gloucester Business
Park is located to the east of Junction
11A of the M5 and one mile to the
east of Gloucester City Centre. The
property also has easy access to the
A417 providing good links to the M4
via junction 15,
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13

140d3Y DIL3LVHLS




Investment Objective and Benchmark

The Company’s Objective is to maximise shareholders’ totai return
by investing in the shares and securities of property cempanies
and property related businesses internationally and also in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe
Capped Net Total Return index in Sterling. The index, calculated
by FTSE, is free-float based and as at 31 March 2021 had 105
constituent companies. The index limits exposure to any one
company to 10% and reweights the other constituents pro-rata.
The benchmark website www.epra.com contains further details
about the index and performance.

Business Model

The Company's business model follows that of an externally managed
investment trust,

The Company has no employees. Its wholly non-executive Board of Directors
retains responsibility for corporate strategy; corporate governance; risk and
control assessment; the overall investment and dividend policies; setting limits
on gearing and asset allocation and monitoring investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMO Investment Business Limited as the Alternative
Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM”} with portfolio management delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager 1o the
Company on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Aiban Lhonneur is Deputy
Fund Manager. George Gay is the Direct Property Manager and joanne Elliatt the
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the arrangements under the
Investment Management Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 41 to 43.

in accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive
{"MFMD"), BNP Paribas has been appeinted as Depositary to the Company.
BNP Paribas alse provide custodial and administration services to the Company.
Company secretarial services are provided by Link Company Matters.

The specific terms of the tavesiment Management Agreement are set out on
pages 53 and 54.




Strategy and Investment Policies

The inwestrment selection process seeks todennfy well
manaqged compenies of all sizes The francge: geneially
regards future growth and capitel appreastion potentiat
more highly than immediate vield or discount o asset
velue,

Altheugh the investmant abiective aliows for nvestinent
on dan internctional besis. the beachmask 1s a Pen-
Cutopean index and the majciily of the ivestments

will be dorzted i that geagraphicsl aiea Direct property
nvestments are located 1o the UK only,

As a dedicated investar i the property secton the
Company cennot offer diversiicebion outside thet sector,
howeyer, within the portfolio there are imitations, as sot
out below, on the size of individual investments held to
ensure diversification within the portfolio

ASSET ALLOCATION GUIDELINES

The maximum halding in the stock ot eny one 1ssuer or of
a single asset1s hmited to 15 of the portfolic at the point
af acguisition. In addition, eny holdings 1 excess of 5%

of the portfolio must not in agaregote exceed A0% of the
partfolio

The tAanager currently applies the following guidelines for
asset allucauon,

UK hsted equities
Brrect Property UK
Other listed equities
Listed bonds
Unquéoted nvestments

GEARING

The Company may employ levels of geanng from tme
1o tme with the am of enhancmnyg retums, subecl o én
overall maximum of 25% of the portfolio vaelue,

in certen merket conditions the ianager nay consider 1t
prudent not to employ gearmig on the bolance sheet at o,
and to hold part of the portfolio i caslh

The carrent asset allocetion guidehne 1s 104 net cash to
25% net geaing (s e percentege of partfehio value).

PROPERTY VALUATION

Investment propetios are valued avery six months by an
externat independent valuer, Valuations of all the Group’s
properties as at 31 farch 2021 have been carmed out on
a "RICS Red Book ™ bests and these valuations have been
adopted in the accounts,

ALLOCATION OF COSTS BETWEEN REVENUE &
CAPITAL

On the basis of the Boad's expected long-term splt

of returns in the form of capital gains and income, the
Group cherges 75 of annuel base menagement tees and
hnence costs 1o cepital. All parformance fees are charyed
1o capital

HOLDINGS IN INVESTMENT COMPANIES

it 15 the Board's current intention to hold 1o more then
15 of the portfolion hsted closed-endad investmant
Campanies.

Some companies nmyvesting in commercizb or residential
property aie structured os listed externally managed
closed-ended investmenl companies and tharefore form
part of our mvestment universe. Althgugh this s not

a model usually lavoured by our Fund Higneger, some
imvestments cre made 0 these stiuctures in crder to
access a particular secton of the market or where the
manzagement teain is regerded as especelly stiang. |f
Hiese companies grow 2nd become o larger part of our
Investment universe and/or NSw ompanies come ta the
market 1in this format the Mancger may wish to increase
exposure to these vehickes 1t the ricneger wishes 1o
InCrease investiment 1o over 13 ' the Compory, will meke
2n ennouncement accordmgly

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Trust’s objective against
the following Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”):

KPI Board monitoring and outcome

Net Asset Value Total Return relative to the benchmark

The Directors regard the cut-performance of the -

Company’s net asset value total return in performance

in comparison with the benchmark as teing an overall
measure of value delivered to the sharehclders” over the
longer-lerm

The Board reviews the performance in detail at each
meeting and discusses the results and outlook with the
Manager.

Outcome
lyear 5vyears
NAY Total Return™ (Annualised) 207% 77%
Benchmark Total Return (Annualised) 159%  43%

* NAV Jotal Return 1s calculated by re-mvesting the dividends in the assets and
the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date Diidends are deemed to be
re-invested on the ex-dividends date for the benchmark

Delivering a reliable dividend which is growing over the longer term

The principal ebjective of the Company 15 a total return
objective, however, the Fund Manager alse aims to
delver a reliable dividend with growth over the langer
term.

The Board reviews statements on income received to date
and income forecasts at each meeting.

Outcome
Tyear 3Syears
Compound Annual Dividend Growth” 14%  11.2%
Compound Annual RP! 15%  2.6%

* The final dividend 1n the time series divided by the 1nitial dividend in the
penod raised to the power of 1 divided Dy the number of years In the seres

The Discount or Premium at which the Company’s shares trade compared with Net Asset Value

Whilst expectation of investment performance s a key
driver of the share price discount or premium to the Net
Asset Value of aninvestment trusl aver the longer-term,
there are periods when the discount can widen The
Board 15 aware of the vulnerabiity of a sector-specialist
trust to a change of investar sentiment towards that
sector, of to penieds of wider market uncertainty, and the
impact that can have on the discount.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Board takes pawers at each AGM to buy-back and
1ssue shares. When considening the merits of share buy-
back or 1ssuance, the Board looks al a number of factors in
addiion to the short and longer-term discount or premium
to NAV to assess whether action would be beneficial to
sharehalders overall Particular attention 15 paid to the
current markel sentiment, the potential impact of any
share buy-back activity on the liquidity of the shares and
on Ongoing Charges gver the longer term,

Outcome
Tyeat 5 years
Average discount” 02%  63%
Total number of shares repurchased Nil 150,000

" Average daily discount theoughau! the penad of share prce to
NAV with .income. Source Bloamberg.



KPI
Level of Ongoing Charges

The Board is conscious of expenses and aims to deliver a
balance between excellent service and costs.

The AIC detiniion of Ongoing Charges includes any direct
property costs in addition te the management fees and
all other expenses incurred in running a pubhicly listed
company. As no other investment trusts bold part of their
portfelio in direct property (they either hold 100% of their
portfclio as property securities or as direct property), in
addition to Ongoing Charges as defined by the AIL, this
statistic 1s shown without direct property costs to allow

a clearer comparison of overall administration costs with
other funds investing in securities

The Board monutors the Ongoing Charges, in companson
to & range of other Investment Trusts of similar size, both
property sector specialists and other sector specialists.

Board monitosing and outcome

Expenses are budgeted for each financial year and the
Board reviews regular reperts on actual and forecast
expenses throughout the year

Outcome
1year 5 years

Ongoing charges excluding

0,
performance fees 065%  0.65%

Ongoing charges excluding performance

.63%
fees and Direct Properly Costs 0.63%

0.62%

The ongoing charges are competitive when compared to
the peer group.

Investment Trust Status

The Company must continue to operate in order to meet
the requirements for Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax
Act 2070,

The Board reviews financial information and forecasts at
each meeting which set out the requirements outlined in
Section 1158.

The Directors believe that the condilions and ongoing
requirements have been met in respect of the year to
31 March 20271 and that the Company will continue to
meel the requirements.

The KPIs are considered to be Alternative Performance Measures as defined later in the Annual Report.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Principal and Emerging Risks and Uncertainties

In delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor the nisks that have been taken
in order to acfueve that seturn. The Board has included below details of the principal and emerging sisks and uncertainties
fating the Company and the appropriate measures taken in order to mitigate these risks as far as practicable,

The Board also considers new and emerging risks adding appropriate monitering and mitigation measures accordingly.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the response of financial markets, the uaknown duration of the pandemic and
ongoing impact on economies arcund the world together with operaticnal changes in response to government guidelines
continues to increase some of the risks listed below in companson with prior years.

Risk Identified Board monitering and mitigation

share price performs poorly in comparison to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are lisled on the Londan -+ The Board monitors the level of discount or premium at
Stock Exchange and the share price is determined by which the shares are trading over the short and longer-
supply and demand The shares may trade at a discount term.

or premium to the Company’s underlying NAY and this

discount or premium may fluctuate over time. The Board encourages engagement with the sharehelders

The Board receives reports al each meeting on the activity
of the Company’s brokers, PR agent and meelings and
events altended by the Fund Manager

The Company’s shares are available through the BMO
share schemes and the Company participates in the active
marketing of these schemes. The shares are also widely
avatlable on open architecture piatferms and can be held
directly through the Company’s reqistrar.

The Board takes the powers to buy-back and 1o issue
shares at each AGM.

Poor investment performance of the portfolio relative to the benchmark

The Company’s portfolic is actively managed. In addition - The Manager's chjective 1s to autperform the benchmark.
to investment secunties the Company aiso invests in The Board regularly reviews the Company’s long-term
commercial property and accordingly, the portfolio may strategy and investment guidelines and the Manager's
not follow or outperform the return of the benchmark relative positions against these.

The Management Engagement Commiitee reviews the
Manager’s performance annually. The Board has the
powers to change the Manager (f deemed appropriate.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST



Risk identified Board monitoring and mitigation 5
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Market risk &

Both share prices and exchange rates may move rapidly - The Board receives and considers a reqular report from 7

and adversely impact the value of the Company’s the tManager detalling asset allocation, investment =_°1

portfolio. dedisions, currency exposures, geanng levels and rationale

o N in relation to the prevailing market conditions.
Although the portfelio is diversified across a number of

geoqgraphical regions, the investment mandate is focused «  The report considers the potential impact of 8rexit and the
on a single sector and therefcre the portfolio will be Manager’s response in positioning the portfalio.

sensitive towards the property sector, as well as global
equity markets more generally.

The report considers the current and potential future
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the ongoing
Property companies are subject ta many factors which implication for the property market and valuations averall
can adversely affect their investment performance, these and by each sector.

include the general economic and financial envircnment

in which their tenants operate, interest rates, availability

of investment and development finance and regulations

Issued by gavernments and authonties.

Althcugh we have now exited the Furopean Union the
structure of our future relaionship with Continental
Eurcpe is still evolving and there could be animpact on
occupation across each sector.

The COVID-19 global pandemic dominated the financial
year. This has changed the way we live and work,
creating unprecedented uncertainty regarding the impact
on economies and property markets around the world
both in the short and longer term.

Any strengthening or weakening of Sterling will have

a direcl mmpact as a proporlion of our Balance Sheet 15
held in non-GBP denominated currencies. The currency
exposure 15 maintaned in line with the benchmark and
will change over time. As at 31 March 2021, 72.1% of the
Trust's exposure lies to currencies other than GBP
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk Identified Board monitoring and mitigation

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings in the underlying portfolio putting
pressure on the Company’s ability to grow the dividend
could result frem a number of factors:

lower earnings and distributions in investee
companies Companies in seme property sectors
continue o be negatively impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic. Companies in some sectors cancelled or
reduced dividends during the last financial vear as a
precautionary measure to protect their balance sheets
in the short term. Although mast have returned to
paying dividends, some are at a lower level than
previcusly and others are continuing to withhold
dividends;

prolanged vacancies in the direct properly portfolio
and ‘ease or rental renegolialions as 3 result of
CovID-19,

strengthening Sterling reducing the value of averseas
dividend receipts in Sterling terms The Company

has seen a material Increase in the level of earmings
N recent years. A significant factor in this was Lhe
weakening of Sterling following the Brexit deaision.
Sterling strengthened in the last quarter of the
financial year. This may continue or reverse again

in the near or medium term as the longer term
implications of Brexit and the COVID-19 pandemic and
the impact on the UK and Furopean economies are
understood Strengthenming of Sterhing would lead to 3
fall in earnings;

adverse changes m the lax lreatment of dividends or
other income received by the Company; and

changes in the timing of dividend recepts from
investee companies

The Board receives and considers reqular income
forecasts.

Income forecast sensitivity to changes in FX rates is also
monitored.

The Company has substantial revenue reserves which can
be drawn upon when required

The Board will continue to meniter the impact of COVID-19
and the long term implications for income generation.
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Risk tdentified Board monitoring and mitigation

Actounting and operational risks

Disruption er faslure of systems and processes
underpinning the services provided by third parties and
the risk that these suppliers provide a sub-standard
service.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
operational response from the manager and service
providers has been closely monitored.

Third party segvice providers produce periedic reports 1o
the Board on their control environments and business
continuation provisions on a regular basis.
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The Management Engagemenl Committee considers the
performance of each of the sefvice providers on a reguiar
basis and considers their angeing appointment and terms
and conditions.

The Custedian and Depository are respensible for the
safequarding of assets. In the event of a loss of assets
the Depository must relurn assets of an identical type
or correspanding amount unless able to demaenstrate
that the loss was the result of an event beyond their
reasonable conltral,

Monitornng the quality and timeliness ol service as S
service providers respond to COVID-19 requlations and *
gutdelines, in particular with widespread home working

and consideration of the durability of the arrangements.

Many organisations are now planning to incorporate

home warking into their operational structure as a

permanent feature.

Financial risks

The Company’s investment activities expose it to a
variety of financial risks which include counterparty
credit risk, hquidity nsk and the valuation of financial
Instriments. Any impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has
been considered.

Detalls of these 11sks together with the policies for
manaqing these risks are found in the Notes to the
Financial Statements in the full Annual Reports and
Accounts,

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepted by HM Revenue &
Customs as an investment trust, subject to continuing
to meet the relevant eligibility conditions. As such the
Company 1s exempt from capital gains tax on the piofits
realised from the sale of investments.

Any breach of the relevant eligibility cenditions could
iead to the Company losing investmenl trust status and
being subject to corporation lax on capital gains realised
within the Company’s portfolio

The Investment Manager moniters the investment
portfolio, iIncome and proposed dividend levels to ensure
that the provisions of CTA 2010 are not breached. The
resulls are reported to the Board at each meeting.

The incarme forecasts are reviewed by the {ompany’s tax
advisor threugh the year who also reports to the Board
on the year-end tax position and reposts on (TA 2010
compliance.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk Identified Board monitosing and mitigation

32

Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Failure to comply with the London Stack Exchange

Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
rules; fallure to meel the requirements under the
Alternative Investment Funds Directive, the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006 and olher UK, Furopean
and overseas legislation affecting UK companies.
Fatlure to meet the required accounting standards or
make appropriate disclosures in the Interim and Annual
Reports

The Board receives reqular requlatory updates from
the Manager, Company Secretary, legal advisors and
the Auditors. The Board considers these reports and
recommendations and takes action accordingly.

The Board recerves an annual report and update from the
Depository

Internal checklists and review procedures are in place at
service providers.

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearing, either through the use of bank debt or through
the use of derivatives may be utilised from time to time
Whilst the use of gearing is intended to enhance the NAV
total return, it will have the opposite effect when the
return of the Company’s investment portfolio is negative
or where the cost of debt is higher than the return from
the portfolio.

The Board receives reqular reports from the Manager on
the levels of gearing in the portfolio, These are cansidered
against the geaning limits set in the Investment Guidelines
and also in the context of current market condtions and
sentiment. The cost of debl 1s monitored and a balance
sought between term, cost and flexibility.

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

Loss of portfolio manager or other key staff.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST

The Chairman canducls regular meetings with the Fund
Management team.

The fee basis protects the core infrastructure and depth
and quality resources. The fee structure incentivises
outperformance and is fundamentat in the ability te relain
key staff.



Viability Statement

In accordance with provisian 31 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, which requires the Company to assess
the prospects of the Company over the longer term, the
Directars have assessed the prospects of the Company
over the coming five years. This period is used by the
Board duning the stralegic planning process and the Board
consider this period of time appropriate for a business of
our nature and size.

This assessment takes account of the Company’s currenl
position and the palicies and processes for managing the
principal and emerging risks set out on pages 28 to 32 and
the Company’s ability to continue in operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over the pericd of assessment.

In making this statement the Board carried out a robust
assessmenit of the principal and emerging risks facing the
Company, including those that might threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency and kquidity.

In reaching their conclusions the Directors have reviewed
five-year forecasts for the Company with sensitivity
analysis to a number of assumplions; investee company
dividend growth, interest rate, foreign exchange rate, tax
rate and asset value growth.

In the assessment of the viability of the Company
the Directors have noted that:

The Company has a long-tesm investment strateqy
under which it invests mainly in readily realisable,
publicly listed securities and which restncts the level of
borrowings.

Of the current portfolio, 50% could be liquidated wilhin
five trading days and 6%% within 10 trading days

On a Group basis, Current assets exceed current
iiabilities at the Balance Sheet Date.

The Company Invests In 1eat estate related companies
which hold real estate assets, and invests in commercial
real estate directly. These investments provide cash
receipts in the form of dividends and renlal income.

The Company is able tc take advantage of its closed-
ended Investment Trust structure and able to hold &
proporlion of 1ts portfalio in less liquid direcl property
with a view lo lang-term cutperformance.
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Al the Balance Sheet Date the Company had
£35 million undrawn on ils revolving loan facilities.

The structure has also enabled the Company Lo
secure long-term financing. EUR 50 million loan notes
issued 2016 dre due to mature 3t par in 2026 and
GBP15 million loan notes 1ssued on the same date are
due lo mature at par in 2031,

The impact of COVID-19 on the UK and European
commercial property markets remains a consideration.
This resulted in a reducticn m dividend receipts from
investee companies in the year to 31 March 2021 wilh
some companies withhalding or reducing dividends.
The majority of companies have returned to paying
dividends, although some at lower levels than before
the pandemic. As a result an improvement in income
Is antiopated in the forthcoming year. The longer
term impact on some sectors is still difficult Lo assess,
however the company has low exposure to these
sectors.

The direct property portfclio has been well positioned
in respect of the COVID-19 crisis and rental collection to
date has been robust. We have very hmited exposure
to retail and some smaller occupters (n the hospitality
sector, however, overalt the expected drop in income
from the direct portfolic in 2020/21 was not maternal
and likewise 15 not expected to be In the forthcoming
year.

The expenses of the Company are predictable and

modest 1N comparison with the assets. Regufar and

robust monitoring of revenue and expenditure forecasts

are undertaken througheut the year. The Company L
could suffer a reduction in earnings of 95% and stil be S
able to meet its liabilities as they fell due
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Viability Statement continued

The Company has no employées and consequently
does not have redundancy or other employment
related liabilities or responsibilities.

The Company retains title to its assets held by the
Custodian which are subject to further safequards
imposed on the Deposilary.

The impact of Brexit and COVID-19 have been
considered in terms of the potential effect on Sterling.
72% of the portfolio 1s exposed to currencies other than
Sterling.

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

Real Estate will continue to be an investable sector of
international stock markels and investors will continue
to wish to have exposure to that sector.

+  (losed-ended Investment Trusts will continue to he
wanted by investors and regulation cr tax legislation
will not change to an extent to make the structure
unattractive in comparisan Lo other investment
products.

- The performance of the Company will continue to be
satisfactory. Should the performance he less than the
Board deems to be satisfactory, it has the appropriate
powers to replace the Investment Manager

The Board has concluded that the Company will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the coming five years. The
Company’s business model, capital structure and
strategy have enabled the Company to operate
over many decades, and the Board expects this to
continue into the future.
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Corporate Responsibility

Approach

Environmental, Sooial and Governance ("ESG”) factors

can present both opportunities and threats to the
performance we aim to deliver to our shareholders The
Board is therefore committed to taking a responsible
approach on ESG matlers. This covers the Company’s awn
responsitilities on governance and reporting and, the most
material way in which the Company can have an impact,
through responsible ownership of the investments that are
made on its behalf by its Manager.

As a long-term investor, governance and sustainability
considerations have always been embedded in gur
Manager’s Investment Process. £SG risk assessments

and considerations are integrated into the detailed
fundamental investment research and analysis that takes
place on any potential investment before 1t is considered
for inclusion in the portfolio and continues on an ongaing
basis lor all investments held.

This approach 1s in line with the definition of an Article
6 Fund under the EU's Sustainable Finance Disclasure
Regulations whilst this 1s currently European not UK
requlation it is nonetheless a widely utilised definition,

There are two fundamental considerations to investment
In preperty companies, the assets themselves and therr
management. The Manager seeks to invest In sustainable
assets which are managed by quality teams in a well
governed corporate structure. As g result, there has

been a long-standing and strong cuiture of stewardship

in the Manager’s investment approach. The fManager
believes that engaging with companies s best in the

first instance, rather than simply divesting or excluding
investment opportunities. However, there are instances
where governance matters have driven a decision not to
invest In a company. As one of the largest teams investing
in Pan-European real estale equities, our Manager meets
with a significant number of the management teams of
inveslee and polential investee companies each year and
has a robust record of engagement with an agenda of
reducing risk, improving performance and encouraging
best practice. Whilst likety an elevated number reffecting
the impact of Covid, over the course of the year, our
management team participated in 380 individual or group
meetings with companies and their management teams.

Corporate Gavernance disclosure requirements have
increased transparency enormausly 1N recent years
and enabled informed engagement, with soaal and

employment practices also gaining increased focus and
disclosure. Environmental measures are now rapidly
coming to the fore and with wider disclosure requirements
being placed ugon our investee companies, as a result the
Manager is able to scrutinise more easity other measures
such as clmate change and sustainability policies and
outcomes.
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Company Corporate Governance and Reporting

The Board also recognises the importance of the
Company's own Governance and disclosures. The
Company's compliance with the revised AIC Code of
Corporate Governance is detailed in the Corporate
Governance Statement on page 44 of this Annual Report

Under Seclion 414 of the Companies Act 2006 there is the
requirement (o detail information about employee and
human nghts; including infermation about any policies

it has in relation to these matters and effectiveness

of these policies As the Trust has no employees, this
requirement does nol apply The Campany is not within
the scope of the UK Modern Slavery Act 2015 because it
has not exceeded the lurnover threshold and is therefore
not obliged to make a slavery and human trafficking
staternent. The Directors are satisfied that, to the best of
their knowledge, the Company’s pnncipal suppliers, which
are listed on page 108, camply with the pravisions of the
UK Modern Slavery Act 2015,

The Board currently comprises three male Directors and
two female Directors The activities of the Nomination
Commitiee 1n relation to the board changes are referred
to 1n the Nomination Committee Report on pages 51 and
52. The Board's diversity policy is outlined in more detail
in the Corporate Governance Report. The Manager has an
equal opportunity policy which is set out on 1ts website
www.bmo.com

Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise of
Voting Power

The Board has approved a corparate governance voting
policy which, in 1ts opinion, accords with current best
practice whilsl maintaining a pnimary focus on financial
relurns.

The exercise of vating rights attached to the portfoho
has been delegated to the Manager. Where practicable,
all shareholdings were voted at all company meetings
in the financial year In accordance with BMOGAM's
own corporate governance policies This ensures that

a strong, consistent approach 1s taken to proxy veting
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Corporate Responsibility continued

wihich backs up and reinfoices engagement, takes &
obust line on key governance 1ssues such @s executive
pay and integrates environmental, socal & diversity
issues and sustamability proctices intg the voting pioces
The tranager reguierly engeges with compeanies on
Governance matters, supported by our significant stakas
large property companics. 0w size i this speciehst area
of the equity merket hes helped ensure our views cre
hoerd, augmented by the siength of BrQs Responsible
teem and thew broader engagesiment.

Investment

BrOS Responsible Investment Annuzl Review provides
mote mtarmation on its irm-level stewerdship policies,
as well as how these comply with the expectations of
the UK Stewardship Code 2020 This 15 evalleble of
e HIMOQAM (oI

Buring the financial year the company voted against ot
keast one manegement proposel ot 3790 of shareholder

meatings and engeged wath 19 componies (17 companies
ngaged on GIPoIcte goveINances 155U0s)
Environmental

Ervaranmental pohices v the property sedor focus Lirgely
an sustanabiity and dimezte charge, Cimate chenge =

ane of the deliring chellenges of moden tmes

The management team haeve sourced date end research
from severctp Owdws. includimg the BIAO Responsinle
ivestmant feam, fSCHand GRESB The quantity and
denth of dato avorlable nour sectur vanes greetly, the
larger companies now dave twarrs dedicatad to providing
chvironmental mpact dare end reporting, however many
of our companies are smell and du not canrently contnbute
deta to the organisetions providing enalyses o the nvestor
cormmunit,, With enaronmental 1ssJes coming to the fore

and inewitable increcsed legislation we expact tu 568 faxr\-,
repnd impravements ead stendardisehon in data prowision,
inceeasiac our anihity 1o engoge wath compznies an thess
matters

GRESE
GRESE +5 2 mussin dien end inestor led argamization
pioading stenderdised and cehidoted Em pnma -2,
S“J“'I"| ol Goamnerce r’ESG) etz captal mersets
e 2000, GRESR 1S5 wdlon
s, Di“‘lmmg oen encuzl el @
S35E3sM T SCOMR A1 partiepeting companies end i 2
ounhe disglosira seare for all istad ree R3S

S5l Senre

stabhst

1M CO s Oyl

eslote com
renes Ly ronment
detr contr b

= matics hesed cn

8] og

Ot ines, semnlst 1020l

Sacrcl o o
directl; from

disclnsurs 5o

ikl

1 lesel of BS0 discliosars b,
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Iisted property compenies and ROTS - Further detail on
GRESB con be tound ol weirwgiesh.com

S

FSCHESG research covers a wide renge of environmental
impect meesures mcluding CO2 and greenhouse gas
2IMPSsI0ns, energy and water usage, in addition to wider
carperate qovemeance scores  Further detail cen be found
At wesraescrcomyou-solulions fesg-nvesting /asg-ratings

Coverage of our sectol 1s set out m the table below. Where
coverage 1s hased on public date, a significant proportion
15 chuded, whereas wheie speaific dota hes to be
submitted by compenies the coverage 15 curtently much
thinner.

£5G data coverage by % weight

GRESB

msil

Real Estate Assessment  Public Disclosure Company Rating

fund Benchmark Ffund Benchmark Fund Benchmark

Rated 54 4 55, Ly 99% B3m. 9% ¢
Uneted) i L 1% 17" 2
Tow 100% T00%: 100% 106% 100% 100%
R U SR S BT P T neley y

' ' ‘* nyt i [

Parttolio-weghiod carban intenstty

For the first vear e are disclosing, o *)&"ﬁ we cen, the
poittolio-asighied caibon intensity of the total porfuho
Howeves, we stll oaly have datz on 82+ of our eguity
portfolic and 97 o of the index As far as tha dote allows,
wi have mepped the Corhon Intensity (meesuied n
of CO2 Stopa 1 and 2 emissions per Smoof scles) acaimnst
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As can be seen in the chart above, the fund's porlfcho
weighled carbon intensity was broadly in line with that of
the benchmark, whilst significantly lower than the wider
global equity index This reflecls the fact that for property,
this 15 largely measuring the impact of ongoing emissions
from running 3 building whereas the wider index includes
operating companies with manufacturing capabilities and
the need to distribute goods worldwide

Far the property sector, the focus is currently on the
energy efficiency of buildings once they are occupled,
but we expect in time more attention will be paid to
the carbon ermitted 1n getting them built and eventually
dismantled which accounts for a large proportion of a
building's emissions cver its lifespan.

The message is thal this is still an area where it1s difficult
to make fully informed decisions The assessments from
the various data providers reach different conclusions

as they do not all score in a consistent way. We expect
this to iImpreve and change but it will be a journey Cur
Manager is dedicating a lol of resource Lo the analysis

of the information available and alsc has the benefit

of the knowledge of BMOs award winning Responsible
Investment Team. As cata coverage impraves, our
Manager will in turn be able to engage with our investee
companies on environmental matters and report to our
shareholders in more depth

Direct Property Portfolio

The Management team recogmises the importance of
sustainability in our business and in the direct property
assets which we invest in, hold and manage on behali of
our investors. Property impacts upon the environment,
the health and welibeing of occupiers, and the
communities in which they are siluated. Specific 1ssues
relevant to physical property investment portfelio include,
for example, responsible and sustainable refurbishment
practices, efficient use of resources throughout their
operation, and design and services to support the health
and wellbeing of occupters and local communities.

Environmental Audits are conducted on all our buildings
prior 1o purchase. The Company will take remedial

action or enforce tenant obligations to do sc wherever
appropriate. In managing Environmental, Social and
Governance issues across the direct portfolio - our
Manager engages with accupiers, external managers and
suppliers. As a responsible steward of the Company’s
assets, our Manager 15 committed to improving
sustainability charactenstics through interventions that are
carcfully planned and executed
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Our Manager has strong, direct relationships with
accupiers and 1s committed to working with them to
develop the data, measurement tools and resourcas to
set and achieve meaningful sustainabihity targets for the
assets in the portfolio. As part of this, and working with
the porticho property managers, a Sustainability Readmap
15 being implemented which largets biodiversity net gain
across the portiolio by 2025, improving energy, water and
waste efficiency, transitioning to 100% renewable energy
and reducing greenhouse gas emissions in line with
climate science.

By order of the Board

David Watson
Charrman

3 June 2021
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Directors

DAVID WATSON

SARAH-JANE CURTIS

KATE BOLSOVER
chairman Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Appointed: Appointed; Appointed:
April 2012 October 2019 January 2020
Experience: Experience: Experience:

David became Chairman following
the retirement of Hugh Seaborn on
28 July 2020. Since 30 September
2018 David had served as the Board's
Senior Independent Director when he
simultaneously handed Chairmanship
of the Audit Committee to Tim, 3
position he was appointed to on 1
January 2013. He spent 9 years as
Finance Director of M&G Group plc,
where he was a director of four
equity investment trusts, and more
recently at Aviva plc as Chief Finance
officer of Aviva General Insurance.
He is a Chartered Accountant and

has had a distinguished career in the
Financial Services Industry.

Kate previously worked for Cazenove
Group and [.P Morgan Cazenove
between 1995 and 2005 where she
was Managing Director of the mutual
tund business, and latterly direcior of
Corporate Communications. Prior to
this, she worked extensively in the
investment fund industry and was
managing Director of Baring’s mutual
fund group. Kate was also previously
a non-executive director of JPMorgan
American investment Trust plc until
2016, Senior Independent Director of
Montanaro UK Smaller Companies
Trust until 2019 and Chairman and
Trustee of Tomorrow’s People until
2017

sarah-Jane is 3 Member of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
Sarah-Jane was previously Business
Director at Bicester Village for Value
Retail. Before this, Sarah-jJane was
Director, Covent Garden for Capitai
and Counties PLC. She has also
worked for Grosvenor for 24 years
including as London Estate Director
(retail/Residential} and Fund Manager
for LiverpoolGNE.

skilts and Contribution to the Board:
Throughout his executive career, David
has accumulated relevant skills in
finance, audit and risk management
and experience in the investment
industry. His experience as SID and
chair in a number of boards have built

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
From her executive experience, Kate
contributes significant and relevant
skills of the investment industry to
the Trust. Kate's role in various boards
also gives her the relevant experience
in investor and shareholder

skills and Contribution 1o the Board:
Sarah-Jane has gained extensive
experience during her varied

career, particularly in the retail, and
experience sectors and for Fund and
Investment management activities,

significant experience in shareholder engagement,

and investor engagement.

Other Appointments: Other Appointments:; other Appointments:

David is currently Chairman of Kate is currently Chairman of sarah-Jane is currently Property
Aegon Asset Management UK plc Fidelity Asian Values PLC and Senior Oirector of Bicester Motion as well as

and he is a Director and Chairs the
Audit Committee at the Prudential
Assurance Company.

Independent Director of Invesco Bond
Income Plus Limited. She is also 2
non-executive Director of Baillie
Gifford & Co Ltd.
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SIMON MARRISON TIM GILLBANKS

Senior Independent Director Chairman of the Audit Committee
Appointed: Appointed:

September 20M January 2018

Experience: Experience:

Simon joined the Board of the Tirn is a Chartered Accountant, with

Company on 28 September 2011 and
became Senior Independent Director
on 28th july 2020. He has over 30
years’ experience in the European
property investment industry. He is
currently senior advisor for European
Real Estate at KKR {Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts). Prior to this he spent 19 years
at LaSalle Investment Management
where he was European CEO for 12
years with responsibility for a portfolio
of over €20 billion across Europe.
Simon has been based in Paris since
1990 having started his career in
London. Until 1997 he was a partner
at Healey & Baker (now Cushman &
wakefield) and from 1997 to 2001 he
was at Rodamco where he became
Country Manager for France. He joined
LaSalle in 2001 as Managing Director
for Continental £urope.

30 years’ experience in the financial
services and investment industry.
Most recently he spent 13 years at
Columbia Threadneedle Investments,
initially as Chief Financial Officer, then
Chief Operating Officer and finally as
interim Chief Executive Officer.

Skills and Contribution to the Board:
Simon brings in a wealth of
experience, particularly in the
European property market. He has
gained leadership and management
skills in his executive roles and
relevant skills in investment

skills and Contribution to the Board:
Tim brings a wide experience,
particularly in financial services

and investment management. His
previous financial experience during
his executive career informs him in
his role as the Chairman of the Audit

management. Committee.

Other Appointments: Other Appointments:

Senior advisor for European Real Estate Tim is currently 2 Non-Executive
at KKR (Kohlberg Kravis Roberts) Director for Henderson Global

Investors Limited and Henderson
Group Holdings Asset Management
Limited. He is also Vice-Chair of the
Board of Trustees of Blood Cancer UK.

All directors are independent of the manager and are members of the Audil Committee
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Managers

i

MARCUS PHAYRE-MUDGE

JO ELLIOTY

Marcus Phayre-Mudge, Fund Manager, joined the
Management team for the Company at Henderson Global
Investors in January 1997, initially managing the Company’s
direct property portfolic and latterly focusing on real estate
equities, managing 2 number of UK and Pan European real
estate equity funds in addition to activities in the Teust.
Marcus moved to Thames River Capital in October 2004
where he is also fund manager of Thames River Property
Growth & Income Fund Limited. Prior to joining Henderson,
Marcus was an investment surveyor at Knight Frank

(1990) and was made an Associate Partner in the fund
management division (1995). He qualified as a Chartered
Surveyor in 1992 and has a B5c (Hons) in Land Management
from Reading University.

Jo Elliott, Finance Manager, has been Finance Manager
since 1995, first at Henderson Global Investors then, since
January 2005, at Thames River Capital, when she joined
as CFO for the property team. She joined Henderson
Global investors in 1995, where she most recently held
the position of Director of Property, Finance & Operations,
Europe. Previously she was Corporate Finance Manager
with Londaen and Edinburgh Trust plc and prior to that was
an investment/treasury analyst with Heron Corporation
plc. Jo has a BSc (Hons) in Zoology from the University of
Nottingham and quelified as a Chartered Accountant with
Ernst & Young in 1988. Jo is 2 Non-Executive Director and
Audit Committee Chair of Polar Capital Global Financials
Trust plc.

P v N

GEORGE GAY

aid

ALBAN LHONNEUR

George Gay, Direct Property Fund Managey, has been the
Direct Property Fund Manager since 2008. He joined Thames
River Capital in 2005 as assistant direct property manager
and qualified as a Chartered Surveyor in 2006. George was
previously at niche City investment agent, Morgan Pepper
where as an investment graduate he gained considerable
industry experience. He has an MA in Property Valuation and
Law from City University.

Alban Lthonneur, Deputy Fund Manager, joined Thames
River Capital in August 2008. He was previously at Citigroup
Global Markets as an Equity Research analyst focusing on
Continental European Real Estate. Prior to that he was at
Societe Generale Securities, where he focused on transport
equity research. He has a BSc in Business and Manzgement
from the ESC Toulouse including one year at the Brunel
University, London. He also attended CERAM Nice High
Business School. in 2005 he obtained a post-graduate
Specialised Master in Finance in 2005 from ESCP-EAP.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited financial statements of
the Group and the Company and their Stralegic Report
and Report of Directors for the year ended 31 March
2021. The Group comprses TR Properly Investment Trust
plc and its wholly owned subsidiaries. As permitted by
legislation, some matters normally included in the Report
of the Directors have been included 1n the Strategic Repart
because the Board considers them to be of strategic
importance. Therefore, the review of the business of the
Company, recent events and outlook can be found on
pages 4 to 35,

STATUS

The Company 1s an investment company, as defined in
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operales as
an investment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Company has a single share class, Ordinary shares,
with a nominal value of 25p each which are premium
listed on the Londan Stock Exchange.

The Company has received confirmation from HM Revenue
& Cuslems that the Company has been accepled as

an approved investment trust for accounting penods
commencing on or after 1 April 2012 subject o the
Company continuing o meet the eligibility conditions of
Section 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing
requirements for approved companies in Chapler 3

of Part 2 Investment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax)
Requlations 2017 (Statutory instrument 2011/2999).

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has
conducted and will continue to conduct its aflais so as

to maintain investment trust status. The Company has
also conducted its affairs, and will continue to conduct

its affairs, in such a way as to comply with the Individual
Savings Accounts Requlations. The Ordinary shares can be
held in Indwidual Savings Accounts (ISAS).

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

AL 31 March 2021 the net assets of the Company amounted
to £1,326 mullion (2020: £1,136 million}, on a per share
basis 41797p (2020: 358 11p) per share

Revenue earnings per share for the year amounted to

12 25p {2020 14 62p) and the Direclors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of 900p {2020: §.80p) per
share bringing the total dividend for the year to 14.20p
(2019:14.00p) In arriving at therr dividend proposal, the
Board also reviewed the income forecasts for the year to
March 2022.

Performance details are set out in the Financial Highhghts
on page 2 and the outcome of whal the Directors consider

to be the Key Perlormance Indicators an pages 26 and 27.
The Chairman’s Statement and the Manager’s Report give
full details and analysis of the results for the year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND BUY-BACK ACTIVITY

At 31 March 2021 the Company had 317,350,980
(2020. 317,350,980) Ordinary shares in issue.

At the AGM in 2020 the Direclors were given power o
buy back 47,570,911 Ordinary shares. Since this AGM Lhe
Direclors have not bought back any Ordinary shares at
the nominal value of 25p each under this authority. The
outstanding authority 15 therefore 47,570,911 shares.

This authonty will expire at the 2021 AGM. The Company
will seek to renew the power to make markel purchases
of Ordinary shares at this year's AGM

Since 1 Apni{ 2027 to the date of this report, the Company
has made no market purchases for cancellation The Board
has not set a specific discount at which shares witl be
repurchased.

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

Detalls of the management arrangements and fees are
set outin the Report of the Management Engagement
Committee beginning on page 53. Total fees paid

lo the Manager in any one year (Management and
Ferformance Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group
Equity Shareholders’ Funds. Total fees payable for the

year ta 31 March 2021 amount to 1.2% (2020: 0 8%) of
Group Equity Shareholders” Funds. Included in ths were
performance fees earned (1 the year ended 31 March 2021
of £9,659,000 (2020: £2,683,000).

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND I£RS

The Group and Company financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021 have been prepared on a going
concern basis in accordance with Internationaf Financal
Reporting Standards {IFRS), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (1ASB), together with interpretations

of the International Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpratations Committee approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) that remain in
effect, to the extent that they have been adopted by the
European Umion and as regards the Group and Company
financial statements, as apphed in accordance with the
pravisions of the Companies Act 2006

The accounting policies are set out in note 1to the
Financial Statements on pages 73 10 77.
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Repert of the Directors continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s Financial Instruments comprise its
investment portfolio, cash balances, borrowings and
debtors and creditors that arise directly from its operations
such as sales and purchases awaiting settlement, profit

or loss balances on denvalive instruments and accroed
incorme and expenses The finanaal risk management
objectives and policies arising from its financial
instruments and exposure of the Company o nsk are
disclosed 1n note 17 to the financial statements.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors’ assessment of the longer-term viabiiity of
the Company is set oul on pages 33 and 34.

In assessing Going Concern, the Board has made a detaiied
assessment of the ability of the Company and Group to
meet 1ts liabilities as they fall due, including stress and
liquidsty tests which considered the effects of substantial
falls in investmeant valuations, substantial reductions

in revenue received and reductions i market liquidity
including the effects and potential effects of the continued
ecanomic impact caused by the Coronavirus pandemic. The
Board 1s satislied with Lhe operational resilience of service
providers despite COVID-19 and continues t¢ monitor thetr
performance throughout the pandemic,

In light of testing carried out, the cverall levels of the
investment iquidity held by the Company and the
significant net assel portfolio position, and despite the
small net current liability position of the Parent Company
and Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Company
and the Group have adequate financial resources to
continye in aperation for at least the next 12 months
following the signing of the financial statements and
therefore 1Lis appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has averall responsibility for the Group’s
systems of internal cantrols and for reviewing their
effectiveness. The Portfolio Manager 15 respensible for the
day to day investment management decsions on behalf
of the Group. Accounting and company secrelaral services
have both been outsourced.

The internal controls aim to ensure that the assets of the
Group are safequarded, proper accounting records are
maintained, and the financial information used within

the business and for publication 15 reliable Control of the
nsks 1dentified, covening financial, operational, comphance
and nsk management, 15 embedded 1n the controls of

the Group by a senies of reqular investment performance
and attnbution staterments, financial and risk analyses,
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AlFM and Portfalio Manager reports and quarterly control
reports. Key nsks have been identified and controls put in
place to mitigate them, incuding those not directly the
responsibility of the AIFM or Portfolic Manager. The key
risks are explained in more detall in the Strateqic Report
on pages 28 to 32,

The effectiveness of each third party provider’s internal
controls 1s 3ssessed on a continuing basis by the Compliance
and Risk departments of the AIFM and Portfolio Manager,
the Administrater and the Company Secretary. Each
maintains its own system of internal controls, and the Board
and Audit Committee receive requiar reports from them.
The cantral systems are designed to provide reascnable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss and to manage, rather than eliminate, nsk of failure to
achieve abjectives.

As the Company has no employees and its operational
functions are undertaken by third parties, the Audit
Committee does not consider 1t necessary for the Company
lo estabhish its own internal audit function nslead, the
Audit Committee relies on internal control reports received
from 1ts principal service providers to satisty ilself as to the
controls in place.

The Board has established a process for identifying,
evaluating and managing any major risks faced by the
Group. The Board undertakes an annual review of the
Group’s system of internal controls in ine with the Turnbull
guidance Business risks have also been analysed by

the Board and recorded in 3 nisk map that is reviewed
reqularly Each quarter the Board receives a formal
report from each of the AIFM, Portfelio Manager, the
Administrater and the Company Secretary detailing the
steps taken to monitor the areas of sk, including those
that are not directly their responsibility, and which report
the detalls of any known internal control failures.

The Board also cansiders the flow of information and the
interaction between the third party service providers and
the conlrols 1n place to ensure accuracy and completeness
of the recarding of assets and income The Board receives
a report from the Portfolic Manager setting cut the key
controls i operabon.

The Board also has direct access ta company secretanal
advice and services provided by Link Company Matters
which, through its neminated representative, 1s
responsible for ensuring that the Board and Commiltee
procedures are followed and that applicable regulations
are complied with,

These controls have been in place throughout the period
under review and up to the date of signing the accounts



Key risks 1dentified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Committee 1o ensure robust internal controls and
rmonitoring procedures are in place in respect of these
risks on an engoing basis.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE “AGM")

The AGM will be held on 27 July 2021 at 2.30pm at the Roval
Automobile Club, 89/91 Pall Mail, London SWY 5HS. The Nolice
of AGM is set out on pages 100 and 107. The full text of the
resolutions and an explanation of each is contained in the
Notice of AGM and explanatory notes on pages 104 to 107

MATERIAL INTERESTS

There were no contracts subsisting during er at the end

of the year in which a director of the Company is or was
materially interested and which is or was significant in
relation to the Company’s business No Director has a
contract of service with the Company. Further details
regarding the appaintment letters can be found on page 52.

DONATIONS

The Company made no political or chartable donalions
during the year (2020: £nil}.

LISTING RULE DISCLOSURE

The Company confirms Lhal there are no 1tems which
require disclosure under Listing Rule 9.8.4R in respect of
lthe year ended 31 March 2021.

VOTING INTERESTS

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applicable slatutes and other shareho!ders’ nghts,
shares may be issued wilh such nghts and restrichons as
the Company may by ordinary resolution deade, or {if there
is no such resolution or so far as it does not make specific
pravision) as the Board may dexide. Subject te the Articles,
the Companies Acl 2006 and other shareholders’ rights,
unissued shares are at Lthe disposal of the Board.

Vating

At a3 general meeting of the Company, when voting is
undertaken by way of a poll, each share affords its owner
one vote.

Restrictions on Voting

No member shall be entitted to vote if he has been
served with a restriction notice (as defined in the Articles)
after failure to provide the Company with information
concerning interests 1n those shares required 1o be
provided under the Companies Act 2006

Deadiines for Voting Rights
Voles are exercisable at the general meeting of the Company
in respect of which the business being voted upon 15 being

heard Voles may be exercised in person, by proxy, or in
relation to corporale members, by corporate representatives.

The Articles provide a deadline for submission of proxy
forms of not tess than 48 hours (or such shorter time
as the Board may determine) before the meeting {not
excluding non-working days).

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be held in uncertificated
form and, subject to the Articles, title Lo uncerlificated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevant system Subject
to the Articles, any member may transfer all or any of his
certificated shares by an instrument of transfer in any vsual
form or in any other form which the Board may approve

Significant Voting Rigbts

Al 31 March 2021, no shareholders held over 3% of voting
rights on a discretionary basis. However, at 31 March 2027
the following shareholders held over 3% of the voting
rights on a non-discretionary basis.

Shareholder

Brewin Dolphin Ltd 11.1%
Retail Investors - UK 8.9%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 7.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 51%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 5.1%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.9%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.8%
Charles Stanley Group plc 3.0%

* Sep ahove for further information on the voting nghts of Cidinary shares

Since 31 March 2021 to the date of this repart, the
Company has not been informed of any netifiable changes
with respect to the Ordinary shares.

Articles of Association

The Company’s Articles of Association may only be
amended by a special resolution al a General Meeting of
the shareholtders.

Amendments to the Articles of Assotiation will be
proposed at the 2021 AGM and further details are set out
on page 106 to 107,

Corporate Governance

Full details are given in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 44 ta 50. The Corporate Governance Report forms
part of this Directors’ Reporl.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of Directors 15 accountable te shareholders for
the governance of the Company’s affairs

This statement describes how the principles of the 2018
edition of UK Corporate Governance Code (“the Cede”)
issued by the Financial Reporting Councit {the “FRC™Y In
2018 have been applied to the affairs of the Company The
Code can be viewed at www.frc.org.uk.

Applicaticn of the AIC Code’s Principles

In applying the principle of the Code, the Directors

have alsg taken account of the 2019 Code of Corporale
Governance published by the AIC (the "AIC Code™), of which
the Company is a member. The AIC Code establishes the
framewaork of best practice specifically for the Boards of
investment trust companies. Furthermore, the AIC Code
has full endorsement of the FRC, which means thal AIC
members who report against the AIC Code, on the whole,
meet their abligations under the Code and the related
disclosure requirements contained in the Listing Rules. The
AIC Code can be viewed at www Lheaic co.uk.

The Directors believe that dunng the period under review
they have complied with the main principles and relevant
pravisions of the Code, inselar as they apply to the
Company’s business, and with the provisions of the AIC Code.

Compliance Statement

The Directors note that the Company did not comply with
the following provisions of the Code in the year ended
31 March 2021:

Provision 9. Due to the nature and structure cf the
Company the Board of non-executive directors does not
feel 1t is appropriate to appoint a chief executive

Provision 24. The Board believes that all Directors,
including the Charrman, should sit on all of the Board's
Comnmittees.

Provision 26. As the Company has no emplayees and its
operational functions are undertaken by third parties, the
Audit Commitlee does nat consider 1L appropnate for the
Company to eslablish 1ts own internal audit function. The
Company’s service providers provide assurance of their
effective Internal processes and controls.

Provision 32 The Board does not have a separale
Remuneration Lommittee The functions of a
Remuneration Commuittee are carried out by the
Management Engagement Committee
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Composition and Independence of the Board

The Board currently consists of five directors, all of whom
are non-execulive. The Board's independence, including
that of the Chairman, has been considered and all of the
Directors are deemed to be independent in character and
have no relationships or arcumstances which are likely to
affect their judgement.

The Board subscribes to the view expressed in the AIC
Code that long-serving Directors should not be prevented
from forming part of an independent majority. It does not
consider that the lenqgth of a Director’s tenure, in isolation,
reduces fis or her ability lo act independently. The
Board's policy on tenure 15 that continuity and experiance
add significanlly to the strength of the Board although
the Board believes in the merits of an ongoing and
progressive refreshment of its composition

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefit of diversily and as of the
date of this report the Board consists of three men and
lwo waomen.

Diversily 1s taken into account as part of the recruitment,
appeintment and succession planning process and

the Board is also aware of the developing corporale
governance with regard to ethnicity of individual

Directors. The Board is committed to appointing the most
appropnate candidate, regardless of gender or other forms
of diversity and therefore no targets have been set against
which to report.

Powers of the Directors

Subject to the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Companies Act 2006 and any directions given by speaial
resolulion, the business of the Company is managed

by the Board who may exercise atl the powers of the
Company, whether refating to the management of the
business of the Company or not. I particular, the Board
may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow
maoney and to morlgage or charge any of 1ls undertakings,
property, assets and uncalled capiial and to issue
debentures and other securities and to give security for
any debt, liability or obhigation of the Company to any third

party
There are no contracts or arrangements with third parties

which affect, alter or terminate upon a change of control
of the Company.



DIRECTORS

The Chairman 1s Mr Watson and the Senior Independent
Directos is Mr Marnson. Mr Watsen succeeded Mr Seabarn
as Chairman when he retired from the Board of Directer
tallowing the AGM on 28 July 2020. Mr Marrison succeeded
Mr Watson as the Senior independent Cirector on this

date The Cireclors’ biographies, on pages 38 and 39,
demanstrale the breadth of investment, commeraal and
professional experience relevant (o thesr positions as
Directors of the Company.

Directors’ retirement by rotation and re-election is subject
to the Articles of Association In accordance with the Code,
all directors will be subject to annual re-election

Ms Bolsover, Ms Curtis, Mr Gillbanks, Mr Marrison,

Mr Watson wiil all retire al the forthcoming AGM in
accordance with the Code and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election All Directors are regarded as
being free of any conflicts of interest and no issues In
respect of independence anise. The Board has concluded
that all Directors continue to make vajuable contributions

BOARD MEETINGS

and believe that they remain independentl in character
and judgement.

Directors are not compensated by the Company for loss of
office in an event of a takeover bid.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Audit Committee, a
Nemination Commiltee and a Management Engagement
Committee, which also carries out the functions of

a Remuneration Committee. All the Directors of Lhe
Company are non-executive and serve on each Committee
of the Board. It has been the Company’s policy to

include all Directors on alt Committees. This encourages
unity, clear communication and prevents duplication of
discussion between the Board and the Committees.

The roles and responsibilities of each Committee are set
oul on the indiidual Comrmuttee reports which follow. Each
Committee has written terms of reference which clearly
define 1ts responsibiliies and duties. These can be found
on the Company's website, are available on request and
will also be available for inspection at the AGM.

The number of meetings of the Board and Committees held during the year under review, and the attendance of

individual Directors, are shown below:

Board ' Audit
Attended Eligitle - Attended
-David ‘a;'atson"—- 6 6 2
Tim Gillbanks 6 6 2
Simon Marrison 6 6 2
Kate Bolsover 6 6 2
Sarah-Jane Curtis 6 2

MEC Nomination
Eligible Attended Eligible Aftended Higible
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2 1 1 1 1
2

1 1 1 1

In addition to formal Board and Commitlee meetings, the Directors alse attend a number of informal meetings to
represent Lhe nterests of the Company, and to discuss operational markets and succession planning

THE BOARD

The Board 15 responsible for the effective stewardship of the Company's affairs Certain strategic issues are manitored

by Lthe Board at meetings against a framework which has been agreed with the Manager. Additional meetings may

be arranged as required. The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision, which are
calegonsed under various headings, including stralegy, management, structure, capital, financial reporting, internal
controls, geanng, asset allocation, share price discount, contracts, investment policy, finance, risk, investment restrictions,
performance, corporate governance and Board membership and appointments.

In order to enahle them to discharge their responsibilities, all Directors have full and umely access to relevant information.
At each meeting, the Board reviews the Company's investment performance and considers financial analyses and other
reports of an operational nature. The Board monitors compliance with the Company's objectives and 1s responsible for
setling asset allocalion and investmenl and geanng limils within which the Portfolio Manager has discretion 1o act and
thus supervises the management of the investment portfolio, which 1s contractually delegated to the Portfolio Manager.
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Corparate Governance Report continued

The Board has responsibility for the approval of
nvestments in unquoted investments and any
Investments in funds managed or advised by the Portfolio
Manager. It has also adopted a procedure for Directors,

in the furtherance of their duties, to take independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

In line with the Companies Act 2006, the Board has the
power to autherise any potential conflicts of interest that may
anse and impose such imits or conditions as it thinks fit. A
register of potential conflicts is maintained and is reviewed at
every Board meeting o ensure all details are kept up-to-date.
Appropriate authorisation will be sought prior to the
appaintrment of any new Director or if any new conflicts anise.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Sharehalder relations are given high priority by the Beard,
the AlFM and the Portfclio Manager. The prime medium
by which the Company communicates with shareholders
15 through the intenm and Annual Reports which aim to
provige shareholders with a clear understanding of the
Company’s activities and their results. This (nformation is
supplemented by the daily calculation of the Net Asset
value of lhe Company's Ordinary shares which is published
on the London Stock Exchange

This information 1s also available an the Company’s
website, www trproperty.com together with a monthly
faclsheet and Manager commentary.

It 1s the intention of the Board that the Annual Report and
Accounts and Nolice of the AGM be 1ssued Lo shareholders
S0 3s to provide al least twenty working days’ notice of
the AGM Shareholders wishing to lodge questions in
advance of the AGM, of to contact the Board at any other
time, are invited to do so by writing to the Company
Secretary at the registered address given on page 108.

General presentations are given o both shareholders and
analysts following the publication of the annual resulls
All meelings between the Manager and shareholders are
reparted to the Board.

SECTION 172 COMPANIES ACT 2006

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 requires directors
1o actin good faith and 1n 2 way that 1s the mast likely
to promote the success of the Company. In accordance
with the requirements of the Compames (Miscellaneous
Reporting} Regulations 2018, below, the Company
explains how the Birectors have discharged their duty
under section 172 dunng the reporting penod Fulfilling
this duty naturally supocrts the Company in achieving its
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Investment Objective and helps to ensure that all decisions
are made 1n a responsible and sustainable way.

Upan appointment, Directors” are provided with a detailed
induction outlining therr duties, legaily and requlatory, as

a Director of a UK public limited company and continue @
requfarly recelve relevant lechnical updates and training.
Under their letter of appointment, the Directors also have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secrelary,
and when deemed necessary, the Directors have the
apportunity to seek independent professional advice in the
furtherance of their dulies as a director, at the Company’s
expense. The Company has a schedule of Matters Reserved
for the Board which clearly describes the Board's duties
and responsibilities. In addition, there are also the Terms

of Reterences of the Board’s Commuttees which outiine

the responsibilities that are delegated from the Board

The Terms of References are reviewed at least annually Lo
consider any requlatory and best practice developments.

DECISION MAKING

The importance of stakehaolder considerations, in
particular in the context of decision-making, 1s regularly
brought to the Board's attention by the Company
Secretary and taken into account at every Board
meeting, and a paper reminding Directors of that s
tabled at the start of every Board meeling. The Board
cansiders the impact that any matenal decision will
have on all relevanl stakeholders to ensure that it is
making a decision that promates the long-term success
of the Company, whether this be, for example, in
relation to dividends, new investment oppertumties or
the Company’s forward strategy, In addition, the Board,
along with the Manager, hold a meeling focused on
strategy on an annual basis to ook ahead 1n the market
and anlicipate potential scenarios and how this may
impact the Company's stakeholders

STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises the needs and importance of

the Company’s stakeholders and ensures that they are
cansidered during afl its discussions and as part of its
decision-making. Since the Company 15 an investment
trust that1s externally managed, the Company does
not have any employees (the Directors have a Letier of
Appointment and are not employees of the Company),
ner does it have & direct impact on the community

or envicgnment in the conventional sense. The Board
recognises its key stakeholders and explains below
why these stakeholders are considered important Lo
the Company and the actions taken to ensure that theis
interests are taken mto account



Stakeholder Group and why Board engagement

they are important

Shareholders

Shareholder support is The Company has over 3,000 shareholders, including institutional and retail investors. The
essential to the existence of Board is committed to maintaining open channels of communication and to engage with '
the Company and delivery Shareholders in a manner they find most meaningful in order to gain an understanding of

of long term strategy of the their views. These include the channels below:

business.

- Annual General Meeting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
participation from Shareholders at its AGM. Shareholders have the opportunity to meet the
Directors and Manager and to address questions to themn directly. The Manager attends the
AGM and provides a presentation on the Company’s perfarmance and the future outlook. The

i Company values any feedback and questions it may receive from Shareholders ahead of and

during the AGM and takes action or makes changes, when and as appropriate.
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Publications - The annual and half year reports are made available on the website

and sent to shareholders. These publications provide information on the Company and

its portfolio of investments and a better understanding of the Trust’s financial positien.
This is supplemented by daily publication of the NAV on the Stock Exchange and ‘
monthly factsheets on the Campany’s website. The Comnpany is open to feedback from
shareholders to improve its publications.

- Shareholder meetings - The Managéf meets with shareholders periodically and often and
feedback is shared with the Board.

Working with the Brokers - The Manager and Brokers work together to maintain dialogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board is provided
with reqular updates at meetings and outside meetings if required.

Shareholder concerns - in the event that Shareholders wish to raise issues or concerns

with the Board, they are welcome to do 50 at any time by writing to the Chairman at the
registered office, The Senior Independent Director is also available to Shareholders if they
have concerns that contact through the normal channel of the Chairman has failed to resolve
or for which such contact is inappropriate.

-
| The Manager

i Holding the Company’s Maintaining a close and constructive working relationship with the Manager is crucial, as
shares offers investors a the Board and the Manager both aim to continue to achieve consistent, long-term returns in
liguid investment vehicle | line with the Company’s investment objective. Important components in the collaboration

through which they can cbtain ~ with the Manager, representative of the Company’s culture include those listed below.
i exposure to the Company’s
diversified portfolio. The
Investment Manager’s
performance is critical for
the Company to successfully
deliver its investrnent strateqy - Ensuring that any potential conflicts of interest are avoided or managed effectively.
and meet its objective.

Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all levels, allowing time and
space for original and innovative thinking.

Ensuring that the impact on the Manager is fully considered and understood before any
business decision is made.

The Board holds detailed discussions with the Manager on al! key strategic and operational
topics on an angoing basis. In addition, the Chairman regularly meets with the Manager to
ensure a close dialogue is maintained.
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“of its regulators who have

. @ legitimate interest in how
: the Company operates in

' the market and treats its

- shareholders.

Corporate Governance Report contiued

Stakeholder Graup and why  Board engagement

they are important

External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the

Pepository and the Broker

A range of advisers enables
the Company to function as
an investrment trust and 2
constituent of the FTSE 250 to
ensure it meets its relevant

The Board maintains regular contact with its key external providers and receives regular
reporting from them through the Board and committee meetings, as well as outside of
the regular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views are routinely
taken into account. The Management Engagement Committee formally assesses their
performance, fees and continuing appointment at least annually to ensure that the

obligations. key service providers continue to function at an acceptable level and are appropriately
remunerated to deliver the expected level of service. The Audit Committee reviews and
evaluates the control environments in place at each service provider as appropriate.
: _
| Lenders

Availability of funding and
liuidity are crucial to the
Company’s ability to take
advantage of investment
opportunities as they arise.

The Board needs to dermanstiate to lenders that it is @ well-managed business, capable of
consistently delivering long-term returns.

Regulators

The Company can only
" operate with the approval

The Board reqularly considers how it meets vasious requlatory and statutory obligations and
follows voluntary and best-practice guidance, including how any governance decisions it
makes can have an impact on its stakeholders, both in the shorter and in the longer-term.

Investee Companies

Portfolio companies are
ultimately shareholders
assets and the Board
recognises the importance

of good stewardship and
comrnunication with investee
companies in meeting the
Company’s investment
objective and strategy.

meetings.

The Board 15 atways mindful of the requirement to act in
the best interests of shareholders as a whole and to have
regard to other apphcable section 172 factors which form
part of Board’s decsion-making process. The following
key decisions taken by the Board dunng the year ended
31 March 2021 are examples of this

GEARING

Dunng the finanaial year, the Company continued to utilise
its existing revohing annual loan faciliies and following

a review of the available options each were renewed on
broadly similar terms as the renewals fell due throughout the
yedr. The Board Is keen 1o maintain a wide range of baniing
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The Manager communicaté;reguiarly with portfolio companies and is an engag&iﬁ
. shareholder {on behalf of the Company).

The Board monitors the Manager’s stewardship arrangements and receives regular feedback
on meetings with the management of portfolio companies and voting at their general

relationships to ensure that 1t has access to a diverse range
of terms and is nat reliant on any one provider The facilities
provide flexibility and complement the longer-term private

placement fixed term debt that s in place.

Using revenue reserves to support the dividends paid
to shareholders,

Subject to shareholder approval of the proposed final
didend, the Company paid a total dvidend of 14.20p for the
financial year, representing an increase of 140% compared
Lo the previous year The financial year was a penod of
uncertainty, when many companies, particularly within the
UK and Europe, either cut, postponed or cancelled their



dividends. The Board recognises the impaortance of dividends
to shareholders and after careful review of the Company’s
revenue forecasts and reserves together with the investment
outlook with the Manager, the Board decided that,
notwithstanding the exceptional market conditions, it would
draw on the revenue reserve to support the dividend.

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT

During the year the Board continued to focus on the
performance of the Manager in achieving the Company’s
investment objective within an appropriate risk framewark.
Following the emergence of the COVID-19 pandermic in March
2020, the focus widened to consider the potential impact of
COVIB-19 on the Company (including portfolio activity, risks and
opportunities, gearing, revenue farecasts and the operalions
of other third party providers) to ensure that the portfolic had
sufficient resilience together with the Company’s operational
structure to meet the unprecedented circumstances.

DIRECTORATE

The Board's policy on tenure was reviewed during the

year The stability of the Board during one of the most
challenging peniods was considered important particularly
as appointments had been made to the Board in October
2019 and January 2020. Therefore, no changes were made
to the Board composition duning the financial year. However,
the Board is mindful of the importance of having a suitable
succession plan especially as David Watson has served an
the Board since 2012 and Simon Marfison since 2011,

CULTURE AND BUSINESS CONDUCT

The Board is in agreement that having a good corporate
culture, particularly in its engagement with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders will aid delivery
of its long term straieqy. The Board promotes a culture
of apenness, in line with this purpose through ongoing
engagement wilh its service providers and the Manager.

The Directors agree that establishing and maintaining

a healthy corporate culture within the Board and in its
interaction with the Manager, Shareholders and other
stakeholders will suppart the delivery of its purpose, values
and strategy. The Board seeks 1o promote a culture of
openness, debate and integrity through ongoing dialogue
and engagement with its service providers, principally the
Manager. The Board strives to ensure that its culture is in
line with the Company’s purpose, values and strateqy.

The Company has a number of policies and procedures
in place to assist with maintaining a culture of good

governance including those relating to diversity,

Directors’ conflicts of interest and Directors’ dealings in

the Company’s shares The Board assesses and monitors
compliance with these palicies as well as the general
culture of the Board regularly through Board meetings and
in particular during the annual evaluation process witch s
undertaken by each Director {for mere miormation see the
Board evaluation section on page 51)

The Board seeks to appoint the best possible service
providers and evaluates their service on a reqular basis
as described on page 53. The Board considers the culture
of the Manager and other service providers, including
their policies, practices and behaviour, through regular
reporting from these stakehoiders and in particular during
the annual review of the performance and continuing
appointment cf all service providers.

EMPLOYEE, SOCIAL IMPACT AND WIDER
COMMUNITY

The Board recognises the requirement under the Companies
Act 2006 to detail information about human nghts,
employees and community issues, including information
about any policies it has in relation to these matters and
the effectiveness of these policies. These regquirements,
practically, are not applicable to the Company as 1t has no
employees, all the Directors are non-executive and It has
outsourced all operational functions to third-party service
providers, Therefore, the Company has not reported further
in respect of these provisions.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

Directars” and Officers’ liability insurance cover 1s in
place in respect of the Directors. The Company’s Articles
of Assaciation pravide, subject to the provisions of UK
legislation, an indemnity for Directors in respect of costs
which they may incur relating tc the defence of any
proceedings brought against them arising out of their
positions as Directors, in which they are acquitted or
judgement is given in their favour by the court.

To the extent permitted by law and by the Company’s
Articles cf Assoaciation, the Company has entered into
deeds of indemnity for the benefit of each Director of
the Company in respect of liabilities which may attach to
them in thewr capacity as Directors of the Company. These
provisions, which are qualifying third party indemnity
provisions as defined by section 234 of the Companies
Act 2006, were introduced in January 2007 and currently
remain in force.
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Corporate Governance Report continued

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time
of approving the Directors’ report are listed on pages 38
and 39. Having made enquiries of fellaw directars and of
the Company’s auditors, each of these Directors confirms
that:

to the best of each Director’s knowtedge and belief,
there is no information (that is, information needed by
the Company's auditors in connection with preparing
their repart) of which the Company's auditers are
unaware; and

each Director has taken all the steps 2 Director might
reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of
felevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

This informatien 1s given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

By order of the Board

David watson
Chairman

3 June 2021
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Report of the Nomination Committee

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Chairman: M Watson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Review the Board and its Committees and make
recommendations in relation o structure, size and
composition, the balance of knowledge, expernence
and skill ranges;

Consider succession planning and tenure policy and
oversee the development of a diverse pipeline,

Consider the re-election of Directors; and
Review the outcome of the board evaluation process.

The Nomination Commitiee meets at least on an annual
basis, and more frequently as and when required and fast
met n March 2021,

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

The Committee discussed succession planning of the
Board, the tenure and diversity palicies.

The Committee annually reviews the size and structure

of the Board and will continue (o review succession
planning and further recruitment and take into account the
recommendations of external Board evaluations.

BOARD EVALUATION

following the engagement of Tim Stephenson of
Stephenson & Co, to faalilale an independent evaluation
of the effectiveness of Lhe Board, its committees and
the performance of each directer for the year ended

31 March 2020. The annual evaluation for the year ended
31 March 2021 was carnied out by the Company. This
took the form of questionnaires followed by discussions
to identify the effectiveness of the Board's activities,
including its Commitiees.

The Chairman alsc reviewed with each Director ther
individual performance, contribution and commitment.
The appraisal of the Chairman followed the same format
and was led by Simon Marrison The results cf the
evaluation process were presented to and considered by
the Board. There were no significant actions arising from
the evaluation process and it was agreed that the current
compaosition of the Board and its Committees reflected a
suitable mix of skills and expenence, and that the Board
as a whole, the individua! Directors and its Committees
were functioning effectively.

Alter careful consideration, particularly of the Board's Policy
Gaverning Board Membess’ Tenure and Reappointment, all
of the directors, will be offering themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM. 1t 1s considered that each of them
merit re-election by shareholders. Further information on

each directors’ skills and their contribution to the Board are
outhned in the directors’ biographies on pages 38 and 39.

In accordance with the provisions of the Code, it 15 the
intention of the Board to engage an external facilitator to
assist with the pertormance evaluation every three years
and the next external evaluation will be carried out for
the year ended 31 March 2023. The Board will continue to
complete an internal board evaluation annually within the
intervening years.

BOARD’S POLICY ON TENURE

In line with the update of the Code in 2018, the AIC has
updated ils Code of Corporate Governance in 2019 The AIC
recommended, under Provision 24, a different approach to
tenure in relation Lo investment companies, considering
how they differ to chans of operating companies, where
the Board does not have a chief executive. The Board took
into consideration the approach and introduced the ‘Policy
Governing Board Members’ Tenure and Reappointment’
This policy outlines the Company’s approach to tenure and
reappointment of non-executive directors, It highlights the
Board's belief that the value brought through continuity
and experience of Directors with longer periods of service
is not only desirable, but essential in an investment
company. The Beard did not feel that it would be
appropriate to set a specific tenure limit for individual
Directors or the Chairman of the Board or its committees.
Instead, the Board will seek to recruit a new Director on
average every three years so as regularly to bring the
challenge of fresh thinking intc the Board’s discussions,
ensurning that an each occasion that the Board enters into
new Investment commitments, at ieast half the Beard
members have direct personal experience of negotiating
previols commitments with the Manager.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING

When a new Director is appomnted, he/she is offered
training to suit their needs. Directors are also provided
with key information on the Company’s aclivities on

a regular basis, Including requlatory and slatutory
requirements and internal controls. Changes affecting
Directors’ responsibilities are advised to the Board as they
arise. Directors ensure that they are updated on regulatory,
statutcry and industry matters.
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LETTERS Of APPOINTMENT

Mo Director fies o contrect af employment with the
Company Directors” terms and conditions for appomtment
are set out in letters of eppomtment which are avalable
forinspection at the registered office of the Compeny and
wll beon display ot the AGR.

David Watson
Chairman of the Normunetion Comimittee

3 June 2021




Report of the Management Engagement Committee

MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEEL
Cherman: pr Wetson

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

Monitor and review the performance of the AR and
Porttolio raanager;

Roview the terms of the Investment ranagel
Agreement;

Annuztly review the contract of terms and agreements
of each external third party service provider; end

Review, on an annual basis, the remuneration of the
Diectors

In addition to the investment Management role, the Board
hes delegated to external turd parties the depositary
and custodial services {which include the safequarding of
assefs), the day to day accounting, company secietarial
services, adrministration and registration services. Each

of these contracts weas entered nto atter full and proper
consideration of the quelity of the services offered,
inciuding the control systems in operation insofar 2s they
relate to the affairs of the Company The Management
Engagement Cammitiee {the "MECT} determines and
appraves Directors” tees following proper consideration,
having reqerd to the level of fees pavable to non-
exceutive Directors i the industry generelly, the role
that indwidual directors fultl in respect of Board and
Commuttee 1esponsibilities and the tme committed 1o
the Compeany’s effairs. For further details please see the
Directors” Remuneration Repart on pages 55 to 57

The MFC meets &t least on an annuel basis, towards the
end of the financal year and last meatin March 2021

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR

At the MEC meeting in Merch 2021, the Committec
reviewed the overall pertormance of the Al

anel Portiolia Manager and considered both the
approprateness of the ﬁ‘iﬂm{—‘.ger's appomntment 2nd the
contiactuet arrangerments Gocluding the structure and
level of remuneretion) with the tieneger

In eddition to the reviews by the PEC, the Board reviewed
and consdered performence reports from the Portfolio
rhaneger at each Board meeting The Board also recewved
reqular reports fram the Administiator and Cormpany
Secretary

The Board beleve that the Manager's tack 1ecord and
performance temains vutstanding. As a result, the MEC
confirmed that the AN and Partfolio Manager should

be retained tor the finandiat yeer ending 31 parch 2021
being in the best interests tor all shareholders. A summary
of the significant terms of the Investment fManagement
Agreement ond the third party service providers who
suppott the Tiust are sct out below.

Dunng the yeer the MEC also reviewed the performence
of all thew third paity service providers including BNP
paribas, Link Company totters, Computershare, both the
Company's brokers and Pw( (as tex adwvisors). The Portiolio
raznager provides regularn updates on the performence of
all third party providers during the year and attended this
part of the MEC Meeting. The MEC confirmed that they
were satisfied with the level of seivices delivered by each
third party provider.

MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

On 11 July 2014, the Board eppointed BRO Invesiment
Business Lirmted as the Alternetive Investment Fund
thanages (in accordance with the Alternative Investmant
Fund Managers Directive) with portfolio management
delegated to the investment tanager, Thames River
Cepital LiP

The significant lerms of the Investment Management
Agteement with the Manager are 25 follows:

0N 12 Apil 2021 BrAO announced that 1t hed reached
an eqreement to sell t1s asset management business in
Europe, the riddie East and Afnca, which wall, subject
to completion, become part of Columbie Threadneedle
Investments, thie global asset management business
of Amenprise Finandzl, Inc. Detalls have nat yet been
finalised and published but both companies have
confirmed the wmportence of mamtaming the stability
and continuity of the teams which presently support aul
cormpany The transaction s expected to close near the
end of the calendar year

NOTICE PERIOD
The Investment Management Agieement ((IMA") provides
for tormingtion of the agreement by either party without

compensation on the provisian of not less than 12 moenths’
written notice,
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MANAGEMENT FEES

The fee for the period under review was a fixed fee of
£3,745,000 plus an ad valorem fee of 0.20% pa based on
the net asset value (determined in accordance with the
AIC methad of valuation) on the last day of March, june,
Seplember and December, payable quarterly in advance.

The fee arrangements have been reviewed by the Board
for the year to 31 March 2022 and the fixed element of the
fee and the ad valorem rate will remain unchanged.

The Board continues to consider that the fee structure
aligns the nterests of the shareholder and the Manager as
well as being highly competitive

The fee arrangements wiil continue to be reviewed on an
annual basis.

PERFORMANCE FEES

In addition to the management fees, the Board has agieed
o pay the Manager performance related fees in respect of
an accounting periad if certain performance objectives are
achieved.

A performance fee 1s payable if the total return of adjusted
net assets {after deduction of ail Base Management
tees and other expenses), as defined in the IMA, at

31 March each year outperforms the total return of the
Company’s benchmark plus 1% (the "hurdie rate”); this
outperformance (expressed as a percentage) is known
as the “percentage outperformance” Any fee payable
will be the amaunt equivalent to the adjusted net assets
at 31 March each year multiplied by the percentage
outperformance, then mufttiplied by 15%. The maximum
performance fee payable for a penod is rapped at 15%
of the adjusted net assets. However, if the adjusted

net assets at the end of any period are less than at the
beginning of the period, the maximum performance fee
payable will be limited to 1% of the adjusted pet assets.

If the total return of shareholders’ funds for any
performance period is less than the benchmark for the
relevant performance period, such underperformance
(expressed as a percentage) will be carned forward to
future performance periods.

If any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance
{expressed as a percentage) will be carried forward and
applied to offset any percentage underperformance

in future performance penods. In the event that the
benchmark is exceeded but the hurdle 1s not, that
outpertormance of the benchmark can be used to offset
past or future underperformance. These amaounts can
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be used for offsel purposes only and therefore cannol
have the effect of creating a fee in a year where a fee
would not otherwise be payable or increasing the fee
in that year. At 31 March 2021 there is g carry forward ol
outperformance of 1.8% (2020: 1.8%).

No fee will be payable unless the adjusted net assets
outperform the hurdle rate, after taking mto account

any accumulated percentage underperformance

brought forward at the beginning of the financial year.
Performance fees earned in the year ended 31 Masch
2021 were £9,659,000 (2020: £2,683,000). Total fees

paid to the Manager in any one year {Management and
Performance Fees) may not exceed 4.59% of Group Equity
Shareholders’ Funds. Total fees payable for the year to 31
March 2021 amount to 1.2% (2020: 0.8%) of Group Equity
Shareholders’ Funds.

DEPOSITARY ARRANGEMENTS AND FEES

BNP Faribas was appointed as Depositary on 14 july 2014
in accordance with the AIFMD. The Depositary’s
responsibilities include. cash menitoring; segregation and
safe keeping of the Company’s financial Instiuments, and
maonitoring the Company’s compliance with investment
and leverage requirements. The Depositary receives

for its services a fee of 2.0 basis points per annum on
the first £150 mullion of the Company’s assels, 1.4 basis
points per annum on assets above £150 million and
below £500 millren and 0.75 basis points on assets above
£500 mullion.

REVIEW QF THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS’ FEES

Custody and Admunistration Services are provided by

BNP Paribas and Company Secretanal Services by Link
Company Matters. The fees for these services are chaiged
directly to the Company and are contained within

other administrative expenses disctosed in notes to the
accounts.

David Watson
Chairman of the flanagement Engagement Commiltee

3 June 2021



Directors’ Remuneration Report

INTRODUCTION

The Board has prepared this report and the Directors’
Remuneration Palicy, in accordance with the requirements
of Schedule 8 of the large and Medium Sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Requlations 20713. An
ardinary resolution for the approval of this report will be
put to the members at the ferthcoming Annual General
mMesting.

The law requires the Company’s Auditors, KPMG LLP,

to audit certain of the disclosures provided. Where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated as such.
The Auditor’s opinion 1s included n the ‘Independent
Auditor’s Report’

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF
THE COMMITTEE

The MEC met in March 2021 and considered the results
and feedback from the board evaluation alongside

other faclors. The MEC also considered the frequency of
remuneration increases for the Trust, feedback from the
market and nvesters on the level of frequency and the
current )impact of the outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19).

Following the MEC meeting in March 2027, it was agreed
that the current level of remuneration for the Board of the
Trust remained appropriate. It was also agreed that the
Non-executive Director's fee would remain at £35,000 per
annum with effect from 1 April 2021. It was further agreed
that the Directors holding the role of the Audit Committee
Chairman and Senior Independent Director would continue
to receive an additional £5,000 to reflect the increase in
their responsibilities. Moreaver, it was agreed that the
Chairman’s remuneration would remain at £70,000.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s policy is that the fees payable to the
Directors should reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company’s affairs and the responsibilities borne by the
Directors and should be sufficient to enable candidales of
high calibre to be recruited. The policy is for the Chairman
of the Board, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
the Senior Independent Director to be paid higher fees

than the other Direclors in recognition of their mare
onercus roles. This policy was approved by the members
at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’ intention is that this
will continue for the vear ending 31 March 2023.

The Directors are remunerated in the form of fees,
payable monthly in arrears, to the Director personally or
to a third party specified by that Director. There are no
long-term incentive schemes, share aption schemes ar
pension arrangements and the fees are not specifically
related to the Directors’ performance, either individually or
collectively.

FINVNEIADD

The Board consists entirely of Non-executive Directars,
who are appointed with the expectation that they will
serve for 3 periad of three years. Directors’ appointments
are reviewed formally every three years thereafter by the
Board as a whole. None cf the Directars have a contract
of service and a Director may resign Dy notice in wnting
to the Board at any time; there are no notice periods. The
terms of their appointment are delailed in a letter to them
when they join the Board. As the Directors do not have
service contracts, the Company does nat have a palicy on
termination payments.

There is no notice penod and no payments for loss of
office were made during the period. The Company’s
Articles of Asscaation cusrently limit the total aggregate
fees payable to the Board to £300,000 per annum.

Shareholders’ views in respect of Directors’ remuneration
are communicated at the Company’s AGM and are taken
into account in formulating the Directors remuneration
policy. At the last AGM, over 99.6% of sharehalders voted
for the reselution approving the Directors’ Remuneration
Report (0. 4% against). At the 2020 AGM, over 99% voted
for the resolution approving the Directors’ Remuneration
Palicy {0.4% against}, showing significant sharehclder
suppart.

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-executive Directors, which are comprised in the
Directors’ remuneration policy of the Company are set out
below, with a description and approach to determination.
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Remuneration Type

Fixed Fees Additional Fees Expenses Fees Other

The aggregate limit for the Additional fees may be paid  The Directors are entitled Board members are not ‘
 Fees for the Board as a whaole | to any Director who fulfils the  to be paid all reasonable . eligible for bonuses, pension

is £300,000 per annum, in ' role of the Chairman, who expenses properly incurred | benetits, share options,

accordance to the Articles of  chairs any committee of the * by them attending meetings * long-term incentive schemed |

Association, which is divided  Board or who is appointed with shareholders or other or other non-cash benefits or -
, between the Directors as _as the Senior Independent Directors or otherwise taxable expenses.
i they may deem appropriate. | Director. " in connection with the

Annual fees are set to ' These fees will be set ' discharge of their duties as .

reflect the experience of at a competitive level to Directors. i
- each board member and | reflect experience and time '

- time commitment required commitment. i |
by Board members to carry .
out their duties and is

. determined with reference to

. the appointment of Directors
of similar investment '
companies.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT
For the vear ended 31 March 2021, Directors’ fees were paid at the annual rates of Chairman: £70,000 (2020: £70,000)
and ail other directors. £35,000 (2020: £35,000}. An additional £5,000 is paid per annum for each of the roles of Audit
Committee Chairman and Senior Independent Director. The actual amounts paid Lo the Directors during the financial year
under review are as shown below.

AMOUNT OF EACH DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS (AUDITED)

The fees payahle in respect of each of the Direclors who served during the financial year were as follows:

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
£ £

David watsont? 60,461 40,000
simon Marrisgn®? 38,410 35,000
Tim Gilibanks 40,000 40,000
Kate Bolsover 35,000 17,500
Sarah-Jane Curtis 35,000 6,372
Hugh-Seaborn® 23,333 70,000
Total 7 ’ ' 232,204 208,872

All fees are at 3 fixed rate and there 1s no variable remuneration Fees are pro-rated where a change takes place during
a financial year There were no payments to third parties included (n the fees referred to i the table above There are no
further fees to disclose as the Company has no employees, chief executive or executive directors.

1 appointed as Chairman on 28 July 2020
4 appomted as Seniar Irdependent Director on 28 july 2026
% retred as Chairman on 28 july 2020
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The graph below compares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2021, the percentage change over each period

in the share price total return to shareholders compared

to the share price total retusn of benchmark, which the
Board considers 1o be the most appropriale benchmark

for investment performance measurement purposes. An
explanation of the perfermance of the Company is given In
the Chairman’s Statement and Manager’s Repart.

performance Graph - Share Price Total Return for
Ordinary Share Class

e

Mut M e Mo MRl R W B Sl et
[l TR Properly Share Price Total Relurn ) Benchmark Total Relurn

Share Price Total Return assurming invesiment of £1,000 on 31 March 2017 and
reinvestment of all dividends fexcluding dealing expenses), {Source: Thames
River Capital)

Benchmark Total Return assurming notional investment inta the index af £1,000 on
31 march 201, (Source: Thames River Capital)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (AUDITED)

The interests of the Cirectors in the shares of the
Company, at the beginning and at the end of the year, or
date of appointment, if later, were as follows.

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2020

David watson 346,083 35,692
Simon Marrison 43,367 42,326
Tim Gillbanks - -
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360

Sarah-Jane Curtis

Since 31 March 2021 to the date of this report, there have
been no subsequent changes to the Directors’ interests in
the shares of the Company.

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

2071 2020
£'000 £000 Change
Dividends paid 4449 43,794 1.4%
Directors’ fees 232 209 11.0%

Five year change comparison

Over the last five years, Directors’ pay has increased as set :8
out in the table below: 3
z
201 2016 a
£000 £000 Change
Chairman 70,000 70,000 0%
Audit Committee
Chairman 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Senior Independent
Director 40,000 35,000 14.3%
Director 35,000 30,000 16.7%

For and on behalf of the Board

David Watson

fariran s e Manayement Fgdge

3 June 2021
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Report of the Audit Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman: mr Gillbanks

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES
Review the internal financial and non-financial controls;

Review reports from key third party service providers;

Consider and recommend to the Board for approval the
contents of the draft Intenm and Annual Reports;

Review accounting policies and significant financial
reporting Judgements;

monitor, together wilh the Manager, the Company's
compliance with financial reperting and requlatery
requirements;

The review and subsequent propasal to the Board of
the interim and final drvidends, and

Considening the impact of providing non-audit services
on the external Auditor's independence and objectivity.

Representatives of the Manager’s internal audit and
compliance departments may attend these committee
meetings at the Committee Chairman’s request

Representatives of the Company’s Auditor attend the
Commiltee meetings at which the draft Interim and
Annual Report and Accounts are reviewed, and are given
the apportunity to speak to the Committee members
without the presence of the representatives of the
Manager.

The Board recognises the requirement for the Audit
Committee as @ whole to have competence relevant

lo the sector and at least one member with recent and
relevant financial experience. The Chawman and Mr
Watson are Chartered Accountants with extensive and
recent experience in the Financial Services Industry. The
other members of the Commuttee have a combination of
propesty, financial, investment and business experience
through senicr positions held thraughout their careers,

ACTIVITY DURING THE YEAR
Duning the year the Committee met twice with all

members at each meeting and considered the following.

Consideration of the Risk Map, any changes to the
likelihood or impact of nsks and consequential
changes reguired to Board Monitoring and mitigatien
procedures. Consideration of any new or emerging
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risks and inclusion in the Risk Map if appropriate. This
has included consideration of the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic and impact across a range of risk categories;

The Group’s Internal Controls and consideration of the
Reports thereon;

The ISAE/AAF and SSAE16 reports or their equivalent
from BMO and BNP Paribas;

Whether the Company should have its own internal
audit function;

The External Auditor’s Planning Memorandum setting
out the scope of the annual audit and propased key
areas of focus;

The reports from the Auditors concerning their audit
of the Financial Statements of the Company and
Consideration of Significant issues in relation to the
Financial Statements;

The appropriateness of, and any changes to, the
accounting policies of the Company, including the
reascnableness of any judgements required by such
policies;

The Viability Statement and consideration of the
preparation of the Financial Statements on a Going
Concern Basis taking account of forward looking income
forecasts, the hquidity of the investrnent portfolio and
debt profile;

The financial and other disclosures in the Financial
Statements;

The information presented in the Interim and Annual
Reports to assess whether, taken as a whole, the
Reports are fair, balanced and understandable and the
information presented will enable the shareholders to
assess the Company’s position, performance, business
model and strategy;

The performance of the external auditors, to approve
their audit fees and consider the assessment of
independence;

The review and subsequent proposal to the Board of
the intenm and final dividends; and

The reviewa!l of the Committee’s Terms of Reference,
ensunng they remain appropnate and compliant with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.



Report of the Audit Committee continued

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND MANAGEMENT OF
RISK

The Board has cverall responsibility for the Group's system
of Internal Controls and for reviewing their effectiveness.
Key risks identified by the Auditors are considered by the
Audit Committee to ensure that robust internal controls
and monitoring procedures in respect of these are in place
on an ongoing basis. Further details can be found on

page 28 to 32.

The Audit Committee received and considered reparts on
Internal Controls from the key service providers. No areas
of concern were highlighted.

The Company's Risk Map was considered to identify any
new risks and whether any adjustments were required to
existing risks, and the centrols and mitigaticn measures
in place in respect of these risks. The impact of COVID-19,
the respanse of financial markets, the ongoing impact

on economies around the world and operaticnal changes
made by our service providers in response to government
guidelines were considered and the risk map adjusted
accordingly.

Based on the processes and controls in place within the
BrMO Group and ather significant service providers, the
Board has concurred that there is no current need for the
Company to have a dedicated internal audit function.

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES IN RELATION TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Committee has considered this repert and financial
statements and the Viability Statement on pages 33

and 34. The Committee considered the Auditor’s
assessment of risk of material misstatement and reviewed
the internal controls in place in respect of the key areas
identified and the process by which the Board monitors
each of the procedures te give the Committee comfart

on these risks on an ongoing basis. These risks are also
hightighted in the Company’s Risk Map.

Carrying amount of listed investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The Group’s investmenls are
priced for the daily NAY by 8NP Paribas The quoted
assets are priced by the Administrator’s Global Pricing
Platform which uses independent external pricing
sources. The control process surrounding this is set
out 1n the BNP Paribas AAF 01/06 Internal Contrels
Repost and testing by the reporting accountant for the
period reported 10 31 Decemnber 2020 did not reveal
any significant exceptions. The quarterly control report
to the Board fram BNF faribas covering the period up

to 31 March 2021 had na significant 1ssues to report.
In addition the Manager estimates the NAV using
an alternative pricing source on a daily basis as an
independent check.

The Auditors agreed 100% of the listed investments
of the partfolio to externally quoted prices and
independently received third party confirmations from
investment custodians and found the carrying value of
listed investments to be acceptable,

Valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group
and Parent Company) - The physical property
portfelic is valued every six manths by professional
independent valuers

Knight Frank LLP vatue the pertfolio on the basis of
Fair Value in accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Standards VPS4 (1.5) Fair Value and VPGA
1 valuations for Inclusion in Financial Statements,
which apply the definition of Fair Value adopted by
the International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS 13
defines Fair Value as:

“The amaunt for which an asset could be exchanged, a
liability seitfed, or an equity instrument granted could
be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties
in an arm’s length transaction”

In underiaking their valuation of each property, Knight
Frank make their assessment on the basis of a coflation
and analysis of appropriate comparable investments,
rental and sale transactions, together with evidence

of demand within the vicinity of each property. This
information is then applied to the properties, taking
info account size, location, terms, covenant and other
material factors.

The board has reviewed reporis from the Manager and
the external valuer and deterrined the valuation to be
reasonable.

The Auditors have set out their detailed festing and
procedures in respect of the Direct property valuation
and concluded that they found the Company’s valuation
of investment properties to be acceptable.

There has been nathing brought to the Committee’s
attention in respect of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021, which was material or significant or
that the Committee felt should be brought ta shareholders’
attention.
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AUDITOR ASSESSMENT AND INDEPENDENCE

The Company’s external auditor, KPMG LLP was
appointed as the Company’s auditors at the 2016 AGM.
The Committee expects to repeat a tender process no
later than 2026 in respect of the audit for the following
31 march year end, in line with the latest Corporate
Governance provisions.

During the year, KPMG presented their Audit Plan for

the year end al the interim Committee meeting and the
Committee considered the audit process and fee proposal.
The Committee also reviewed KPMG'S independence
poticies and procedures including quality assurance
procedures. It was considered that these policies are fit
for purpose and the Directors are satisfied that KPMG are
independent.

Total fees payatle to the Auditor in respect of the audit for
the year to 31 March 2021 were: £80,000 (202C- £80,000),
which were approved by the Audit Committee.

The Committee has approved and implemented a palicy
an the engagement of the Auditor to supply non-audit
services, taking into account the recommendations of
the Accounting Practices Board with a view 1o ensuring
that the external Auditor does nol provide non-audit
services that have the potential to imparr or appear to
impair the independence of their audit role. In addition,
the Committee reviewed Lhe actions put in place by the
Auditor to ensure there was a clear separation between
audit and advisory services The Committee does not
believe there to be any impediment to the Auditor’s
objectivity ang independence.

The fees for non-audit services for the year to 31 March
2021 were nil {2020 nil).

Full details of the Auditar's fees are provided in note 6 to
the accounts on page 79,

The Board noted that Mr Kelly, the current partner, was
appointed for the 2017 year-end audit and will continue

as partner only until the conclusion of the 2021 year-end
audit. Mr Merchant will replace Mr Kelly as audit partner
for the 2022 year-end audit. Mr Merchant has considerable
experience In the Financial Services sector and the audit of
Investment Trust Companies.
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Following each audit, the Committee reviews the audit
process and considers its effectiveness and the quality
of the services provided tg the Company. Within this
pracess, the Committee takes inta consideration therr
own assessment, the self-evaluation of the auditor and
the Audit Quality Review Report praduced by the FRC in
order to monitor the progress of the Auditor’s performance
comparable with its peer and the targets set by the FRC.
The review following the completion of the 2020 Audit
concluded that the Committee was satisfied with the
Auditer’s effectiveness and pesformance.

The Committee felt that KPMG had run an effective

and efficient audit precess with approprate challenge.
Subsequently, a resolution to re-appoint KPMG LLP as
the Company’s Auditor wil! be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM.

Tim Gillbanks

Cha

3 June 2027
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the

Group financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual
Report, the Strategic Report, the Directors Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
requlations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group
and Parent Company financial statements for each
financial year. Under that law they are required to
prepare the Group financial statements in accerdance
with international sccounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Al 2006 and
apphcable law and have elected to prepare the Parent
Company financial statements on the same basis. In
addition the Group financial statements are reguired under
the UK Disclesure Guidance and Transparency Rules to
be prepared in accordance with International Financial
Repaorting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No 1606/2002 as 1 applies in the European uUnion.

Under company law the directors must not approve the
finandial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and Parent Company and of the Group’s profit or
loss for that period. In preparing each cf the Group and
Parent Company financial statements, the directors are
required fo:

- select suilable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

- make judgemenls and estimates that are reasonable,
relevant and reliable;

- stale whether they have been prepared in accosdance
with interaticnal accounting standards in conformily
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the group financial statements, Internaticnal
Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to
Regulation {EC) No 1606/2002 as 1t applies in the
European Union;

assess the Group and Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern; and

use the geing concern basis of accounting uniess they
either intend tc liquidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The direclors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Parent Company’s transaclions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financal position

of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that

its financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006, They are responsible for such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeqguard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are
alsa responsitle far preparing a Strategic Repart, Directors’
Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate
Governance Statement that complies with that law and
those regulations.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website. Legislatien in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT OF THE DIRECTORS
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL FENANCIAL REPORT

Each of the directors confirms that to the best of their
knowledge:

the financial statements, prepared in accordance with
the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position
and profit or loss of the Group and Parent Cornpany and
the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as
a whole; and

the strategic report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
position of the issuer and the undertakings included

in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face.

The Directors constder the annual report and accounts,
taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandatle
and provides the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the group’s posilion and perfarmance, business
model and strategy.

By order of the Board

David Watson

Chainn e
3 June 2021
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KPMG

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust plc

1. OUR OPINION IS UNMODIFIED

We have audited the financial statements of TR Property
Investment Trust Plc {"the Company”) for the year ended
31 March 2021 which comprise the Group Staternent of
Comprehensive Income, Group and Company Statements
of Changes in Equity, Group and Company Balance Sheets,
Group and Company Cash Flow Statements and the related
notes, including the accounting palicies in note 1.

In our opinion:

— The financial stalements give & true and fair view of
the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2021
and of the Group's return for the year then ended;

— The Group financial statements have been property
prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards;

— The Parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards and as apphied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006, and

— The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
ACt 2006 and, as regards the Groun financial

statements, Arlicle 4 of the 1AS Regulalion to the extent

applicable

Basis for opinion

we conducted our audit in accerdance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK} ("ISAs (UK)"} and applicable
law. Our responsibilities are described below. We believe
that the audil evidence we have cbtained is a sufficient
and appropriate basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion 1s
consistent with our report to the audit committee.

_

Materiality: £14.9m (2020:£12.5m)

Financial statements 1% (2020: 1%) of Total Assets

as a whole

Key audit matters vs 2020

Recurring risks Valuation of direct
property investments O
Carrying amount of listed
investments L1

We were first appainted as auditor by the Directors on

2 November 2016, The period of total uninlerrupted
engagement 1s for the 5 financial years ended 31 March
2021. we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities

under, and we remain independent af the Camparry n
accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the
FRC Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest
entities. No non-audit services prohibited by that standard
were provided.

2. KEY AUDIT MATTERS: INCLUDING OUR ASSESSMENT OF RISKS OF MATERIAL MISSTATEMENT

Key audit matiers are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of mest significance in the audit of the
firancial statements and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) identilied by us, including those which had the greatest effect on- the overall audit strategy; the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. We summanse below the key audit matters
{unchanged from 2020), in decreasing order of audit significance, 1n arriving at our audit opinion above, together with
our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public interest entities, our resufts from those
pracedures These matters were addressed, and our results are based an procedures undertaken, in the context of, and
solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and
consequently are incidental to that apimon, and we do not provide a separate opinion an these matters
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independent auditor’s report continued

We perfarmed the detailed tests below rather than
seeking to rely on controls, because the nature

of the balance s such thal we would expect to
obtain audit evidence primarily through the detailed
procedures described,

Valuation of direct Subjective valuation:

roperty investments
property 5.6% (2020 7.5%) of the Group’s

total assets (by value) are held in
investment properties

(Group and Parent
Company)

(£83.1 million;
2020: £94.5 million)

The fair value of each property
requires significant estimation,
in particular with regard to
the key estimated rental
value and yield assumptions.
The key assumptions will be
impacted by a number of factors  _ Tests of Detail: We compared the information
including quality and condition provided by the Group to its external property

of the building and tenant valuer for a sample of properties, such as rental
covenanl strength. income and tenancy data to supporting documents

Qur procedures included-

— Assessing valuer’s credentials: Using our own
property valuation specialist, we evaluated the
competence, experience and independence of the
external valuer;

1nveyIros e

Refer to pages 58 to 60
(Audit Committee Report),
page 74 and 75 (accounting
policy), and note 10 on
pages 82 to 85 (financial
disclosures).

The effect of these matters
is that, as part of our nisk
assessment, we determined

including lease agreements;

Methodology choice: we held discussions with
the Group’s external property valuer to determine

the valuation methodology used. We included our
own property valuation specialist to assist us in
critically assessing the results of the valuer’s repart
by checking that the valuations were in accordance
with the RICS Vatuation Professional Standards

‘the Red Book’ and IFRS and that the methodology
adopted was appropriate by reference to
acceptable valuation practice;

that the valuation of investment
properties has a figh deqgree of
estimation uncertainty, with a
potential range of reasonable
cutcomes greater than our
materality for the financial
statements as a whale. The
financial statements (note 10)
disclose the sensitivity esimated  — Benchmarking assumptions: Wwith the
by the Group. assistance of our own property valuation specialist,
we held discussions with the Group’s external
property valuer to understand movements in
property values. Far a sample of properties, we
assessed the key assumptions used by the valuer
upon which the valuations are based, inctuding
thase relating to estimated rental value and yield,
by making a comparison {0 our own understanding
of the market and to industry benchmarks;

— Assessing transparency: We 3/so considered the
adequacy of the Group’s disclosures about the degree
of estimation and sensitivity to key assumption made
when valuing the direct property investments.

Our results:

— we found the valuation of investment properties to
be acceptable (2020 acceptable).
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The risk

Carrying amount of listed Low risk, high value:

investments

(Group and Parent)

(£1,317 4 million;
2020: £1,060.1 million)

Refer to pages 58 to 60
(Audit Commuttee Report),
page 75 (accounting policy)
and nate 10 on pages 82
to 85 (firancial disclosures).

The Group’s portfolio of quoted
level 1investrments makes up
88.2% (2020- 34.4%) of the
Group’s total assets (by value)
and 1s one of the key drivers of
results. We do not consider these
investments to be at a high nisk
of significant misstatement. or
to be subsect to a significant
level of judgemnent because
they comprise liquid, quoted
investments. However, due to
their materiality in the context
of the financial statements as a
whole, they are considered to
be one of the areas which had
the greatest effect on our overall
audit slrategy and aflocation

of resources in planning and

Our response

we performed the detailed lests below rather than
seeking to rely on controls, because the nature of

the balance 15 such that detalled testing 1s determined
to be the most effeclive manner of obtaining

audit evidence.

Our procedures included:

— Test of detail: Agreeing the valuation of 100%of
level 1 listed mvestrments in the portfolio to
externally quated prices; and

— Enquiry of custodians: Agreeing 100% of level
1 listed investment holdings in the portfolio to
independently received third party confirmations
from investment custodians.

Our results

— We found the carrying amount of listed
investments to be acceptable (2020: acceplable).

completing our audil

3. OUR APP[ICATION OF MATERIALITY AND AN
OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

Materiality for the finanaial statements as 3 whole was
set at £14 9m (2020: £12.5m), delermined with reference
to a benchmark of total assets, of which il represents
1.0% (2020: 1 0%).

Matenality for the Parent Company financial statements as
a whole was at £141m {2020: 12.0m) determined as 0 9%
of the total assets of the parent company (2020: 0 9%).

In line with cur audit methodotogy, our procedures on

individual account balances and disclosures were performed

to a lower \hreshold, performance matenality, so as to reduce

to an acceptable level the risk that individually immatenal
musstaternents in individual account balances add up to a matenal
amount across the finandial statements as a whole. Performance
materiality was set at 75% (2079: 75%) of materility for the
finandial statements as a whole, which equates to £111m (2020:
£94m) for the Group and £10.5m (2020: £9.0m) for the Parent
Company We applied this percentage in our determination of
performance materiality because we did not identify any factors
indicating an elevated level of risk.

in addition, we applied maltenality of £2.0m {2020
£3.2m) and performance materiality of £1.5m (2020
£2.4m) 1o investment incomme, other operating income,
gross rental income, service charge income and nel
returns on contract for differences for which we believe
misstaternents of lesser amounts than matenakty for
the financial statements as a whole could reasonably
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be expected to influence the Company’s members’
assessment of the financial performance of the Company.

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected or
uncarrected identified misstatements exceeding £0 75m
{2020: £0.63m) in addition to other dentified misstatemnents
that warsanled reporting on qualitative grounds.

Our audit of the Company was undertaken to the
mateniality tevel specified above and was performed by a
single audit team.

The audit team performed the audit of the Group as if It was

a single aggregated set of finanaial information. This approach
is unchanged from the prior year. The audit of the Group was
performed using the Group materiality level set out above.

Total Assets
£1,491m (2020: £1,256m}

Group Materiality
£14.9m (2020. £12.5m)

£14.9m

Whole financiai
statements matenalty
(2020: £12 5mj)

£14.1m

Parent Company
Matenality
(2020: £12.0m}

£0.75m Misstatements
reporied to the audn
committee (2020:
£0.63m}

: Totai Assets



Independent auditor’s repart continued

4. GOING CONCERN

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on
the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate
the Group or Company or o cease its operations, and

as they have concluded that the Group or Company’s
financial position means that ths is realistic. They have
also concluded that there are no material uncertainties
that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to
continue as a going concern for at least a year from the
date of approval of the financial slatements ("the going
concern period”).

We used our knowledge of the Grougp, its industry, and the
general economic environment to identify the inherent
risks to its business model and analysed how those risks
might affect the Group or Company’s financial resources

or ability to continue operations over the geing concern
period. The risks that we considered most likely to
adversely affect the Group ¢r Company’s available financiat
resources and its ability to operate over this period were:

— The impact of a significant reduction in the valuaticn
of investments and the implicatians for the Group or
Company's debt covenants;

— The liquidity of the investment portfolic and its ability
to meet the habilites of the Group as and when they
fall due; and

— The aperational resilience of key service organisations.

We considered whether these risks could plausitly affect
the liquidity in the going cancern period by assessing the
degree of downside assumption that, individually and
collectively, could result in a liquidity issue, taking into
account the Group or Company’s current and projected
cash and liquid investment position (and the results of
their reverse stress testing}.

We considered whether the going concern disclosure in
note 1 to the financial statements gives a full and accurate
description of the Directors” assessment of going cencern,
including the identified risks and related sensitivities.

Our conciusions based on this work:

— We ¢onsider that the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements 1s appropriate;

— We have not identified, and concur with the Directors’
assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or condttions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group or

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for
the going concern period;

— we have nothing material to add or draw attention to
in relation to the Directors’ statement In note 1 to the
financial statements on the use of the going concern
basis of accounting with no material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt over the Group ar Company’s
use of that basis for the going concern period, and
we found the going concern disclosure in note 110 be
acceptable; and

— The related statement under the Listing Rules set out
on pages 41 and 42 1s materially consistent with the
financial statements and our audit knowledge.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or
conditions and as subsequent events may result n
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that
were reasonable at the time they were made, the
above conclusions are not a quarantee that the Group or
Company will continue in operation.

5. FRAUD AND BREACHES OF LAWS AND
REGULATIONS - ABILITY TO DETECT

(dentifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of matenal misstatement due to fraud
(“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud
of provide an opportunity to comrmit fraud. Cur risk
assessment procedures included:

— Enquiring of Directors as to the Group's high-level
policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as
well as whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud;

— Assessing the segregaticn of duties in place between
the Directors, the Admunistrater and the Group’s
Investmenl Manager; and

— Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes

As required by auditing standards, we perform procedures
to address the risk of management averride of controls,

in particular to the risk thal management may be m

a position to make nappropriate accounting entries.

we evaluated the design and implementation of the
controls over journal entries and other adjustments and
made inquirtes of the Administrator abaut inappropriate
or unusual activity relating to the processing of journal
entries and other adjustments. We substantively tested all
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material post-closing entries and, based on the results of
our risk assessment procedures and understanding of the
pracess, in¢luding the segregation of duties between the
Directors and the Administrator, no further high-risk journal
entries or other adjustments were identified.

On this audit we have rebutted the fraud nsk related

to revenue recognition because the revenue is non-
judgemental and straightforward, with limited opportunity
for manipulation. We did not identify any significant
unusual transactions or additional fraud risks.

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

we identified areas of faws and regulations that could
reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the finanaal
statements from our general commercial and sector experience
and through discussian with the Directors, the Investment
Manager and the Administrator (as required by auditing
standards) and discussed with the Directors the policies and
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the
financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and requlations

that directly affect the financial stalements including
financial reporting legislation (including relaled companies
legistation), distributable profits legislation, and its
qualification as an fnvestment Trust under UK taxation
legislation, any breach of which could lead to the Group
losing various deductions and exemptions from UK
corporation tax, and we assessed the extent of compliance
with these laws and requlations as part of our procedures
on the related financial statement items.

secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and
regulations where the consequences of non-comphance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures

in the financial staternents, for instance through the
imposition cf fines or litigation. we dentified the following
areas as thase most likely ta have such an effect. money
laundering, data protection, bribery and cofruption
legislation and certain aspects of company feqislation
recognising the financial nature of the Group’s activities
and uts leqal form Auditing standards mit the required
audit procedures to dentfy non-compliance with these
laws and regulations to enquiry of the Directors and the
Administrator and inspection of reguiatory and legal
correspendence, if any. Therefore If a breach of operational
requlations s not disclosed to us or evident fram relevant
correspondence, an audit will nat detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidabte risk that we may not have detected some
matenal misstatements in the financial statements, even
though we have properly planned and performed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example,
the further removed non-compliance with laws and
requlations is from the events and transactions reflected
in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently
himited procedures required by auditing standards would
identify it.

in addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk
of non-detection of fraud, as these may invalve collusion,
forgery, intentional cmissians, misrepresentaticns, of the
override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not
responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all
laws and requlatians,

6. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORY

The Directors are respansible for the ather information
presented in the Annual Reporl together with the financial
statements. Qur opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opimon or, except as exphiatly stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and,

in dong so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is
matenally misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that
work we have not identified maternal misstaterents in the
other infarmation.

Strategic report and Directors’ report
Based solely on gur work on the other information.

— we have not identified materal misstatements in the
Strategic report and the Directors’ report;

— in our opinion the information given in those reperts
for the financial year 1s consistent with the financial
statements, and

— 1n our opinien those reports have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006,



Independent auditor’s report continued

Directors’ remuneration report

In our opinion the part of the Direclors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

Disciosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are required Lo perform procedures Lo identify whether
there is 3 material inconsistency between the Directors’
disclosures in respect of emerqing and principal risks and
the viability statement, and the financial stalements and
our audit knowledge.

Based cn those procedures, we have nothing material to
add or draw atlention to n relation to:

— the Directors’ confirmation within the Viabihty Statement
on pages 33 and 34 that they have carried cut & rabust
assessment of the emerging and pancipat risks facing the
Group, including these that would threaten its business
madel, future perfermance, solvency and hquidity;

— the Principal Risks and Uncertainties disclosures
describing these risks and how emerging risks are
identified, and explaming how they are being managed
and mitigated; and

— the Direclors” explanation in the Viability Statement of
how they have assessed the prospects of the Company,
over what period they have done so and why they
considered that pericd to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meel its habilities as they fall due
over the period of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary
gualifications or assumptions.

We are also required to review the Viability Statement, set
out on pages 33 and 34 under the Listing Rules. Based on
the abave procedures, we have concluded that the above
disclosures are matenally consistent with the financial
statements and our audit knowledge.

Our work is limited to assessing these matters in the
context of only the knowledge acquired dunng our
financial statements audit. As we cannot predict all future
events or conditions and as subsequent events may

result in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements
that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
absence of anything to report on these statements is not a
guarantee as to the Company’s ionger-term viability.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform procedures to identify whether
there is @ material inconsistency between the Directors’
corporate governance disclosures and the financial
statemnents and our audit knowledge.

Based on those procedures, we have concluded that each
of the following is materially consistent with the financial
statements and our audit knowledge:

the Directors” statement that they consider that the
annual repart and financial statements taken as a
whole 15 fair, balanced and understandable, and
provides lhe information necessary for sharehclders to
assess the Group’s position and performance, tusiness
model and strategy:

— the section of the annual report describing the wark of
the Audit Committee, including the significant issues
that the audit commitlee considered in relation to
the financial statements, and how these issues were
addressed; and

— the section of the annual report that describes
the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

We are required to review the part of Corporate
Governance Statement relating to the Group’s compliance
with the provisions cf the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified by the Listing Rutes for our review. We have
nothing to report in this respect.

7. WE HAVE NOTHING TO REPORT ON THE OTHER
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT BY EXCEPTION

Under the Cornpanies Act 2006, we are required to report
to you if, in cur cpinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kepl, or
returns adequate for our audit have nal been recerved
from branches not visited by us, or

— the financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

— <¢ertain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made; or

— we have not recewved all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

We have nathing to report in these respects.
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8. RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on
page 51, the Directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the financial statements including being satsfied that
they give a true and farr view, such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation

of financial statements that are free trom material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liguidate the Company or to cease
operatians, or have no realistic altermative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our cbjectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due ta fraud ar error, and
to Issue our apinien in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
(UKY will always detect 3 material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, indwiduzlly or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial
statermnents.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on
the FRC's website at;
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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9, THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND T0O
WHOM WE OWE QUR RESPONSIBILITIES

This report is made solely to the Group's members, as

a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 and the terms of our engagement by
the Company. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the Group’s members those matters we
are required (o state to them in an auditor's repart ang for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do nat accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Group and the Group’s members, as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or [or the opinions we have
formed.

Richard Kelly (Senior Statutory Auditor)}

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Saltire Court

15 Canada Square

Londor

£74 5GL

3 June 2021



" Grcmp Statement of cOmprehenswe lncome

: iu!lnww;imm
Year ended 3 March 2021
Revenue Capital Total
Return Return
£000 £000 £'000
income . ;
investment income 2 36557 - 36,557 om - am
Other operating income 4 67 - & 03 - 35
- Gross rental income 3 3,185 - 3,185 3415 - 3415
Service charge income 3 1,051 - 1,051 A6 - 1786
«,'@W{hsﬂs)mmbeidat Co ,;“ & .
7 10 - 196,582 196,582 - {153,614) {153.614)
e ané&m - (3.144) Guy - s 1,296
L mmmmm ‘ a = - L 43
- cash and cash equitalents ' - (1.474) (bal) - - - 3@ 32 EF
"MMMWMM 10 3,320 17,978 21,298 CsRe 0 @am)y o (355 -
~Netmumanmmmswap : 0 - (188)  (188) .= {3808) {3,808) “
Total incorne 44 180 209,754 253,934 . 5842 {1572300) {129028)
, mmmmpamfes 5 (1,556) (14,328) {15,884) - {1,570) {1392) {8.962)
. and service chatge costs 3 (1,321) - (1,3n) (io84) - (1,984)
Other adntinistrative expenses 6 (1,231) (604)  (1,835) {1398) {615) (2o3)
wmﬂpems C {2,108) {14,932) (19040) - {4952) ~  {8007) {12,959)
Operating profit/(ioss) 20,072 194,822 234,894 820 (195107) (141987}
Finance costs 7 (416) (1,969) (2,385) BH) (2449 G257
Profit/(loss) from operations before S \
o ' _ 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 {197550)  (145.244)
Taxgion . 8 (767) 2,667 1900 {591}  3M9 (2.763)
" Yotal comprehensive income 38,889 195520 234,409 639 ;cm,m) (148,007)
W pumimm 9 nasp 61.61p 73.86p WGP (ﬁ‘l.!ﬁ}p (6.64p

" The total co!moﬂh:sshmm represents the Gtmmsswtememxmhmwemmpfepamdmmmemmmme
mmmmmmmmmsapplmnmmMssmﬁafep&paredmguidamemxbﬁshedbymam:muf
mvestmentCompanmAﬂﬂm mﬂaeabwestatementderwefmmcmﬁneﬁgopﬂatm

‘me&oupdoesamhavearwdthetinwmewexpensemlsmtlncmdedinmewﬂmmmmmwmmhmsve
ﬂmﬁ'iseﬁsamepmﬁxmem

Nlmsammwmestwrehomsot lheparem company.
‘ Theaovesffm pagaﬁm%fwmaanofﬂmaﬁnamial Statements.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 69



969,982 1,136,453
234,409 234 409

(44,429) (44.429)
159,967 326,

136,433

Capitay Retaipeq
Redempiiop Earnings
Reserye Ording ty
£'00g £00¢

969,937 1135 453

o - 234,409 234,409
Dividends paig 7 - 7 - (a,425) (44,425)
A2 31 March 2957 52 43,977 1159957 1,326,433



Group and Ct;mpany Balaﬂce Sbeets

uﬂ!‘lwm

uwestmmhﬂdathiwalye
trivestments In subsidiaries

1,400,516

1,400,516

686

1,401,202

60,990
29114
90 104

(107,280

(17,176)
1,384,026
(57,593)

Company
01
£000

1,400,516
43,312

1,443,828

1444514

60,520
29,112

1,326,433

89,632

(150,120)

{60,488)
1,384,026

{57,593) .

1,326,433

ap!lalandruum
Cahedupshamtapiut
Shmpmﬂumamum
' Captmltedmrpﬂonmm

e

79,338
43,162
43,971

1,159,962

1,326,433

79,338
43,162
43,971
1,159,962

B

MBs  mms
43,“2 ‘3"19

1,326,433

Ordinary share

1%

a1797p

n7.97p

These mwmﬁistatemfswe:eappmdhymmmsmm?mwwlmsmtmﬂpk(mwwmz}mmedﬁor'

issueanamem

‘ fDW' o o

" the notes Mﬁgesmmwmpmdmesumhlsmm

L) o jﬁsmp

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST 71

SINIWALYLS

IYIINYNIL



o i'GfOLIp and Company Cash Flow Statements

Group company K

Company
2020

Group
2021 2021 , 202¢
£'000 £°000 - £'000 £000
m umlw)m operations before
tax to net cash outflow from operating activities :
: ﬁnﬁtftlm} from operations before tax 232,509 231,844 {145,244) (145,244)
Hnmca osts 2,385 2,385 3257 3,257
. (Gains)/losses on investments and derivatives held at fair
walue through profit o loss. {214,372) (207,255) 198,658 198,711
 Net tovement on foreign exchange; cash and cash 3
. equivalents and loan notes (79) (179) 859 5%
ﬂtmuydeaease in awwi income (102) (102) .- 584 584
. Sahsnf inmm{s - 7 353,167 353,167 3680 315,801
. ﬁmdm of investments B (370,496) {370,496) - {383,674) (Ba3624)
Decrease/(acrease) in sales settiement debtor 4753 4753 tLan (L47)
{Detrease)/increase i purchase settiernent creditor (5,781) (5,781) 4,501 4,501
{increase)/decrease in other debtors (1,436) (11,436) 4,447 4,447
ncrease/(decrease) in other creditors 2,451 (4,001) 2,047 2,034
Scrip dividends induded in investment income and net
seturns on coatracts for diflerence ___ (8,a89) __ (8,489) {3,818) (3.818)
Net cash outflow from operating activities before
interest and taxation (15,590) (15,590) {2:9) (2,519)
Interest paid (2,607) {2,607) 347 {3.421)
Taxation paid (1,915 (1.915) (2.321) @3
Net cash outflow from operating activities (20,112) (20112) (8,661} {8,661)
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid (44,429) {44,429) (8,799 (43,794)
Orawdown of loans 55000 55000 40,000 40,000
Net cash from/{used in) tinancing activities 10,571 10,571 (3,794) {3.794)
Decrease in cash {9,541) (9,541) (12,455) (12,455}
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 40,129 40,127 52,282 52,280
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash and cash
equivalents (1,479) {1,479) 302 302
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 29,114 29,112 40,129 40127
Note
Dividends received 38,224 38,224 52,003 52,003
intesest received a5 45 37 k1)

The notes from pages 73 to 97 form part of these Financial Statements,
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ACCQU’NTIRG POII(IES ) ‘ P ‘
R iﬁemlmmmmeywmmmmmmmmmmagok@mhﬂs inacmrdanr,ewﬂh
"kiﬁimematinmlﬁrmialmmgsmmafﬁsimmdpmmtammmmmmﬁmas|tappl;esmtheiumpean
7 inicn and in canformity with the requirernents of the Companies Act 2006, The finandal statements have also been prepared in
R m&mmmwmmmmmamw) 'ﬁnamia}StatemmtsofhweﬂmentTws!(ompanﬁesandmmre
Capital Trusts,” to the extent that it Is consistent with IFRS. ~ .

'massesmgGomgtmcemmeBoardhasmadeademledassesmamabimwfmcmmmmeﬁmpmmt
k ts fiabilities as they fall due, including stress and liquidity tests which-considered the effects of substantial falls in investrment :
4vatuaﬂunsms:annatfm:mnsmrmmwmmmmmmwymmwmmmmweﬂw ,
L aammmamMmammkmmwmmmmmmmmmmmmmt
4 msalermeo!semmwdeuﬁesmmcwwwmemcsmmmeemmgmmepmc o

L mmafmmsungmﬁemn.mmwwmwtmmmmmwmmtmmrmmm

. and despite the net current liability position of the Group and Parent Company (which could be mitigated by the sale of figuid level 1
T jvestments), the Directors are satisfied that the Company and Group have adequate finanicial resources fo continve in operation. * ' -
;:.,;faazieaauemgﬁmmm:mmmmammmmmmmmwwmmmmegamg Lo
;.'membas:sda;muntmg ' DR

o Theﬁ«mpam{mnpanyﬂﬂmiaistatmms memedmsmmmwlsmenmmtmaimmmﬂmﬁcmm
C StedingismehnmmmmemybecamensuwwmdﬂwwmymnmicMMMmmme&mpmaes :
Vaﬁmsm;mmdedhﬂemestﬂmandﬂi’ﬁ%}Mﬁmnﬁmwmmd ‘.
_mmmmm ’
mmpmnmﬁﬁwmmmatememmesmwmmmmufwgmem bommappﬁcatmofatcounmg
. policies, which are set out below, and in the selection of assumnptions used in the calculation of estimates. These estimates and
. judgements are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are continuatly evaluated based on historical experience and other factors.
Hnwweracwmsnnsmaydﬁfemmmeseesmates The only key estiimate is considered to be the valuation of investment
‘ pmper&es Seesectm(f)afmnsmte nmmmmdmdmhemyhevmgwms

: a)ldsﬁmldaﬁon
'fheﬁmupﬁnamialstamw:entsconsolidatetheﬁmnistatmentsdﬂ:e(mmyandﬁssubsidiaﬂesmmmm Aﬁthe
mmmmdmemmmeemmiiﬂMmmmﬁamm

' maccordancewt&htfaswmemmpmhasbemées@atedasanimestm:tem:tyonwebasnsthat
- o- Rabtamtmmsﬁomwemmpmdewmmmesmmmmm!eMmmgemmes.

»  #tcommils to its investors that its business purpose is to invest solely for returns from capital ‘appreciation and nvestrment
Ancome; and

© + it measures and evaluates peﬂotmanceoimbstac&iaﬂyailofﬂshms&m{sma[wvaiuebas&s

mmmmmmcmmmmwmmmwmmuwmmmmm

the Company {including raising additionat financing), and is not itself 3n investment entity. IFRS 10 sels out that in the case of controlled
mmwmmmmmmmmmmwmmmmma ‘
mammmwwwmmmmmwmamm

4 -&Wesaemmdndamdﬁmﬂmdateatmmm mmmmmmmmmmm@nﬁm
jwummmmmmm&mmmmamﬁmsmmmmdm
mMWm&mmemmmmmmmmmwmmm
meaﬁsedpmﬁtsamngmerefm mmmmscammmmmmgmm

lp)lmnm
' DmdmmmvaﬁeMeqmystmesatetmakedasmemeiwmeyearmanex-dimm where no ex-dividend date is
available, dividends receivable on or béfore the year end are treated as revenuye for the year. Pravision is made for any dividends

mtexpecbed:obefecewed Where the Group has elected to reteive these dividends in the form of additional shares rather -
than cash the amount of cash dividend foregone is recognised s inceme. Differences between the value of shares received and
the cash dividend foregone are recognised in the capital retumns of the Group Statement of Comprehensive income. The fixed
mnsmddxmﬂhsarefewgmsedonanmwpmmametbasiswastoreﬂectmecmweldoneachsuchsecmny
Interest receivable from cash and short term deposits & accrued to the end of the year. Stock lending income is recognised on
an accruals basts. Underwriting commission is taken to revenue, unless any shares underwritten are required to be taken up, in
whuhcasethepfopoﬂmatemmmessmrecetvedlsdeduﬂedfmmmems(otﬂwiswesmm

Rewm:@nufpmpeﬂyremalmcomelssetwﬂnsemm(t)omﬁsmte ,
Rewgnmot.mcanelim contracts of difference is set out in section {g) of this note.
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Notes to the Financial Statements contined

1 Accourmue roums cantmued
) Expenses

Mlexpensesmﬁamecnstsafeacmumedtmmma:cmalsbas& Ananalysisn!mmedwmbmkendmm

:eveaueandcaghaimlsgwenmmm mmiﬂngatmsbfeahdown,ememeshavebempmsentedaﬂevme}tem

exceptasfoﬁows -

. Expenses which are lnddenta[ tn the acquisition or disposat of an investment;

. Expeﬂsesampreseﬂtedascamwmeammummmemamtenameorenhantemmlaﬂhevalueofﬂm
investments ¢an be dermonstrated, this includes irecoverable VAT incurred on costs refating to the extension of residential
wmmemwmmmmmemmmmm

- mamwfdmebasenmagememee ﬁdsafgedmsevenue w&hﬂweequanersalhcatedmapﬁammwmﬂedme
: mﬁsmﬁa&wdbﬁgmmmums Aﬁpeﬂurmaﬂcefeesaredwgeﬂmmﬁa!ream

e mmmw amdymmmmmimesmmedmwm tmmm
are inclsded within Diher administiative expenses” in note 6. ?heseexpmsesaruhafgedoﬂmembasisasmm
magam&e;mmmkxmmmmemanasmwpﬂai ,

d)nmum ‘ '
The finanice cost in respendcapttalmsumemsmmmeqmtyshafeslscaimlaﬁed suastcgweamnstmtrateofremmon
the oms%mdingbatm One quarter of the finance cost is charged 1o revenue and three quariers to capital retum.,

€) Taxation . ' ,
Current tax assets and Habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balarke sheet date.

Income tax is charged of credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited of charged to equity. Qtherwise income
tax is recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income.

The tax effect of different items of expenditure is allocated between capital and revenue using the Group’s effective rate of
tax for the year. The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred because of
temnparary differences between the treatment of certain itemns for taxation and aucouniting purposes.

In accordance with the recommendations of the SORP the allocation method used o calcufate tax relief on expenses presented
against capital retums in the supplementary information in the Statement of Comprehensive income is the ‘marginal basis”.
Under this basis, if taxable income s capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue return coiumn of the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, then no tax refief is transferred to the capitat column.

Deferred tax Is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the canrying amounts of assets and
liabitities in the Batance Sheet and the torresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted

for using the balance sheet liability methed. Deferred tax fiabifities are recognised for aif taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits wilt be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be viilised.

the Company Is an investment trust under 51158 of the Corparation Tax Act 20%0 and, as such, is not liable for tax on Capital
gains. capnat gains arising in subs:d:ay coammes are subpect to capital gains tax.

f) mmly
Investment propesty is measured Initially at cost including transaction costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes, professmal
fees for legal services and initial leasing conmmissions 1o bring the property to the condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the fime that
cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. Thepurdiaseandsalenfpmpernesisremmsedtabeeﬁededmthedate
unconditional contracts are exchanged.

Subsecpenttohitiaifemgnﬂm.mesunaﬁpfwmysﬂatedataﬁvalue.ﬁaémmiosssaskhmﬁanchmmmehk
values are included in the Geoup Statemént of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

Invesiment property is derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected trom its disposal. Any gains of losses on the retirement or disposal of invesiment property are recognised in
me@wpsmmentdmvmmmemmemofdispmal

Gains or losses on the disposal of investment property are determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the
caﬂyingvalueoimeassaatthedatedmsal

m&nﬁmm

The Group Carries its investment properties at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13, revalued twice 3 yeas, with changes in fair
values being recognised in the Group Stalement of Comprehensive income. The Group engaged Knight Frank LLP as independent
valuation spedialists to determine fair value as at 31 March 2021
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2 IWSNCOME S . .
T 2021 | 2020
V‘ ‘ :m

mwmmm | - L 3,753 . am

- Owkdends from overseas lsted lvesiments | o 18,656 - xen
7 Serp dividends fom listed invesiments S , 7,482 a3l
;iwmm e 6,666 W08 -

- T o : o 36,557 ATVR

T oo 2020

-

S ':m'mm ' o ' . . 3,185 3415

S :.«Smkztbargehme : : 1,051 1786

o mmmmmmmmmm‘ (1,321) ' {1,984)

S g - 2,915 Y
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Operating leases Co
, 'Thesmphaseumuttomwaaﬂeasesmmmwwmmmmmwmwwmm;ewrm
’ hemeeﬁﬁandﬁmsmmmdedamwembleperm&tWrmdm@mmmmmmﬁmmwet

mmmmw@mmhmakbefmeuwendafﬂwmm
Fumminmmremals undetnm meilableoperaﬁngleasesasatm Marchareasfnﬂm

‘ 2021
’ £000

2020

£000

) ‘mwea: S . : o 3,000 2,950

mweammmms;vears ) o s 10,000 16,108

L ’mmsm h i 13000 5500

el L * 32,000 78,550
"nmmnmm,ms e

S ‘ 202 2020

£'000 £000

- : | 1 .

imterest on refurd of overseas withholding tax 4 3

Underwriting comrmission , 2 -

i 67 ES

Underwriting Is part of the protess of intraducing new securities ta the market. The Company may participate in the underwriting of
investes compames’ secufities, as one of 3 number of participants, for which compensation in the formn of comenission is received. The
mwmmmmmmmmmmrmmmmmmmummmm
holding shouk that be the oultome. The commission eamed is taken to revenue unless any securfties underwritten ate required to
be taken up in which case the proportionate commission is deducted from the tost of the investment. Buring the year the Company
patﬂupalaedinone(mﬂ)mmmmmmmmmwmmmwmmuwmm

MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

2021 2021 220 2020
Revenue Capital Capital Total
Return Return Return
£'000 £000 £'006 £000
Management fee 1,556 4,669 6,225 1,570 4709 6179
Petformance fee . : - 9,659 9,659 - 2,683 2,683
1,556 14,328 15,884 1,570 7392

A summaty of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 41
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same basis as the base management fee; mmmhmneand!ﬁmemmam mloﬂwra&mmweemenses,
", charged to both income and capital are £797000 (2020: £796,000).

mﬁmm&mammmgmdpkmams Natipnal mmnnemldmwmm Regestrafsand
i Hﬁmmmwwmmﬁamemmddmm Iheseweﬂsgsmd:atgedsdeiymlhe
fevenue account. |
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7 FINANCE COSTS S T
o 200 .02
£000 JNEEENENES X ]

mmmmwm:m » 1,241 186
'10an notes repayable after 5 years - 1,384 L 1391
"'Mﬁmwoﬁmﬁopm ‘ o a0) - -
e T 2,385 -0 3
*”‘Mmmwdtnapﬂalmn R . %) - (@)
4-:Ammmmevemmlm S c M6 - B

8 mrwn L
‘ 2021 2021 AT+ SR . . BN 7.
Revenue Capital Revenve - - Capital . Totel
Return Return " Return ‘Retorm- .
£°000 £°000 ! CO£000 . £000 . - £000

uxmmmﬂonmamam 19%) 1,989 {1,989) - 3,352 ‘f . ﬁ"”} ::4";4' m
Mseasmm L 866 8 874 1606 . . ~ ",fz‘eog
2,855 {1,981) 874 5968 . - {3,1&9} — ‘

2819
{1,980) - (1,980) w08 i (os)
875 {1,981) (L106) - sS62° @as) 241
%0
2,763

Mmﬂthmdm
" oot

Oeiewedm ‘ {(108) {(686) (199) - 350 SR I .
Cutvent tax charge for theyear 767 (2,667) (900) _ som . - QM) 236
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b)rmmmwmmmmm - '
The' laxassessedfusmeyaarisbwﬁ(mbw)&anmmdrateofcmanmtaxmtheuxfma largecempmyoﬂ%

(2020: 19%).
The difference Is explained below: ; _ ‘ 4 ,
2021 00 2020 2020 - 2020 |
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Retum Lo
£'000 £'000 £000  E'000 £000
uetpm!ﬂ[(lou)moeﬂimacﬁvm e T
before taxation 39,656 192,853 232,509 52,306 - (197,550} - (145.244)

c«mmmmm%mwﬁ) 7535 36,642 44177 9938  (WRS) . (7597

Effects of: . N ‘
Non taxable gains on Imestmems . - (37,351) (37,351) ’ - 29187 24187
Cumrency movements not taxable - 877 877 - {2,204) (2,204)
Tax relief on expenses charged to capital - 139 139 - (1038) (1,038)
Non-taxable returns (23) (3,380) (3,403) - 8,566 8,566
Non-taxable UK dividends 572) - (572) {1,043) - (1043)
Non-taxable overseas dividends ) (4,573) - (4,573) (5,540) - (5,540)
Overseas withholding taxes 866 8 874 2,606 - 2,606
Deterred tax prior year adjustment (108) (686) (754) - ' - -
(Over)/under provision in respect of prior
years (1,980) - {1,980) (406) 5 {201}
Disaliowable expenses 19 - 19 69 (43} %
Deferred tax not provided 3 1,084 1,087 288 {87) oLl
767 {2,667) {1,900) 5912 {3,149) 2,763

The Group has nat recognised deferred tax assets of £2,703,000 (2020: £nif) arising as a result of losses carried forward.

It is considered too uncertain that the Group will generate profits in the relevant companies that the losses wouid be available to
offset against and, on this basis, the defered tax asset in respect of these expenses has not been recognised.

Due to the Company’s status as an investment Trust, and the intention to continue meeting the conditions required to obtain
approval for the foreseeable future, the Company has net provided deferred tax on any capital gains arising on the revaluation of

disposal of investments. )
€} Provision for deferred taxation ‘
meamountsfordeferredtaxabonpfmdedatm(m&m) comprise:
Group
2021 01 2020 2020 2020
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
Return Return Return Return
£'000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Accelerated capital allowonces - - - 108 - 108
Unutilised losses carried forwand - (s86) {(s86) - - -
Shown as:
Deferred tax {asset)/lability - (686) (686) 108 - 108
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' Mates to the Financial Statements continued

10 INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE

- a) Analysis of Investments o ,
‘ - Group Company Group Compaay
2021 . 2020 2020
£000 £000 £'000
ilsted i the United Kingdom 394,176 394,176 351,506 351,506
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 1,468 1,468 682 682
 tisted Overseas ' 921,801 921,801 708,597 708,597
- investment propesties . 83,071 83,0M 94,510 94,510
tnvestments held at fair value 1,400,516 1,400,516 1155295 1155295
Yvestinents in subsidiaties at fair value - ' - 43,312 -~ 50,429 -
o : : ‘ 1,400,516 1,443,828 155,295 1,205,724
b) Business segment reposting _
. : Gross - Gross
valyation Net valuation revenue revenye
Jimarch  additions/ 31 March 31 March 31 Maich
220  (disposals) | 2021 2021 2020
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Listed investments 1,060,103 58,477 197,397 1,315,977 36,403 46,964
Unlisted investments 682 - 786 1,468 154 8
Contracts for difference 8,698 (26,817} 17978 (141) 3,320 5724
Total retum swap {(3.808) 3,996 {188} - - -
Total investments segment 1,065,675 35,656 215973 1,317,304 39,877 52,836
Direct property segment 94,510 {5,438) (1.601) 83,07 4,236 5,201
1,160,185 25,818 21,372 1,400,375 44,113 58,037

In seeking to achieve its investment objective, the Company invests in the shates and securities of property companies and property
telated businesses intemationally and aiso in investment property located in the UK. The Company therefore considers that there
ase two distinct reporting segments, investments and direct property, which are used for evaluating performance and allocation of
resources. The Board, which is the principal decision maker, receives information on the two segments on a regular basis. Whilst
revenue streams and ditect property costs can be attributed 1o the reporting segments, general adminisirative expenses cannot be
spilit to altow a profit for each segment to be determined. The assets and gross revenues for each segment are shown above.

The property costs included within note 3 are £1,321,000 (2020: £1,984,000) and deducting these costs from the direct property
gross revenue above would result in net income of £2,975,000 (2020: £3,217,000) for the disect property reporting segment.
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‘!ﬂ ;mmums HE!.B AT FAIR VALUE contmued
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. Esﬁmaﬁdmmlmﬁﬁ.‘i !Iﬁspersﬁft{mm:ﬂss'ﬁﬁs)
Capttaﬂsa!mmes 20% - ws(mwm 50%) -
'SWmmmthamdmleaMmmmmhmBoﬂhnmmmmasw&mﬂytﬁghef(iml
fats value meastremend, Aﬁg&ﬁmmemtdwease)lnhngvtennvacancvratehisohﬁonmuidmtmaﬁgnﬂkamlym
(mghefrmmmmasmm ST :
: rmmmmmwmmsmmmg%mmmmasmmwwmmwﬂmmmmme
7,4mﬁvﬁydﬁmmmtmgesmhemmﬁmtswchsdmmwaemww

Mbﬁwﬁwmn b office &

| st 2
nm:mmﬁ,m , 4 . Retait  Industrial other E
- A S [ fo00 £'000 £'000 ¥
mmmmww R 310 1,585 50 1945 | 7
Decrease in reral value by 5% e (250) (1,610) (25) (1,885)
- tncrease in yield by 0.5% L o ‘ {4,040) (5,835) {(925) (10,800)
: Decmﬁtvkﬁbyﬂj% e 5,155 9,505 1,325 15,985
mmmmmm«tmmma o - Office & n :

,, T . g0 . Eoo0 - £000  £000
mm'hwhbe,bfsﬂﬂ o L e w3
mmmmw& o o : a5 . ane (.45)
oeasenyiekdbyesw Gos) o) o
mmmﬁ#wm S 6750 . 9355 1365 AN

" FRANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

uiskmmagementpeﬁdesandpmm ’
: -vheammmmmmmmmmhrmmmmmewsun ufﬁwmves%memﬂbﬁtfwessetmnm

- page 24, mwsmﬁmamummmtaMMheMareduc&onaranmeasemmepwmsavaﬂabker
mmmmhywayalmvmds. . ‘ ‘

Iheyrmpdnstsmmmmﬂsmmgemﬁﬁaﬂiwﬁesm
ommtssk@mmmnshmmymwaummmk) -
b4 Uquxﬁtvﬂsk ’ : ‘
' Credhit fisk
mmmspdkmmﬂpmmmmgmﬁmﬁsksamsummdmpagezsmhavebeenapaﬁedmmghwtme
yeat.
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Wotes o the Financil statements continwed

A FINANCAL INSTRUMENTS continved

horket price F5%

‘ ’m'ﬁseveﬂgaﬁmdits aetivities, the amﬁsmes&mﬁmmzdpma&mwmm&m

Wwﬂ‘ﬁmm ~ N o |
The Manages nmsaaswersﬁied portiofio andtepmtsmmwdmmpum activity anépammmceatead\mdmeﬁng,
mésoafdmmmsmewesmemacmmndmawmmeﬁsm‘qmmkwsmmmdmw.

memp‘sgxposufemhanges nmtprmmusqumdmm‘mmﬂﬁﬁosmmsumwwpaﬁdmwasas

Increase pecieadse

in fair in fait
yalue walue
£'000 £'000
statement of Comprehensive TCOME ~ profit aftes 1
Revenue iU {103) 103 ]
Capital resum ) 209801 ggt_;,sm) 8V 073.311)
akter wwmmfwmm-w 209,698 {209,698) 73,740 (173,7&6)

nﬁtwﬂﬂs&

Apmpuﬁﬁ‘dﬁ\eamp' poﬂ!oﬁoismeﬁtedmmsseasmmesmdw

,me rates.

mgem“‘dthemk

The Boasd reces aveport eachawﬂmee!mmmmpuwiomm tpuﬁdnwdmsmm, o otef

the Gioup ™Y fines ummcymenﬁﬂs meemuzmbv n\ems‘nmemeai
o



31 mxwu. INSTRUMENYS cantmued
Atmereportmgdatemeﬁrwphadmefolbwiﬂgexpome. A o
V‘ESterm\ghasbeenshownfwreieme) Lo S ' »
Sterfing B 28.0% 210%
" e 51.0% 531.0%
‘ 5"‘?‘“‘"“““ oo . Lo o 13.0% %
other ’ ‘ " ' R L 8.0% 1

“Ihewhwmgtablesetswtﬁm&m%mwwmwmmf&wmenetmwétoforeignmrﬁe,scfﬁmm

Swedish

‘ : . S gk Sterling Krona
20 o oo £000 ! £'000
wecembles {due from brokers, dvidendsami other income teceiva&e) 19,462 10,668 561 299
 Cash at bank and on deposit ‘ ) o 22,853 4,339 650 1,272
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafis C (95,000) - - -
Payables (due to brokers, accruals and othes creduocs) ' C o {10,42) (1,037) - -
FX forwards _(61,209) - 13,848 46,254
Total foreign currency exposure on net mmetaryitems ©(94,036) 13976 15,059 47825
Mmem held at tair valve ‘ ' 478,715 707,968 155,635 58,198
Notrturrent assets ' g 636 - - -
Non-current liabilities ' . (15000)  {42,593) - -
Total currency exposure Y - ‘ 370365 679351 170,694 106,023
Swedish Otber
2020 : ~ o s?% f%ﬁ ' ?333 - £'000
mmws(m#mmmdmmmmmmemmm 3,552 27495 . & 413
Cashat bank and on deposit 5602 nmz 962 1543
‘Bank loans, loan notes and overdiafis o , BT ' S - -
& mmumm«mmmm) (8026 . (6075 - -
P forwards . o mH) . 204 255 | £358
WWWWQMMWM : 24803 95,355 2 45,639
invesiments held at fair value 446,598 551,57 © 100,836 56,185
ﬂm-cum assds ' , . {1508 {44,246) - R
101,824

chmyexposme o E 306,987 602,685 124957

-

Foreign curency sensitivity
The following table lllustratesmesensmwtyufmeprnﬁtaﬂermxﬁxmeyearonmeemmkequﬁymegardmmemhmgemes

for Sterfing/Euro and Sterling/Swedish Krona and other currencies.
it assumes the foﬁomng changes in exchange rates:

@ Sterting/Eurg +/- 15% (2020:15%)

® Sterfing/Swedish Krona +/- 15% (2020:15%)

® Sterling/Gther +/- 15% {2020:15%)
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\‘ar ended Marth 2021

swedish

EUTO Kond

£'000

(2.728)
(83.243)

swedish
Krona
£'000

other
£000




11 FNANCIAL m_smnms contmued

Management of the risk continued

ﬂwaanagefmmm&mleveiofdebtmmebahmesheetofmeemp@e daebaﬂnntesandmhanklmdﬁwn)
- @and the “see-thibugh” gearing, taking into account the assets and liabilities of the undeﬂymg mewmnts,whencuns:dermme
‘ \MWMWMWmmwmwmem¢ g

. The majority of the Group's investment portfoio is non-interest bearing, As a result the Group's financial assets are mtdi:ectly
swjeutosrgfﬁﬁcafwmntsofnskduetoﬂucmatmmmeprevaiunglevelsofmafketmwestm '

Interest maupos;n
the exmsmeat 31 March of ﬁnanuat assets and financial liabilities to interest rate. nsi: is shnwn hy fefereme to:

. Mﬂgmmmmenmmwesuatelsdnetobereset

"0 ﬁmsmmgmm fmanclalmtfummtlsduetoberepald

mm&mwﬁwmwmmaﬁm is £80,027000 (2020 ET9651000).

- ’memﬁsemmmﬁmdmmmeswaabumeﬂsmsmm(mo mjﬁ,m
ﬂleﬁmffsexpomtoﬁoatmgmresnateson!mmﬁmis£nﬁ(2020~£rﬁi) L

" interest receivable and finance costs are at the following rates: R

‘ L mtereszfeceivedmcashbalances of pald on bank overdrats, watamafgmmtmnmtshmgn currency equivalent
& (2020: same). -
e &westpaidoabmuwingsmdew;eswm-wrremybanfwm isatamacghmeruaﬁﬂmkstare@ncumcyewwatenthf
the type of loan (2020: same}.
B ﬂ\emmmmmemmmmmnmtesareatinteresuatasoﬁmﬁmdis%pespectmty

Tbeyeatendamoumsa:enotmesenmheofﬂweexposmmirnemstmes dtmgﬂwyeatasﬁtelmmexpmmedmges
-as Investments are made In fixed Interest securities, hmmwmgsaredrawndmaﬂrepaid andtimmofbwnwmgshetween

MQandﬁxedkﬂerestmteschanges

SLNIWILYLS
IVIONYNIA

Adwu@efmmmmesmtesatthempomngdaewouldhavehadmemawmgﬁrectmpact ‘
2021 2021 | 2020 2020
2% 2% % 2%
Increase Decrease Intsease Decrease
‘ £000 £000 £000 - £000
: dmge wsharehddets funds 4 : (1,176) 1,176 & 3
mmgewmtammwo:dim shate o {0.30p 0.37p 0y  00p

'_Iiﬂslevein(dxangeismtfepresentanveafmeyeafasawmle mmwmwmemm )
: Thismmntéoesmttakem:actomtﬂmmmafmterestratednangesmﬂnmatketvaﬁseofﬁtemwesmmsﬂm

ummdwmmnems) inmepurttciicamsubjedwﬁqmd%tynsk meﬁmwheidmemmmmwwmematmeywamm
11 : '

mmmmmmwofmmwwmmymm nmmmﬂm 8%)olme
Group’s investment portfolio was held in direct property investments.

AL 31 March 2021, m(mm92%)otmeﬁmupsmvestmntporﬁohowsbehdinﬁstgdmmeswh@mpzednmm&y
‘reamlyfeaﬁsm ,

aankbmfaciliuesaresrmmmrewmngbanswh}chuls intendedafe renewedo:repiacedbmrenewalcannothecenain Loan
notes.of €50m and E15m are repayable in February 2026 and 2031 respectively.

Ihembteﬂ)owsmelitmngofeashwtﬂawstosetﬁerheGmupscunemiiabaitmsmgethemimamidpmdimaestcom
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o ~ Motes to the Financial Statements continued

. 11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continved

Within  within

Within within  More than

Within
o ) lyear 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5 years Total
AR Manch o2 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans” 95,000 - - - - - 95000
_ Loan notes ] - - - - - 57,593 57,593
Projeécted interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes . 2178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295
Actraals and deferred income 16,719 - - - - - 10,719
Other creditors . 10 - - - - - 110
: 108,007 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 60,286 173,717
i Tyear  F2years © 23years 3-dyears 4Syeas 5 years Tolal
At 3t March 2020 ‘ raeo B £'000 £000 £000 mo £'000 . -
Bank loans 40,000 - - - - - 40000
Loan nates , o= - - C - - 59,246 59,246
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes ) 1,388 1,388 1,388 1,388 1388 4081 - Non
Accruals and deferred income isn -~ - - - - ki §:17d
Other creditors M - - - - - 294
. 45,454 1,388 1,388 1,388 1388 63,327 114,373

* A £60m smulticumency aclity with RBS was renewed for one yeat In February 2071 £50m (2020: £10mm) was drawn on this faciity at the balance sheet date, A
£30mm one year fatility with ING tuxembourg was renewed int july 2020, E30m {2020: £30m} was drawn on this facility 21 the balance sheet date. A £40m facifity
was Tenewed with ICBC in Novernber 2020, £15em (2020: Enif) was diawn on this facifity at the balanice sheet date.

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum expesure of the portfolio to unquoted and direct property investments. These are set
out in the trvestment Policies on page 25, All unquated investments with a value over £1m and direct properly investments with a
value over £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains reqular contact with the banks providing revolving facliities and renewal discussions commence well ahead
of facifity senewal dates. In addition the Company is exploring new opportunities for the provision of debt on an ongoing basis.

1.5 Credit risk -
Thebiluceofacomﬂerpanytoatfansaqionmdismatgeksobligaﬁonsunderthaltransadionmuidresultmme@wpwﬂerm
aloss.Mmepemdendthehmegmm&rmriﬁ,whﬁaﬁmﬁmupmsamsedmwwiminmmdmmm

- equivalents where the total bark balances held with one counterparty was £53,134,000 {2020: £46,731,000 two counterparties).
Management of the risk :
tnvesmmtfansacﬁmsarerﬂedomw‘manwwbadbrahefgwhoseaeditﬂmdingisrevtewedpeﬂodmaﬂybymmgen
andlimhsatesetoamemmumﬂlatmaybemeffomanymebmketCashatbankison!yhe!dwimbankswimhighquaﬁty

* external credit ratings.
Credit risk exposure .

I summary, compared to the amounts in the Balance Sheet, the maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 March was as follows:
2021 201 2020
Balance  Maximum Maximum
Sheet exposuie exposure
£000 £000 £'000
Debtors 60,990 60,990 60,094 60,094
Cash and cash equivalents 29,114 29114 40129 40,129
90,104 90,104 100,223 100223
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n HKANCIAI. INSTRUMENIS contmued : : ' o
Where the receivables of the Group ateexposedmcredkﬁsk the requirerent for impairment is assessed at each yeat end For
all receivables, in the table above, no impairment has been tecognised in felatmn o expected credit iosses as the impact of the:ve
mssestsimmatenalasatnmtchzmmmmm mlmpakment} . ) i

Offsetting disclosures

mwderlcbeﬂerdeﬁneitsmnuamtatngmsmdmmnghtsma:wmhetptheGroupmltigate [tsmunterpattyrisk,meﬁswumay
 enter into 3n ISDA Master Agreement of similar agreement with its OTC derivative contract counterparties. An ISDA Master Agreernent
is an agreemnent between the Group and the counterparty that governs OTC derivatives and foreign exchange contracts and typically
contains, among other things, collateral posting tefs and netting provisions in the event of a default and/for termination event, Unde:
mtSDAMastemgreemem,mmpmﬂmmmwmwmemWMamdMWeﬁmdmm
 payables and/or receivables with coliateral held afwdfor posted-and create one single net payment in the event of default including
mmmmmmaﬂmmmmmmm&mwmymmmmmmmmm -
mmmnsmmmdﬁbﬁmagammmatoﬂsammmammmm

) rhedahsmesmtmmmmmm;mmmmsmmmmmmﬂmmzamntomb;e
masterneﬂhagauangemntmslmﬂatagrem

Afamafmznz'fandzezu mﬁmptwwmmmmmmwmmwmasmm
Year ended 2021 ‘rearendedmo

SLINIWILYLS
IVIONYNIE

[l Net amounts Net amounts’
of financial of financial
assets/ o assets/
liabilities fiabilities
presented in presented in ‘
the Balance Cash collateral the Batance  -Cash collateral
sheet pledged . Sheet: pledged
£7000 £'000 _E000 £o00

Goldman Sachs oo : (141) 50,913 8,698 . 3155
) : " () 50,913 8,698 1,525
TRS position: , T

ING ' : - - (3,808) 7997
' ' - - (3,808) 7997
FX forward contracts: - )

Bank of Montreat : ' - - @582 -
Barclays , - - @»y -
~ BNP Pasibas B o - - &) -
 HSBC - S (1,107) - - -
Wesipac e L _ - - & -

(1107) - (5.609) -

: m:&mammmmm '
* . Excopt for the 1oan notes which are measured at amortised cost (refer to Note 13), ﬂmfakvaknesatthefmm;aiassetsand
- fipancial Habilities are either carried in the balaice sheet at thek fak value (investments) or the balance sheet amount is &
- Wmammmmmammmmummmmm
thefa&vamesofmelistedimemmsaedeﬁvedmanchmgpciteorh&uadedpmeatmdmaesecumlesarequmedan
“Mmmmwmmfmmm o
' !helafnvah:eoicmuactsfmdiﬁerematebasedmmemdedymglisteﬁmwakseassetnutabweandmemwmme

, kmmmmemmwummemaMEmmdedasaﬂame«mdmgﬂ whrda}sd:sdmedmN&erafm
cufrenlyear )

‘m&ummwmwmksmwmnmmomnmmmmmmmmpmpemesmthe BatanceSheetdate
- g,hvmhdepemdentfuma!valuers(mmﬂmﬂi)

mesewasmemqumedmmmm&mmmdate.MQMammdmﬁam (1920 m&o 56820091

,mmsmmmmm n -






13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

- roup Cmbany

Group Company
2021 2021 2020 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Amounts fafling due within one year:
Bankioausandnvefdtaﬂs ' 95,000 95,000 40,0600 40,000
Semdﬁesmdptnpeﬂiespurthasedioffuture settiement 194 194 - 5975 5975
— muatsduetambﬁdmies , - 42,880 - 50,342
mmmm&mm&mnﬂ&m ' 141 141 e = -
mwmmdwmm - - 3808 - 3808
" Tax payable ‘ ) 9 9 o om 213
mmmm , o 10,719 10,685 - 382 - 3783 :
. mmmmmmm - 1,107 1,107 5608 5.609 v m
| ,mhamemts ' m 14 34 - 2 ZE
- 107,280 150,120 . Sm 10 EE
-cmliablnis, . : .
- 192%Euro. imnmzezs ' o ‘ 42,593 42,593 4446 “246
o mwmmm S 15,000 15,000 1000 15000
o ‘ 57,593 57593 59354 59354
V’loaullotes

0N thie 10th February 2076, ﬁwmmmyamemmmsmmmmmmnMesmﬂmmmed@mmm
mmmewmmawmmmMymmmF@mﬂym respectively.

The fair value of the 1.92% Euro Loan Noteswasmmme(mm£4¢mw0)mmemwwanmeswamsmoao
- {(2020: £15,553,000) at 1 March 2021, -

lfsmgmeIFRSﬁfauva&sehtetmhythemaaﬂubesa:edeemed:obecmgwsedwﬁhmLevelz
Jheioanm;es agreernent requnrescomplsantemﬂ»asetoﬂmanqa!mnams. mduéing

@ Total Bomawings shall not exceed 13% of Adjusted Net Asset Value;

e themedmtarammﬂaaiimbem@msmammmmafmmdwwms.ami
- @ the Adjusted NAV shall not be less than £260,006,000. o

” ,-"rhemmymemupcampﬁmmmmsumemmtesageeeme:uuuwgmﬁueyea:

, ,-'mesma&;xhadmred euitti-cursency, mhmgshmt-tennmmles mimmw&(mzmnmﬁo}at
"3 March 2021, mam«hmmmmwasmwnmmmm ewemooo}

"Ifwmﬂye#ﬁmsﬁatmmsismmmwnsmnt :
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13 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES continued
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term Short term

' o : P debt debt Total
Group and Company ‘ s £°000 £000 £'000
Opening &biﬁues from ﬁnandng a:ﬂwiﬂes at 31 March 2020 59,246 40,000 99,246

" Orawdown of bank loans S - 55,000 55,000
mmntmfaeigneadmge . (1653) - (1,653)
‘Closing mmmmummm ) 57593 95,000 152,593

14 CALLED UP SHARE au';w. . ' '
o:dmys!mupibl
The balance dassified as Gnﬁrmysharecapna?mhdes the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the mdinawequavsha{e
tapital comprising Ordinary shates of 25p o
Issued, allotted
" and fully paid
Number £'600
Ocdinary shares of 25p
ALY Aprit 2020 317350980 75338
A 31 March 200 , 317,350,980 79338

The voting rights are disclosed in the Report of the Directors on page 43.
During the year, the Company made ne market purchases for cancellation of Ordinary shares of 25p each (2020: none).
Since 31 March 2021 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelled.

15 SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE
Share premium account
The balance dassified as share premium includes the pfemmm above nominal value from the proceeds on issue of the equity share
capital comprising Ordinary shates of 25p.
(apital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve is used to record the amount equivalent to the nominal value of purchases of the Company’s own
shares in order to maistain the Company's capital.

16 RETAINED EARNINGS
Group Company Group Company
2021 2021 2000 2020
£000 £000 £000 £006
Investment holding gains 335,322 360,663 206,072 3853
Realised capital reserves 757,418 731,167 691,148 664,465
_ 1,092,740 1,091,830 897,220 902,996
Revenue reserve - 67,222 68,132 72,762 66,986
1,159,962 1,159,962 969,982 969,982

Group investment holding gains at 31 March 2021 include a £143,000 gain (2020: £643,000 loss) relating to unlisted investments and
gains of £45,201,000 {2020: £51,882,000 gains) relating to investment properties.

'Ccmpanymsummugaﬁsamuachm inciude gains of £70,685,000 (2020: £83,697,004) relating to unlisted and
subsidiary investments with 2 £44,061,000 revaluation gain (2020: £50,742,000) relating to investment properties. Dividends are
onty distributable from the revenue reserve. -
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' 17 DIVIDENDS R A L
o o Yearended [ mendeﬁ -
31 March JEEERERNEEEE: 1 '~ "

2021 S . I
£000 [UTONEEREIER X .}

mmummmmmmmr e

,mwmmmwednmmaam w2z . nwm
_ (2019: 8.60p) por Ovdiiary shave S SRR

mmmmmmmmmam S
: yshaye ' 6502 - s
44,429 T BT

28562 . .- 27,927 o

'mefuwIdehﬁMbemhMasaﬁa&ﬁvmmﬁnafwtaimtemntsmaccmdanﬂewim%m mnsafteﬂhe

TYIINVYNI

v
—
>
parr}
m
=
m
=
=
v

s ‘ Year ended ‘- o ’ﬁwewded
31 March SR * 31 March

nn § 2020
£000 NN £'000

,,maﬁmmmmmwmmam R
ﬂmszop}wmym s 16502 " 16,502 -

, mwmwmmmmmwﬁm@ R
(2020: 8.80p) mmm . _ 28,562 . msn
: o 45,064 44429

18 COMPMH’ S‘l‘dh’lﬁlﬂ@l’lr &F tamznsm ME

' Mpemﬁuedbvsecﬁmﬂaiﬂwmﬁmnﬁsmttaetmnpmwhasnmgmdmmsmmdwmm
m?eﬂmaétgﬂﬂ&k:ﬁwﬁ&nd&mtmmmﬂmmtmammuofmesfuwwasmﬁmmm msmb,ﬂw

'wmummuemmmmm - P ' A

’ mmmwmmxmmmmmemshmmwemmm

ﬂmﬁa,wmmﬁmmmmamwmmmwesmmammm o

- mmummmmtmmmm j o

ﬂmmmmammmmmﬁfmmmmem}mmeﬁabﬁues(zozﬂ mf).
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- Nafes to the Financiol Statements continued

21 SUBSIDIARIES |

The Gioup has the following principal subsidiaries, al of which are registeted and opetating in Scatland, England and Wates:

B Nome

Reg. Number

Principal Activities

The Colonnades Limited 2826672 Non-tiading company
showart Limited 2500726 Non-trading company
 The Property investment Trust [td 2415846 Non-irading company
The Real Estate investment Trust Limited | zhens Non-trading company
- The Tera Property lnvestment Trust Limited 2415843 Non-trading company
Trust Unlon Properties (Number Five) Limited 2415839 Non-trading company
Trust tUnion Propesties (Number Six) Limited 6018 Non-trading company
Trust tinion Properties (Number Seven) Limited 2415836 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Eight) Limited 2416019 Non-teading company
Trust Union Properties (Numbes Nine) Limited 15813 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Nambes Ten) timited 281601 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited 2415830 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Twelve) Limited 2416022 Non-trading company
Trust tnion Properties {(Number Thirteen) Limited 2415818 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited 2416026 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Sixteen) timited 2415806 Non-trading company
Trust tnion Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited 2416027 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Numbes Eighteen) Limited 415768 Non-trading compatty
Trust Union Properties {Bayswater) timited 2416030 Property investment
Trust Union Properties {Cardiff) Limited 2415772 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Theale) Limited 2416031 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Nusmber Twenty-Two) Limited 2415265 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Thiee) Limited 2416036 Non-trading company
Skitlion Finance Limited 2420758 Non-trading company
Trust Union Finance (1991} Pic 2663561 Investment financing
FGH Developments {Aberdeen) Limited {F18030) SC68795 Non-trading company
FGH {Newcastie) Lirmnited 1456619 Non-trading company
NEP (1994) Limited 977431 Non-trading company
New England Developments Limited 1385909 Non-trading company
New England investments Limited 2613905 Non-trading company
New England Retail Properties Limited 4N Non-treding company
New England {Southern} Limiled 178131 Non-trading company
Sapco One Limited 803940 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties timited 2134624 Non-trading company
Trust Union Finance Limited 1233998 investment holding and finance company
IR Property Finance Limited 2915541 investment holding and finance company
Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited 2420097 Non-trading company
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Z'ISIIBSMS contmued ’ y
;ﬂ»e(mmhaspmwdedaqumanlee mmﬁmm&mmmwmmmmemmmkumme:equiremem
:'.ofanaudn mmmmreqmmnmdamaammmmm '

—-jﬂmmeswsww;esafermiymedandanmemmmgsmmmm :

All companies have the registered office of 11-12 Hanover Street, London, WIS WQ with the exception of FGH Developments
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22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSURES
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‘the remuneration of the directors, Mmareﬁmkemmmmwwmldthecumwfmmofﬂzerdmt categcties
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nirecm tunsacﬁons :
Transactions in shares by directors are conswdered tobea related paﬂylransactlon due to the nature of their rofe as directors,

Movements in directors’ shareholdings are disclosed within the Directors’ Remuneration Repart on page 57.
Dividends totalling £17,000 (2020: £10,000) were paid in the Year in respect of shares held by the Company's directors.
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Alternative Performance Measures are numencal measures of the
Company’s cufrent or historical performance, financial position or
cash flows, other than the financial measures defined or specified
In the Financial Statements

The measures defined below are considered o be Alternative
Perfarmance Measures They are viewed as particularly relevant
and are frequently quoted for closed ended investment
companies.

Total Retuin

The NAV Total Return 15 calculated by reinvesting the dividends
In the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend
date Dividends are deemed ta be reinvested on the ex-dividend
date as this 15 the protocol used by the Company's benchmark
and other indices. The Share Price Total Return 1s calculated by
reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Company from the
retevant ex-dividend date

NAV Share Price
NAV/share price per share at
31 March 2020 358.1M 3175
NAV/share price per share at
31 March 2021 1797 392.5
Change in year 16.7% 23.6%
Impact of dividends reinvested 4.0% 4.7%
Total Return for the year 20.7% 28.3%

Net Debt

Net debt 15 the total value of loan notes, leans (including netional
exposure to CFDs and IRSs) less cash as a proportion of net asset
value,

The net gearing has been calculated as follows:

Loan notes 57,593 59,246
Loans 95,000 40,000
CFD positions (notional exposure) 146,001 56,728
TRS pasition {notional exposure) - 10,405
Less: Cash (29,114} (40,129)
Less: Cash collateral (included
within ‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) {50,913} (39.522)
218,567 86,728
Igauily shareholaers' funds 1,326,433 7 71,136,453
Net gearing 16.5% 7.6%
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Onymng Charges

The Ongoing Charges ratia has been calculated in accordance
with the guidance 1ssued by the AIC as the total of investment
management fees and administrative expenses expressed as a
percentage of the average Nel Asset Values throughout the year.
Ihe detinition of admnistrative expenses does include praperty
related expenses, the Ongoing Charges caiculation is shown
inclusive and exclusive of these expenses to allow comparison
of the direct administrative and management charges with

the majority of Investrment Trusts which do not hold any direct
property invesiments.

Excluding
performance
Fees &

Direct
Properly Costs
£000

including

Exciuding
Performance Performance
Fees Fees

£'000 £'000

Management Fee

{note 5) 15,884 6,225 6,225

Other

Administrative

expenses (note 6) 1,835 1,835 1,835

Property Costs 270 270 -

Less: Non

recurring

expenses - - -
17,989 8,330 8,060

Average Net 1,283,051 1,283,051 1,283,051

Assets

ongoing Charge o o 0

2001 1.40% 0.65% 0.63%

Ongoing Charge 0.80% 0.61% 0.59%

2020

Ihe Gngoing charges ratio provided in the Company’s Key
Information Document 1s calculated in line with the PRIIPS
regulations which s different to the AIC methodology above.

Key Performance Indicatars

The Boaid assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting
the Irust’s objective aganst a number of Key Performance
Indicators, these are considered to be Aliernative Performance
Measures. These are set out on pages 26 and 27 of this repart
together with infermation about any calculations ar the source of
data.
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2.0 GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND DEFINITIONS

AIFMD

The Alternative fund Managers Directive 15 kurcpean legislation
which created a European wide framework far requiating the
managers of “alternative investment funds” (AlFs). It 15 designed
to requlate any fund which 1s not a UCITS (Undertakings for
Collective Investiment in Transferable Secunities) fund and which
is managed ar marketed in the EU

AlC
the Association of Investment Camnpanies - the AIC s the
representative body for closed-ended investment compantes.

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measure of financial performance or financial positign
other than a financial measure defined ar specfied in the
accounting statements

Discount

The amount by which the market price of a share of an
investment trust 15 lawer than the Net Asset Value per share
expressed as a percentage of the NAVY per share,

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPS Regulations a short, consumer Iriendly Key
Information Dacument is required setting out the key features,
rsks, rewards and costs of the PRIP and 15 intended to assist
investors 1o better understand the Trust and make compansons
between Trusts

ihe document includes estimates of investment performance
under a number of scenarios. These calculatians are prescribed
by the regulation and are based purely on recent historical data.
It s impartant for tnvestors to note that there 15 no judgement
applied and these do not 1n any way reflect the Board or
Manager's views.

Key Performance Indicator "KPL”

A"KPI" 15 a quantifiable measure that evaluates how successful
the trust 1s 1In meeting its objectives The Irust's KPIs are
discussed on pages 26 and 27.

MIiFtD

The Markets in Financial Instruments Directive 15 the kU
legislation that requlates firms who provide services to clents
linked to “financial Instruments” {shares, bands, umts n collective
nvestment schemes and denvatives) and the venues where
those instruments are traded.

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
The value of total assets less habilities (including borrowings)
divided by the number of shares in 1ssue

3.0 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND MANAGERS
DIRECTIVE (“AIFMD”)

In accordance with the AIFMD, information in relation to the
Company’s leverage and remuneration of the Company’s AlFm,

F&C mnvestment Business Limited, 1s required tc be made
available to investors. Detailed regulatory disclosures including
those an the AlFM's remuneration policy are available on the F&C
website or from F&C on request. The numerical remuneration
disclosures in relation to the AlFm’s first relevant accounting
period will be made available in due course.

Leverage
Undar the AIFM Directive, it 15 necessary for Alfs ta disclose theyy
leverage i accordance with prescribed calculations.

Although leverage 15 often used as another term for geanng,
under the AIFMD leverage is specifically defined. Two types of
leverage calcutations are defined; the gross and commitment
methods. These methods summarily express leverage as a ratio
of the exposure of the AIF against its net asset value. ‘Exposure’
typically includes debt, the value of any physical praperties
subject to mortgage, nan-Sterling currency, equrty of currency
hedging at absalute notional values (even thase held purely

for risk reduction purpeses, such as forward foreign exchange
contracts held for currency hedging) and derivative exposure
{converted into the equivalent underlying positions) The
commitment method nets off denvative nstiuments, while the
gross methad aggregates them

The 1able below sets out the current maximum permitted imit
and the actual level of leverage for the Company as at 31 March
2020:

Gruss Commitment
Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%

Actual 124%

118%
The leverage imits are set by the AlFM and approved by the

Board and are in line with the himts set aut in the Company's
Articles of Association

Ihis should not be confused with the geanng set out in the
Financial Highlights which 1s calculated under the traditional
method set aut by the Assaciation of investment Companies. The
AIFM 15 also required to camply with the gearing parameters set
by the Board in relation to borrowings
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

THIS NOTICE IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR
IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take you
should seek your own advice from a stockbroker, solicitor,
accountant or other independent prafessional adviser who s
authonsed under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 if
you are resident in the United Kingdom, orif not, from angther
appropnately authonised independent financial adviser,

If you have sold or atherwise transferred all of your shares,
please pass this dncument, tngether with the accompanying
documents 1o the purchaser, or transferee, or to the person who
arranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these documnents
to the person who now helds the shares.

Qur preference is to welcome shareholders in person to gur 2021
AGM, particularly given the constraints we faced 1n 2020 due to
the COVID-19 pandemic. The Cormpany I1s continuing to monitor
the current COVID-19 legislation and public health guidance 1ssued
by the UK Government

We have prepared for this AGM based on the anticipated status
of the UK Governrnent’s roadmap out of lockdown at the date
of the meeting. It 1s expected that the AGM will be able to go
ahead as normal as a physical meeting

However, It may be necessary to adapt our arrangements fo
respond to any changes 1n arcumstances, including the possibility
of a delay to the further easing of restnctions. Any changes to the
arrangements for the AGM (including any change to the location
of the AGM) will be communicated to shareholders before the
meeting, ncluding through our website (www trproperty.com)
and via an RNS announcement.

The meeting will be conducted in accordance with legislation
and pubhc health guidance i force at the time of the meeting.
Depending on the circurstances at the time of the meeting, 1t
may be necessary to limit physical attendance by sharehalders
We regret that it wiil not be possible ta pravide refreshments
in the usual way. If new restrictions are impased, it is possible
that we will net be in a position to accommaodate shareholders
beyond the mimmum requised to hold a quorate meeting

Regardless of the current expectation for the physical meeting
to proceed as planned, we strongly encourage all shareholders
to vote 1n advance by proxy and appaint the Chairman of the
meeting as their proxy rather than any other named person,
who may not be permitted to attend the AGM. This wili ensure
that their vote will be counted if they (or any cther proxy they
might otherwise appaint) are ngt able tg attend the meeting. All
resolutions will be voted an by a poll.

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked to register
their intention as soon as practicable by email to the following
dedicated address: cmuk-tipropertyinvestment@linkgroup.co uk

Shareholders whe are not able or do not wish to attend the
meeting in person {regardless of an easing of restrictions) will be
able to watch a live webcast of the meeting. This will include the
formal business of the meeting, the Manager's presentation and
questions and answers, The webcast will not enable shareholders
to participate in the meeling or vate. However, shareholders will
be invited 1o submit guestions through our website, by 12.00
noon on 26 fuly 2021. Questions of a very similar nature may be
grauped together to ensure the orderly running of the AGM.
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Shareholders are asked to consult the website in the period
leading up tc the event where any restrictions or changes witl
be set out and the format detailed when we know what will be
permifted at that time.

Notice s hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of

TR Properly Investment Trust pic (the "Company”) will be held
at 2 30 pm on 27 July 2021 at the Royal Autornobile Club, 85/91
Pall Mall, London SW1Y 5HS for the purpose of transacting the
following business:

1o consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions,

of which Resclutions 1to 11 will be propesed as Ordinary
Resolutions and Resolutions 12 to 14 shall be proposed as Speuial
Resolutions.

To receive the Report of the Directars and the Audited
Accounts for the year ended 31 tMarch 2027

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the
part containing the Directors’ remuneration policy) for the year
ended 31 March 2021

To declare a final dividend of 900p per Ordinary share.
To re-elect Simon Marnson as & Director.
To re-elect David Walsan as & Director.
lo re-elect Tim Gillbanks as a Directar.
To re-elect Kate Bolsover as a Direclor.
% To re-elect Sarah-Jane Curtis as a Directar.

To re-appoint KPMG LLP (the "Auditor”) as Auditors of the
Company to hold office urtil the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

10 authorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of
the Auditors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Ordinary fesolution

" THAT, in substitution for all such existing autharities, the
Directors be generally and unconditionally authorised
pursuant to and in accordance with Section 551 of
the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act”) to exeraise all
the powers of the Company to allat shares in the
Company and to grant rights to subscnbe for, or to
convert any security into, shares in the Company up 1
a nominal value of £26,181,455 (being approximately
33% of the total issued share capitel of the Company
as al the latest practicable date prior to publication of
this Notice) provided that this authority shall expire
at the date of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Company (or, if earlier, at the close of business
on 27 October 2022), save that the Company shall
be entitlzd to make offers or agreements belcre the
expiry of this authonty which would or might 1equire
shares to be allotted or nghts to be granted after
such expiry and the Direclors shall be entitled to allol
shares and grant rights pursuant to any such offers or
aqreernents as if this authonty had not expired
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

THAT

{a) (In substitution for all such existing authanities and subject
to the passing of Resolution 11 set aut above) the directors
be empowered pursuant to Section 570 and Section 573 of
the Act 10 allot equity securities {as defined in Section 560
of the Act) for cash pursuant ta the authonty conferred
by Resolution 11 above and/or to sell shares held by the
Company as treasury shares for cash as if Section 561(1) of
the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that
this power shall be limited ta:

(1) the allotment of equity secunties and sale of treasury
shares for cash in connection with an offer of, or
invitation to apply for, equity securities,

{03) to shareholders in proportion {as nearly as may be
practicable) to therr existing haldings; and

(bb) to holders of other equity securities, as required
by the nghts of those securities, or as the Beard
otherwise cansiders necessary,

and so that the Board may impose any Imits or restrnctions
and make any arrangements which it considers necessary
or appropriate 1o deal with treasury shares, fractional
entittements, record dates, leqal, requlatory ar praclical
problems 1n, or under the laws of, any terntory or any other
matter; and

{1} 1n the case of the authonity granted under Resolution
11 and/or in the case of any sale of treasury shares
far cash, to the allotment (otherwise than under
paragraph (i} abave} of equity securties or sale of
treasury shares up to a nomimnal amount of £3,966,88/
(being approximately 5% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date
priof to publication of the natice ¢f meeting),

(b)the power given by this resolutron shall expire upon the
expiry of the authonty conferred by Resolution 11 above,
save that the Company shall be entitled ta make offers or
agreerments before the expiry of such power which would
or might require equity securities to be allotted after such
expiry and the directors shall be entiled to aflot equity
securities pursuant to any such offer or agreement as iIf the
power conferred hereby had not expired.

THAT the Company be and 15 hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised 1n accordance with Seclion 701
of the Act to make market purchases (within the
meaning of Section 693(4) of the Act) of Ordinary shares
of 25p each in the capital of the Company on such lerms
and m such manner as the direclars may from tme to
tme determine provided that-

{a) the maximum number of Ordinary shares hereby
authonised 1o be purchased shall be 14 95% of the
Company’s Ordinary shares in issue at the date of the
Annual General Meeting (equivalent to 47570,%11 Ordinary
shares of 25p each at 3 June 2027, the latest practicable
date prior to publication of this Notice),

{b) the maximum price {exclusive of expenses) which may
be paid for any such share shall ngt be more than the
higher of

(1) 195% of the average of the middle market quotations
for an Qrdinary share as taken from the London Stock
Exchange Daily Gfficial List for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the Company
agrees ta buy the shares concerned; and

(1) the tugher of the price of the last independent trade
and the highest current independent bid for an Ordinary
share In the Company on the trading venue where the
purchase 1s carried out at the relevant time;

{c) the minimum price {exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for an Ordinary share shall be 25p, being the nominal
value per Qrdinary share; and

(d) the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Campany
In 2022 {or, if earhier, at the close of business on 27 Gclober
2022), save that the Company shait be entitled to enter
inta a contract ta purchase Ordinary shares which wall, ar
may, be completed or executed whally or partly after the
pawer expires and the Company may purchase Ordinary
shares pursuant to such contract as if the power conferred
hereby had not expired.

THAT, with effect frem the conclusion of this meeting,

the Articles of Association preduced to the meeting and
iitiatled by the Chairman of the meeting for the purposes of
identification be hereby approved and adopted as the Articles
af Assaciation of the Company, in substitution for, and to the
exclusion of, the existing Articles of Association

Registered Office:

Registered in England Mo: 84492 11-12 Hanaver Sireet
London

WIS 1YQ

By Order aof the Board

tor and on behalf of

Link Company Matters Limited
Secretary

3 June 2021
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Natice of Annual General Meeting

NOTES TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

A member entitled 1o attend and vote at the meeting
convened by the above Notice 15 enlitled to appaint one

or more proxies to exercise alk or any of the nghts of the
member to attend, speak and vote 1n his or her place.
Shareholders are strongly encauraged 1o appaint the Charman
of the meeting as their proxy, rather than any other named
persan wha may not be permitted to attend the AGM in the
event of restrictions or limits on attendance. A praxy need

not be a shareholder of the Lompany. lo appeint more than
one proxy, the proxy form should be photocopied and the
name of the proxy 1o be appointed indicated on each proxy
form together with the number of shares that such proxy 15
appointed in respect of. Completion and submission of a proxy
instruction will not preclude a member from attending and
voting in persan at the AGM (subject to any restrictions on
physical attendance).

To be valid any proxy ferm or other instrument appointing

a praxy must be returned by post, by courer or by hand to
the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristal BS99 67, or
alternatively, by going to www.eproxyappointment.com
and following the instructions provided. All proxies must

be appointed by no later than 48 hours before the time of
the AGM. In the case of joint holders, where more than ane
of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the
appointment submitted by the mast senior holder will be
accepted. Semiority is determined by the order in which the
names of the joint holders appear in the Company’s register
in respect of the joint holding (the first named being deemed
the mast senior).

in arder to be able 1o attend and vote at the AGM or any
adjourned meeting (and alsc for the purpose of calculaung
how many vates a person may cast), a person must have

his or her name entered on the Register of Members of the
Campany by 2.30 pm on 23 july 2021 (or 6.00 pm on the
date two days befare any adjeurned meeting). Changes to
entres on the Reqister of Members after this time shail be
disregarded in determining the nghts of any persen to attend
or vote at the meeting

voting will be conducted on a poll at the Meeting. On a poll
vote every sharehalder will through therr proxy have one vote
for every ordinary share of which he or she is the holder.

Shareholders should note that it 1s possible that, pursuant to
requests made by sharehalders of the Company under Section
527 of the Companies Act 2006, the Cornpany may be required
to publish on a website a statement setting out any matier
relating to- (1) the audit of the Company’s accounts {including
the auditor's report and the canduct of the audit) that are to
be laid before the AGM; or (it} any circumstance cennected
with an auditor of the Cempany ceasing te hald office since
lhe previous meeting at which annual accounts and reparts
were laid In accordance with Section 437 of the Companies
Act 2006
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The Company may nat require the shareholders requesting
any such website publication to pay 1ts expenses in complying
with Sections 527 of 528 of the Companies Act 2006. Where
the Company 1s required to place a statement on a website
under Section 527 of the Campanies Act 2006, it must forward
the staternent to the Company's auditor not fater than the
time when it makes the statement available on the website.
The business which may be dealt with at the AGM includes
any statemert that the Company has been required under
Section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 1o publish on a
website.

Any corporation which 1s a member of the Company can
appoint one or more corporate representatives who may
exercise on 1ts behalf all of its pawers as a member provided
that they do not do so in relation to the same shares.

The right to appoint a proxy does not apply to persons whose
shares are held on their behalf by another persen and who
have been nominated ta receive cammunication from the
Company in accordance with Section 146 of the Campanies Act
2006 ("nominated persens”). Nominated persons may have

a nght under an agreement with the registered shareholder
who holds shares on therr behalf to be appointed {or to

have someone else appointed) as a praxy. Alternatively, if
nominated persons da not have such a night, or do not wish
to exercise 1t, they may have a right under such an agreement
ta give instructions to the person holding the shares as to the
exercise of voting nghts.

CREST members who wish to appeint a proxy or proxies
thraugh the CREST electronic proxy appointment service

may do so for the AGM to be held on 27 July 2021 and any
adjournment(s) thereof by using the procedures described in
the CREST Manual. CREST personal members or other CREST
sponsored members, and those (REST members who have
appointed a voting service provider should refer to their CRESI
sponsars or voting service provider(s), who will be able to
take the appropriate action on their behalf,

In order for a proxy appsintment of instruction made by
means of CREST to be valid, the appropnate CREST message

(2 “CREST Proxy Instruction™) must be properly authenticated in
accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited's specifications
and must contain the infarmaton required for such
instructions, as described in the CREST Manual. The message
must be transmitted 5o as to be received by the Company’s
agent, Comnputershare Investor Services PLC {CRES] Participant
ID: 3RAS0), no later than 48 hours before the time appaointed
for the meeting. For this purpese, the tme of receipt will

be taken to be the time {(as determined by the lime stamp
applied 1o the message by the (REST Applicatian Host) from
which the Campany’s agent 1s able to retrieve the message by
enquiry ta CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsar or
voting service provider should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland
Limited does not make available special pracedures in CREST
for any particular messages.
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Normal systern timings and limitations will therefore apply

m relation to the input of CRESI Proxy Instructions. It1s the
responsibility of the CREST rmember concerned to take (or, if
the CREST member 15 a CREST personal member or sponsored
member of has appointed a voung service provider, o procure
that s or her CRESI sponsor of voting service provider

takes) such action as shall be necessary ta ensure that a
message is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any
particular time. In this connection, CREST members and, where
applicable, thesr CREST spansor or voling service provider are
referred in particular to those sections of the CREST Manual
concerning practical limitations of the CRESI system and
umings. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction 1n the circumstances set out in Regulation 35{5)(a)
of the Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001,

Any member attending the meeting (subject to any
restrictions in place at the ime of the meeting) has the right
to ask questions Ihe Company must cause to be answered
any such question relating to the business bemng dealt with at
the meeting but no such answer need be given if: {a) to do s¢
would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting
or invaive the disclosure of confidential infarmation; (b) the
answer has already been given on a website in the form of an
answer to a question; of (¢} 1t 15 undesirable in the interests
of the Campany or the good order of the meeting that the
question be answered Questions of a very similar nature may
be grouped together to ensure the orderly running of the
AGM

A topy of this notice, and other information required by
section 3114 of the Campanies Act 2006, can be found at
www trproperty com.

Members satisfying the thresholds in section 338 of the
Companies Act 2006 may require the Company to give, lo
members of the Campany entitled to receive notice of the
AGM, notice of a resolution which those members intend to
move (and which may preperly be moved) at the AGM. A
resolution may properly be moved at the AGM unless:

(1Y 1t would, If passed, be neffective {whether by reasan of
any inconststency with any enactment or the Company’s
constitution or otherwise); (1) 1t1s defamatary of any person,
or {ur} 1t s tnvolous or vexatious. A request made pursuant
to this right may be in hard copy or electronic form, must
identify the resolution of which notice 1s to be given, must
be authenticated by the persan{s) making 1t and must be
recewved by the Company not later than six weeks before the
date of the AGM

© Members satistying the threshelds in section 338A of the
Compames Act 2006 may request the Company 1o include

In the business to be dealt with at the AGM any matter

(other than a proposed resolution) which may properly be
included in the business at the AGM A matter may properly
be ncluded in the business at the AGM unless- (1) 115
defamatory of any person, of {u) it 1s frvelows os vexatious

A request made pursuant to this nght may be in hard copy

ar electronic form, must 1dentify the matter to be included m
the business, must be accampanied by a statement setting
out the grounds far the request, must be authenticated by the
person(s) making it and must be received by the Company not
later than six weeks pefare the date of the AGM

Biographical details of the directors are shown on pages 38
and 39 of the Annual Report & Accounts.

" As at 3 June 2021 (being the latest practicable day prior

ta publication of this Natice}, the 1ssued share ¢apial of

the Carmpany I1s 317,350,980 Ordmary shares of 25p each.
Iherefore, the total number of voting nights In the Company at
3 June 2021715 317,350,980

- The terms of reference of the Audit Cornmittee, the

Management Engagement Commutiee, the Nomination
Committee, the New Articles gf Association and the Letters of
Appointment for directors will be avatlable for inspection for
at least 15 minutes prior to and during the Company's AGM

- You may not use any electronic address provided either in

this Notice or any felated documents to communicate for any
purpases ather than thase expressly stated

. 1he Campany may pracess personal data of attendees at the

Annual General Meeting This may include webcasts, photos,
recording and audio and wvidea links, as well as ather farms
of persanal data. The Campany shall pracess such personal
data m accordance with its privacy policy, which can found at
https://www trpropetty.com/legal

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

RESOLUTIONS 1, 2, AND 3: ACCOUNTS,
DIRECTORS  REMUNERATION REPORT AND
DIVIDEND

These are the resolutions which deal with the presentation of
the audited accounts, the approval of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report and the declaration of the final dwvidend.

The vate 1o approve the Remuneration Repart 1s advisory only
and will not require the Campany to alter any arrangements
detalled in the report shouid the resoiution not be passed.

The Board 15 proposing a final dividend for the year ended

31 March 2021 of 9.00p per ordinary share. if approved at the
AGM, the Company would pay the dividend on 4 August 2021
to those sharehalders on the Company’s register at the close of
business on 18 June 2021.

RESOLUTIONS 4, 5, 6, 7, AND 8: RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Ihese resolutians deal with the re-election of Simon Marnscn,
Tim Gillbanks, David Watson, Kate Bolsover and Sarah-Jane
Curtis. In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all
directors will retire on an annual basis and have confirmed that
they will cffer themselves for re-electian.

A perfarmance evaluation has been completed and your Board
has determined that each of the directors continues 1o be
effective and demenstrates their commitment to their role.

therr biographical details, which are set out on pages 38 and

39, demaonstrate how the Board has the appropriate balance

of skills, experience independence and knowledge 1o lead the
Company’s long-term sustainable success Accordingly, the Board
unanimously recommends their re-election

RESOLUTIONS 9 AND 10: AUDITORS

These deal with the reappointment of the Audrtors, KPMG
LLP and the authorisation far the direciors to determine their
remuneration

RESOLUTION 11: ALLOTMENT OF SHARE CAPITAL

Our Board tonsiders it appropriate that an autharity be granted

to allot shares in the capitai of the Company up to @ maximum
nominal amount of £26,445,915 (representing approximately one
third of the Company’s 1ssued share capital as at 3 June 2021,
being the latest practical date prior to publication of this Notice of
the meeting) As at the date of this natice the Campany does not
hold any shares in treasury.

The directors have no present intention cf exercising this
authority and would only expect to use the autharity if shares
could be issued at, or at a premium to, the Net Asset value per
share.

This authonty will expire at the earfier of close of business
on 27 Qctober 2022 and the conclusion of the Annual Generat
Meeting of the Company ta be held i 2022.
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RESOLUTION 12: DISAPPLICATION OF STATUTORY
PRE-EMPTION RIGHTS

This resolution would give the directors the authonty to allot
shares (or sell any shares which the Company elects to hold
in treasury) for cash without first offering them to existing
sharehalders in proportion to their existing sharehcldings.

This authaity would be limited to allotments or sales in
connection with pre-emptive offers and offers to helders of
ather equity secunties if required by the nghts of those shares
ar as the board otherwise considers necessary, or otherwise up
to an aggregate nominal amaunt of £3,966,887. This aggregate
nominal amount represents 5% of the total issued share capital
af the Company as at 3 June 2021, the fatest practicable date
prior to publication of this Notice. In respect of this aggregate
nominal amount, the directars confirm their intention to follow
the provisicns of the Pre-tmption Group's Statement of Principles
regarding cumulative usage of autharities within a ralling
3-year penod where the Principles provide that usage in excess
of 7.5% should not take place without prior consultation with
sharehoiders.

1he authority will expire at the earlier of close of business on
27 Qctaber 2022 and the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company lo be held in 2022

RESOLUTION 13: AUTHORITY TO MAKE MARKET
PURCHASES OF THE COMPANY'S ORDINARY
SHARES

Al the AGM held in 2020, a special resclution was proposed and
passed, giving the directors authonty, until the conclusian of the
AGM in 2021, to make market purchases of the Company’s own
1ssuied shares up 1o @ maximum of 14.99% «f the issued share
capital

Your Board 1s proposing that they shouid be given renewed
authority te purchase Ordinary shares in the market. Your

Board believes that to make such purchases in the market at
appropniate tmes and prices 15 a suitable methad of erhancing
shareholder value. The Campany would, within guidelines set
from time to time by the Board, make either a single purchase or
a senes of purchases, when market canditiens are suitable, with
the aim of maximising the benefits to shareholders,

where purchases are made at prices below the prevailing Net
Asset Value per share, this will enhance the Nel Asset value

for the remaiming shareholders. It 15 therefore intended that
purchases would only be made at prices below Net Asset value.
Your Board considers that it will be most advantageous to
sharehalders for the Company to be able to make such purchases
as and when 1t considers the timing to be favourable and
therefore does not prepose to set 3 tmetable for making any
such purchases

Ihe Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares)
Requlations 2003 enable companies in the United Kingdom Lo
hold in treasury any of ther own shares they have purchased
with 3 view to possible resale at 3 future date, rather than
cancelling them. If the Company does re-puichase any of s
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shares, the directors do not currently intend to hold any of the
shares re-purchased in treasury. The shares so re purchased will
continue to be cancelled.

Ihe Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authanty limit the maximum
pnce (exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for any such
share. It shalt not be mare than the higher of-

() 105% of the average of the middle market quotations for an
ordinary share as taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily
offical List tor the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the Company agrees to buy shares
concerned; and

(ii) the higher of the price of the Iast independent trade and
the highest cusrent independent bid for an Ordinary share in
the Company on the trading venue where the purchase is
carned out

The minimum price to be paid will be 25p per Ordinary

share (being the nominal value). The Listing Rules alsg limi

a listed company to purchases of shares representing up to
15% of its 15sued share capital in the market pursuant to a
general authority such as this. For this reason, the Company is
lirmiting 1ts authority to make such purchases to 14.99% of the
Company’s Ordinary shares in issue at the date of the AGM, this
is equivalent 1o 47570,911 Grdinary shares of 25p each (nominal
value £11,892,727) al 3 June 2021, the latest practicable date
prior to publication this Notice The authonty will last untit the
Annual General Meeling of the Company to be held in 2022

RESOLUTION 14: ADOPTION OF NEW ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATION

Resolution 14 relates to the adoption of new Articles of
Association (the “New Articles™) in order tg update the
Company’s current Articles of Association (the "Current Articles”™),
which were adopted on 14 Decemnber 2012. The New Articles
reflect developments in best practice, and provide additional
clanfication and flexibility. The main changes in the New Articles
are summarnsed in the Appendix on pages 106 and 107. Other
changes, which are of a minor, technical or dlanfying nature have
not been noted in the Appendix The New Articles showing ali
the changes to the Current Articles are available for inspection,
at www.lrproperty.com and will also be avallable at the Annual
General Meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

Your Board believes that the resolutions contamed in this Notice
of Annual General Meeting are In the best interests of the
Company and shareholders as a whale and recernmends thal you
vote In favour of them as your Directors intend ta do in respect of
their beneficial shareholdings
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APPENDIX

Further information and Explanatory notes regarding
amendments to the Company’s articles of association

Sigma Shares and Deferred Shares

The New Articles amend the Current Articies to remove
provisions and references relating to Sigma Shares and Deferred
Shares. Lhis reflects that on 14 December 2012 all Sigma Shares
were consolidated and redesignated as Ordinary Shares, and
the resulting Deferred Share was purchased by the Company for
cancellation The Company now has a single class of Qredinary
Shares.

Untraced shareholders

The New Articles amend the position in relation to untraced
shareholders Rather than requiring the Company to take out
two newspaper advertisernents, the New Articles require the
Company 1o use reasonable efforts to trace the shareholder
‘Reasonable efforts’ to trace a shareholder rmay include, 1f
considered appropriate, the Company engaging a professional
asset reunification company or ather tracing agent to search for
a shareholder who has nat kept their shareholder details up to
date.

In addition, the New Artictes pravide that money from the sale
of the shares of an untraced sharehokder will be farfeited If not
claimed after twa years, rather than six years.

These changes reflect best practice and provide the Company
with appropriate flexibility in connection with locating untraced
shareholders

Sub-division of shares

Ihe New Articles clarify that any shares resulting fram a sub-
division of the Company's existing shares may, in addition to
having any preference or advantage as compared with the
Company’s other shares, also have deferred or other rights. This
change makes administesing any sub-division of shares more
straightforward.

QOperation of general meetings

The New Articles contain specific pravisions to clanfy that the
Company can hold “hybnd” general meetings {including annual
general meetings) and ta set out how such meetings are ta
be conducted. Under the New Articles, the Company may hold
"hybrid” general meetings in such a way that enables members
to attend and participate in the business of the meeting by
attending a physical location or by attending by means of an
electronic facility. Voting at hybrid meetings will, by default, be
decided on a poll. Hybrid meetings may be adjourned in the
event of a technalogical failure.

The New Articles allow the Company, where approprate, to make
changes to the arrangernents for general meetings (including the
introduction, change or cancellation of electronic facilities) after
natice of the meeting has been 1ssued. The Company may give
natice of any such changes 1n any manner considered appropriate
{rather than via an advertisement in two national newspapers)
The New Articles alsc explicitly allow the Cornpany to introduce
health and safety arrangements at its meetings.

These changes were introduced to provide the Board greater
flexibility 1o align with technological advances, changes in
mvestor sentiment and evolving best practice, particularly in ight
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of the Cavid-19 outbreak and the uncertain duration of social
distancing measures and restrictions on gatherings. The Board
believes that hybrid meetings will allow for greater shareholder
and stakeholder engagement over the carming years in a way
that is more convenient for all parties. Absent exceptional
crcumstances, members of the Board intend to continue the
practice of attending general meetings of the Company in person.
In line with the views expressed by the Investment Association
and institutional Shareholder Services, the changes will not
permit meetings to be held exclusively en an electronic basis, 50
a physical meeting wall still be required. In deciding whether and
how to hold a hybrd general meeting in future, the Company
will have regard to the views of shareholders and institutional
governance bodies at the relevant tme as well as to relevant
quidance or codes of best practice

The New Articles also specifically refer tc the possibility of
satellite/multi-venue meelings, such as the use of overflow
roams. Sateilite meetings are legally valid even without such a
pravision but 1t has been added for clanty

These changes are primarnly contained in articles 47, 48, 50
and 53 in the New Articles. A number of other consequential
amendments have been made to the New Articles

Objections or Errors in Voting

In relation to the statutory requiremment that a proxy must vote
In accordance with any instruchons given by the member by
whom the proxy is appainied, the New Articles state explicitly
that the cornpany Is not required te check that proxies and
corporate representatives have voted In accordance with their
instructions or that their fallure to do so would vitiate the result
of a shareholder vote

Number of directors
The New Articles reflect the statutory mininum of two directors,
and intreduce @ maximum of 10 directors.

Reappointment of directors

In ine with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the New Articles require directors to retire {and should
they wish to remain in office, seek re-election) at each annual
general meeting. 1his requirement does not apply to directars 1n
their first year of appointment who were appomted in the penod
between the AGM notice being 1ssued and the AGM itself. This
confirms existing Company practice.

Directars” fees

The Current Articles pravide that the aggregate of all fees paid

to directors shall not exceed £250 000 per annum. Article 88 of
the New Articles increases this amount to £300,000 ta reflect the
amount approved by resoluticn of the Company on 22 july 2074

Borrowing Powers

The New Articles include in the defimtion of "borrowings” the
mingrity proportion of moneys borrowed by @ member of the
graup and owing to a partly-owned subsidiary undertaking
(with “the rminority proportion” meaning a proportion equal to
the proportion of the 1ssued share capial of a partly-owned
subsidiary undertaking which 1s not attributable to @ member of
the group).
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Forfeiture of unclaimed dividends

the Current Articles provide that (f a dwvidend ar other payment
due ta members has not been claimed for twelve years after
being declared or becoming due, 1t will be forfeited to the
Company Article 122 of the New Articles reduces this period from
{twelve 1o s years

Payments of dividends and ether amounts

The New Articles give the Board greater flexibllity to determine
the appropriate method(s) it pays dwidends (and ather sums)
to shareholders. This flexibility will help the Board take account
of devetopments in market practice and keep down the
administiative cost of making payments. The New Articles

also provide that where a payment cannot be made because

a shareholder has not provided valid account detarls o the
company, that amount will treated as unclaimed untl the
shareholder provides those details.

Capital Reserve

The New Articles remove Article 132 1n the Old Articles, which
was included to ensure that the company gualifies as an
investment trust and is treated as an investment company
Following the medernmisation of the investment trust regime and
amendments to legislation abolishing the restnctior on the ability
to distnibute capital profits, this provisien is no longer necessary

Strategic report and supplementary materials

Ihe Companies Act 2006 and the Companies (Receipt of Accounts
and Reports) Regulations 2013 allow the Company to send a copy
ot 15 strategic report with supplementary matenal instead of

its full accounts to a member who has elected or tacitly agreed
ta receive these documents, provided that the Company is nat
prahibited from doing sa mn its articles. Article 129 15 intended to
make it clear there s no such prohibition. Shareholders should
note that they can always view the full annual report on the
Company’s website of iequest a hard copy fram the Company's
reqistrar

Gender Neutral Drafting
The New Articles amend the Current Articles so that gender
neutral language 1s used.

General

Other changes which are of a minor, technical ar clarifying nature
or which have been made ta remove provisions in the Current
Arlicles which duplicate tnglish company iaw are not noted
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RELEASE OF RESULTS

The half year results are announced in fate November. The full
year results are gnnounced in early june.

ANMUAL GENERAL MEETING
Tthe AGM 1s heid in London i July.

DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATES
Dividends are usually paid an the Ordinary shares 3s fallows

interim: January
Final: August

DIVIDEMD PAYMENTS

Dividends can be paid to sharehaiders by means of BACS
(Rankers’ Automated Cleanng Services), mandale forms far

this purpose are available from the Reqistrar Alternatively,
sharehalders can write to the Registrar (the address 1S given on
page 108 of this report) to give their instructions; these must
include the bank account number, the bank account tle and the
sort code of the hank ta which payments are to be made.
DIVIDEND BEINVESTMENT F1aAN (DRIP )

IR Property investrnent Trust plc offers sharehalders the
opportunity to purchase further shares in the Company through
the DRIP Please note that following Brexit shareholders in Eurgpe
are no longer able te participate o the BRIP. DRIP forms may

be abtained from Computershaie Investor Services FLC through
their secure website www investorcentre ca.uk, or by phening
0370 707 1694. Charges do apply, dealing commussion of 0.75%
(subject to a rmimmum of £2 50). Government stamp duty of
0.5% also applies

SHARE PRICE HISTINGS

The market prices of the Company’s shares are published daily

in The Fnancial Times Some of the infarmation 1s published in
ather leading newspapers. 1he hinancial Times afso shaws figures
for the estimated Net Asset Values and the discoumts apphcable.

SHARE PRICE INFORMATION
ISIN GBQ00S064097

SEDOL 0906409

Bloomberg IRY.LN

Reuters (RY.L

Datastream [RY

BEMHIHMARK

Details of the benchmark are given in the Strataqic Report
on page 24 of this Report and Accounts. The benchmark index is
published daily and can be found on Bloomberg,

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed turope Capped Net Total
Return Index in Sterlng
Bloomberg: TRORAG Index

INTERNET

Details of the market price and Net Assel value of the
Ordinary shares can be found on the Company’s website at
www.itrproperty.com.

shareholders who hold their shares in certificated form can check
their haldings with the Registrar, Computershare Investor Services
PLC, via www.investorcentre couk Please note that to gain
3€£ess 1o your details on the Computershare sie you will need
the holder reference number stated on the top left hand corner of
your share certificate

DASABILITY ALY

Copies of this Report and Accounts and other documents issued
by the Company are available from the Company Secretary If
needed, capies can be made available 1 a variety of formats,
including Braille, audio tape or larger type as appropriate.

You can contact the Registrar, Computershare inveslor Services
PLC, which has installed textphones to allow speech and hearing
impaired people who have their own lextphone to contacl

them directly, without the need for an intermediate operator, by
dizglling 0870 702 0005. Specially trained cperators are avallable
during normal business hours Lo answer queries via this sepnce

Alternatively, if you prefer 1o go thraugh a ‘typetalk’ operatar
{provided by the Royal National Institute for Deaf People) you
should dial 18001 fallowed by the nymber you wish to dial
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Geperal shasenoabdes wfermation

NOMINEE SHARE {OGE

where notification has been provided in advance, the Company
will arrange for copies of sharehalder communications ta be
provided to the operators of neminee accounts. Neminee
investors may attend general meetings and speak at meetings
when invited to do so by the Chairman.

COT BASE TOST

Taxdtion ofcapinad jees fus sharnsldors whe
fgrmerly bodd Segea s,

Upon a disposal of all or part of a shareholder’s holding of
Ordinary shares, the impact on the shareholder’s capital gains
tax base cast of the conversion to Sigma shares in 2007 and the
redesignation to Crdinary shares in 2012 should be cansidered.

In respect of the canversion to Sigma in 2007, agreement
was reached with HM Revenue & Customns ("HMRC") to base
the apporticnment of the capital gains tax base cost on

the proportion of Qrdinary shares that were converted by a
shareholder intc Sigma shares on 25 July 2007

Therefore, if an Ordinary shareholder canverted 20% of their
existing Ordinary shares into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007, the
capital gains tax base cast of the new Sigma shares acquired
would be equal to 20% of the onginal capital gans tax base cost
of the Ordinary shares that they held pre-conversion. The base
cost of their remaining holding of Crdinary shares would then be
80% of the orniginal capital gains tax base cest af their Ordinary
shares he!d pre-conversion.

As part of the re-designation of the Sigma shares into Crdinary
shares in Decernber 2012, 3 further sharehalder’s agreement
was reached with HMRC thal a sharehalders capital gains tax
base cost in their new Ordinary shares should be equivalent to
thelir capital gains base cast in the pre-existing Sigma shares

(1 e. their capifal gains base cost under the existing agreement if
applicable).

if in doubt as to the consequences of this agreement with HMRC,
sharehalders should consult with their own professional advisors.
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MARKET PURCHASES

ihe shares of TR Property Investment Irust plc are hsted and
traded on the London Stock Exchange. Investors may purchase
shaies through their stockbroker, bank of other financial
intermediary.

HOEDING SHARES 1N (ERTIFICATED FORM

Investars may hold their investment in certificated form Our
registrars, Computershare operate a dealing service which enables
iwestars to buy and sell shares quickly and easily ontine wathout
a broker or the need to apen a trading account Alternatively the
investor Centre allows Investors 1o manage portiolios quickly and

securely, update details and view balances without annual charges.

Further details are available by contacting Compulershare an 0370
707 1355 ar visit www.computershare.com.

TR Properly Investment Trust plc now offers shareholders the
apportunity to purchase further shares in the company through
the Dividend Re-investment Pian ("DRIP™) through the registral,
Computershare. Shareholders can obtain further information on
the DRIP through their secure website www investarcentre.co.uk,
ar by phoning 0370 707 1694. Charges do apply Please note

that ta gain access to your details or registec for the DRIP on the
computershare site you will need the holder reference number
stated on the top left hand comer of your shase certificate

SAVING RCHEMES 15325 AND JTHER PLANS
A number of banks and wealth management crganisations

provide Savings Schemes and I5As through which UK clients can
invest i TR Property investment Trust pl¢.

ISA and savings scheme providers do charge dealing and other
fees for operating the accounts, and investors should read the
Terms and Conditions provided by these companies and ensure
that the charges best suit their planned investrnent profie. Most
schemes ¢arry annual charges but these vary between provider
and product Where dealing charges apply. in some cases these
are applied as a percentage aof funds invested and athers as a
flat charge. The optimum way to held the shares will be different
for each investor depending upon the frequency and size of
investments ta be made

Details are given below of two prowviders offering shares in
TR Property investrnent Trust, but there are many other gptions.

n

HEIES I TA S M S AL IR IR

Interactive investor provide and administer a range of self-select
mvestment plans, including tax-advantaged 1SAs and SIPPs
(Self-Invested Personat Pension}, and Trading Accounts

Fof mofe information, interactive investor can be contacted on
0345 607 6007, or by vistting hitps://www i.co uk/

Interactive investor cffer investors in IR Property and other
investment rusts a free gpt-in anline shareholder vating and
information service that enables investars to receive shareholder
tommunications and, if they wish, 1o vote on the shareholdings
held i their account.

TR Property is aisg on the interactive super 60 rated [ist

L O o P Y I NI s TSP R SR PPRN AR L R R A
RMO offer a number of Private Investar Plans, investment Trust
and Junior 1SAs and Children’s Investment Plans mvestments

ran be made as lumyp sums or through reqular savings For more

informatian see inside the back cover. BMQ can be contacted on
0800 136 420, or visit www.bmogam.com.

Please remember thal the value of your investments and any
income from them may go down as well as up Pest performance
15 not a guide to future performance You may not get back

the amount that you invest, If you are in any doubt as to the
suitabihty of a plan or any investment available within a plan,
please take prafessional advice.

s i Schenes aod 1SAS nsiered fom Allanes
Trust Savings {ATSY BNP Panbas

tollowing the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
investor, ATS self-directed accounts were transferred ta the
interactive nwestor platform on 14th October 2019

In 2012 BNP Panibas closed down the part of their business that
operated Savings Schemes and ISAs. Investors were given the
choice of transferring their schemes to Alliance Trust Savings
("ATS”) or to a provider of their own chaice, or to close their
accounts and self the holdings.

It \nvestars did not respand ta the letters from BNP Parbas, thew
accounts were transferred to AlS.

Followng the acquisition of Alliance Trust Savings by interactive
investor, ATS self-directed accounts were transferred to the
interactive investor platform on 14 October 2019.

SHAR: FRAUD AND BOHER RGOM 50A0ME
shareholders 1n a number of investment Trusts have been
approached as part of a share fraud where they are informed

of an opportunity to sell their shares as the company 1s

subject to a takeover bid. This is not trive and 1s an atlempt (o
defraud sharehoiders. The share fraud also seeks payment of a
“commission” by shareholders to the parties carrying oul the fraud.

Shareholders shauld remain alert ta this type of scam and treat
with suspicion any contact by telephane offening an altractive
investment apportunity, such as a prermium price for your shares,
or an attempl to conviace you that payment 1s required in order
10 release a settlement for your shares These frauds may also
offer ta sell your shares in companies which have little or na
value or may affer you bonus shares. These sa called "bailer
room” scams can also involve an attempt to obtain your persanal
and/or banking miormation with whith to commit 1dentity fraud

The caller may be fnendly and reassunng of they may take a
more urgent tone, encouraging you to act quickly otherwise you
could lose money of miss out on a deal.

If you have been contacted by an unauthansed firm regarding
your shares the FCA would Iike to hear from you. You can repart
an unauthonsed firm using the FCA helpline on Q800 111 67488 or
by wisiting their website, which aisa has ather useful information,
al www ta org.uk.

If you recelve any unsolicited investment advice make sure you
get the correct name of the person and organsation If the calls
peraist, hang up. If you deal with an unauthonsed fim, you will
not be eligrble to receive payment under the Financal Services

Compensation Scherme

Please be advised that the Board or the Manager would
never make unsolicited telephone talls of such a nature to
shareholders.

TR PROPERTY INVESTMENT TRUST




BMO 15A

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the
current tax year with a lump sum from £100 or regulas
savings from £25 a month. You can also transfer any
existing ISAs to us whilst maintaining the tax benefits.

BMO JUNIOR ISA (JISA)”

A tax efficicnt way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 lurnp sum or
£25 a month. J!SAs or CFFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO.

BMO LIFETSME 1SA {LISA)

for those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life.
Invest up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive
a 25% Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest
with a lump sum from £100 or reqular savings from
£25 a month.

BMO CHILD TRUST FUND (CTF)”

If your child already has a CTF you can invest up to
£9,000 per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a
month. CTFs with other providers can be transferred

to BMO.

BMO GENERAL INVESTMENT ACCOUNT (GIA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range

of Investment Trusts. There are no maximum
contributions, and investments can be made from
£100 fump sum of £25 a3 month.

BMO JUNIOR INVESTMENT ACCOUNT (JiA)

This is a flexible way to save for a child in our
range of Investment Trusts. There are ne maximum
contributions, and the plan can easily be set up under
bare trust {(where the child is noted as the beneficial
owner) or kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investment. Investments can be made
from a £100 lump sum or £25 & month per account.
You can also make additional lump sum top-ups at any
time from £100 per account.
“the CIF ana JISA accounts are apened by parents i the thild’s name

and they have access Lo the money at age 18 ~“Lalls rmay be recorded or
manitored for training and quality purposes

anio @

B0 ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CHARGES

Annual management charges and other charges apply according to
the type of plan.

AMMUAL ACLOUNMT {HARGE

ISA LIS EB0+VAT

ik, £40+VAI

1537'\,"”!‘\;"(5? £25+VAT

You can pay the annual charge from your account, or by direct debit
{in addition to any annual subscription limits)

DEALING CHARGES

£12 per fund (reduced to £0 for deals placed threugh the online BMO
Investar Portal} for ISA/GIA/LISA/)IA and JISA. There are no dealing
charges an a CTF.

Dealing charges apply when shares are bought or sold but not on the
reinvestment of dividends or the investment of monthly direct debits.

Government stamp duty of 0.5% alsc applies on the purchase of
shares (where apphcable).

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you may

not get back your onginal mvestment Tax benefits depend on your
individual circumstances and tax allowances and rules may change.
Please ensure you have read the full Terms and Conditions, Privacy
Policy and relevant Key teatures documents before investing. For
requlatary purposes, please ensure you have read the Pre-sales Cost &
Charges disclosure related to the product you are applying for, and the
relevant Key information Decuments (KIDs) for the investment trusts
you want to invest into.

HOW T3 iNVEST
lo open & new BMO plan, apply online at bmogam.comfapply

Cnline applications are not available if you are transferrng an existing
plan with another provider to BMO, or if you are applying for a new
plan 1n more than one name but paper applications are available at
bmeinvestments.co uk/documents or by contacting BMO

MEAN TUSTOMERS

Call: N33 435 120

Email:  nfa sl paes oo

EXISTIMNG PLAMN BOLDERS

Call: DI U

Emall: IR TOE CBGLE RS I DIP Uy A L
By post:

You can also invest in the trust through online dealing platforms for
private investors that offer share dealing and 1SAs. Companies include:
Barclays Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown,
HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lloyds Bank, The Share Centre

bmoinvestments co.uk
§ facebook com/bmemvestmentsuk

(0345 600 3030, 900am - 5 00pm, weekdays, calls may be recorded
or monitored for traiming and quality purposes.

BMO Assel Management Limited 15 authorised and requlated by the Financ.dl Conduct Authonty and s a member of BMO Glabal Asset Management EMEA of which the

ultimate parent company 15 the Bank of Mantieal 737510 L56_05/21 UK

TR PROPERTY iNVESTMENT TRUST
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